West Lindsey District Counci

Constitution
Of
West Lindsey
District Councll

Reviewed March 2019




Constitution Contents

Part| -

Part Il —

Part lll -

Part IV -

Summary and Explanation
Introduction
Summary and Explanation

Articles of the Constitution

Article 1 - The Constitution

Article 2 - Members of the Council
Article 3 - The Public and the Council
Article 4 - The Council

Article 5 - Chairing the Council
Article 6 - Leader of the Council
Article 7 - Overview and Scrutiny
Article 8 - Committees

Article 9 - The Standards Sub-Committee
Article 10 - Joint Arrangements

Article 11 - Officers

Article 12 - Decision Making

Article 13 - Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters
Article 14 - Review and Revision of the Constitution

Article 15 - Suspension, Interpretation and
Publication of the Constitution

Schedule 1 - Description of Alternative Arrangements

Codes and Protocols

Members’ Code of Conduct
Member/Officer Relations Protocol
Local Code of Corporate Governance

Responsibility for Functions
Policy

Council

Corporate Policy and Resources Committee
Prosperous Communities Committee
Regulatory

Governance and Audit Committee
Licensing Committee

Regulatory Committee

Planning Committee

Regulatory Sub-Committee
Licensing Sub-Committee

Other

Challenge and Improvement Committee
Standards Sub-Committee

Chief Officer Employment Committee
Independent Disciplinary Panel

Joint Staff Consultative Committee
Remuneration Panel

Housing Appeals Board

Reviewed November 2018

NN —

D W =

11

15
18
21
23
25
29
31
32

33
34

16
28

aw =

10
11
12
13
14

16
18
20
20
21
22
23



Officers

Officers General 24
Executive Directors 27
Head of Paid Service 28
Executive Director of Resources 30
Monitoring Officer 33
Executive Director of Operations 34
Executive Director of Economic and Commercial Growth 45
Corporate Delegations 47
Proper Officers 59

PartV - Rules of Procedure
Council Procedure Rules 1
Access to Information Procedure Rules 18
Budgetary and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 23
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 26
Financial Procedure Rules 33
Contract and Procurement Procedure Rules 117
Officer Employment Procedure Rules 139

Part VI - Members’ Allowances Scheme
Members’ Allowances Scheme 1

_ Management Structure
Part Vi Management Structure 1

Appendices
Role Descriptions
Chairman 1
Vice Chairman 4
Leader of Council 5
Deputy Leader of Council 8
Leader of the Opposition 10
Deputy Leader of the Opposition 12
Chairman of Challenge and Improvement. 13
Challenge and Improvement Panel Lead Member 16
Chairman of a Regulatory Committee 17
Chairman of Governance and Audit Committee 19
Community Ward Councillor 21
Member Champion 23
Functions
Of the Monitoring Officer 25
Of the Head of Paid Service 29
Of the S151 Officer 32
Petitions Scheme 37

Reviewed November 2018



District Council

Constitution of West Lindsey District Council

Part |

Introduction, Summary
and Explanation

,\%ﬁ
WestAindsey
District Council
The Entrepreneurial Council



Introduction, Summary and Explanation

Contents

INTFOAUCHION ...
Summary and Explanation ...........ccccceeceeiiieiiee i

Reviewed November 2018



Introduction

Introduction
By Mark Sturgess, Head of Paid Service, West Lindsey District Council

West Lindsey District Council exists to serve its citizens and make decisions on their
behalf. The council’s vision is that:

“West Lindsey is seen as a place where people want to live, work, invest and visit”.

The Council’s constitution sets out the arrangements for the governance of the
district. It reflects both legislation and good practice and shows how the Council acts
in an open, transparent and accountable way for the people of West Lindsey.

The rules, procedures and guidance in the constitution have been chosen to give
local citizens the confidence that decisions made in their name have been taken
correctly. It does not mean that everyone will agree with every decision the Council
makes. But it should mean that people know what decisions are made, that they can
see that decisions have been made fairly, and that proper consultation takes place
wherever possible.

This constitution is used most often by Councillors and council staff. It gives
guidance, about who has the right to take different decisions and about how
decisions are made. So it is for:

. the public;
the members of the council;
[ the council’s staff

The constitution is essentially a reference document and is not designed to be read
like a book. It is there for people to look up the rules and solve problems of
procedure. To help readers find their way round there is a table of contents at the
beginning and an index at the end. It is divided into seven parts. Part | summarises
the document and explains how decisions are made. In Part Il the articles explain
the rights of citizens and how the key parts of the council operate. Part lll contains a
number of codes and protocols which deal with conduct and behaviour and the way
in which Councillors and staff work together. Part IV makes it clear who is
responsible for every decision made by the council while Part V sets out rules of
procedure that ensure that all decisions are taken properly and lawfully. Part VI sets
out the allowances received by Councillors in recognition of the responsibilities they
undertake. Part VII shows the Council’s management structure and senior officers.

Part 1/ Page 1

Reviewed November 2018



Summary and Explanation

Summary and Explanation

The Council’s Constitution

West Lindsey District Council has agreed a Constitution which sets out how the
Council operates, how decisions are made and the procedures which are followed to
ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. Some of
these processes are required by the law, while others are a matter for the Council to
choose. The Constitution is divided into 15 articles which set out the basic rules
governing the Council’s business. More detailed procedures and codes of practice
are provided in separate rules and protocols at the end of the document.

Articles of the Constitution

The Constitution contains 15 Articles which set out the principles on which West
Lindsey will operate. Article 1 commits the Council to act within the provisions of this
Constitution. Articles 2-15 explain the rights of the public and how the key parts of
the Council operate. These are:

. The Constitution (Article 1)
. Members of the Council (Article 2)

. The Public and the Council (Article 3)
. The Council (Article 4)

. Chairing the Council — roles and functions of the Chairman of the Council
(Article 5)

. Leader of the Council (Article 6)

. Overview and Scrutiny (Article 7)

. Committees (Article 8)

. Standards Sub-Committee (Article 9)

. Joint Arrangements (Article 10)

. Officers (Article 11)
. Decision Making (Article 12)

° Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters (Article 13)

. Review and Revision of the Constitution (Article 14)

. Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the Constitution (Article 15)
Services

West Lindsey currently provides a range of services set out in the A-Z list, money for
which comes from the following sources:

. income from fees and charges

Part 1/ Page 2

Reviewed November 2018



Summary and Explanation

government specific grants
specific reserves

general balances
non-domestic rates
government general grant
surplus on collection fund
council tax

commercial activity

How Decisions are made

COUNCIL

Challenge and
Improvement

\

Licensing
and Regulatory

Corporate

Policy and
Resources

Prosperous
Communities

Governance and

\ Audit / K j

<l —
delegated decision making scope of scrutiny
and report back

Part |/ Page 3

Reviewed November 2018



Summary and Explanation

Most day-to-day decisions are made by one of the Council’s two policy committees.
The Corporate Policy and Resources Committee is responsible for the effective use
of all council resources whether land, finances, property or personnel. The
Prosperous Communities Committee formulates policies which deal with economic
development, housing, leisure and culture, environmental issues and community
issues. The Planning, Governance and Audit, Licensing and Regulatory
Committees carry out a number of regulatory functions.

How the Council Operates

The Council consists of 36 Councillors (also called “Members”), elected every four
years. Councillors are democratically accountable to residents of their ward. The
overriding duty of Councillors is to the whole community, but they have a special duty
to their constituents, including those who did not vote for them. Councillors must
agree to comply with West Lindsey’s Members’ Code of Conduct to ensure high
standards in the way they undertake their duties. The Standards Sub-Committee (a
Sub-Committee of the Governance and Audit Committee) trains and advises them
on the Code of Conduct.

All Councillors meet together as the Council. Meetings of the Council are normally
open to the public. Here, Councillors decide the Council’s overall policies and set the
budget each year. The Council is the main forum for debating the state of West
Lindsey, approving the Council’s annual budget and setting the policy framework
within which the committees operate. The Council appoints a Leader to give clear
leadership for the Council and the local community. It is also responsible for
delegating functions to committees and has a role in holding those committees to
account.

Overview and Scrutiny

There is one committee called Challenge and Improvement which manages this
process. Operating in its own right and through the creation of time limited panels
(as needed) to conduct effective scrutiny of decisions it supports the work of the
policy committees and the Council as a whole. It allows the public to have a greater
say in Council matters by holding public inquiries into matters of local concern. It
can lead to reports and recommendations which advise the policy committees and
the Council as a whole on its policies, budget and service delivery.

The Challenge and Improvement Committee also monitors the decisions of the policy
committees. It can “call-in” a decision which has been made by a policy

committee but not yet implemented. This enables it to consider whether the decision
is appropriate. It may recommend that the policy committee reconsider the decision.
It may also be consulted by the policy committees on forthcoming decisions and the
development of policy.

The Council’s Staff
The Council has people working for it (called “officers”) to give advice, implement

decisions and manage the day-to-day delivery of its services. Some officers have a
specific duty to ensure that the Council acts within the law and uses its resources

Part | / Page 4

Reviewed November 2018



Summary and Explanation

wisely. The Member Officer Protocol deals with the relationships between officers
and Members of the Council.

Citizens’ Rights

The public have a number of rights in their dealings with the Council. These are set
out in more detail in Article 3. Some of these are legal rights whilst others depend on
the Council’'s own processes. The local Citizens’ Advice Bureau can advise on
individuals’ legal rights. Where members of the public use specific council services,
they have additional rights. These are not covered in this constitution.

Citizens have the right to:

. vote at local elections if they are eligible and registered

° contact their local Councillor about any matters of concern to them

. obtain a copy of the constitution

. attend meetings of the Council and its committees except where, for example,
personal or private matters are being discussed

. see unrestricted reports and associated background papers and any

published record of decisions made by the Council and committees

. petition to request a referendum on a mayoral form of executive

. present petitions under the Council’s petitions scheme

. make a statement or ask a question at council meetings

. participate in meetings and contribute to investigations by the Challenge and
Improvement Committee

° complain to the Council about council services, action or inaction which
concern them, for the matter to be investigated under the Council’s complaints
processes

. complain to the Local Government Ombudsman at any time if they think the
Council has not followed its procedures properly. However, they should only
do this after using the Council’s own complaints process

. complain to the Council’s Monitoring Officer if they have evidence which they
think shows that a Councillor has not followed the Members’ Code of
Conduct

. inspect the Council’'s accounts and make their views known to the external
auditor

. rights conferred under the Localism Act 2011

The Council welcomes participation by the public in its work. For further information
please contact the Democratic Services team, Guildhall, Marshall’s Yard,
Gainsborough, Lincolnshire, DN21 2NA. Telephone 01427 676594/5. Details of the
Council Committees, Members and Services and guidance relating to the Freedom
of Information Act 2000 can be found on the Council website at www.west-
lindsey.gov.uk.

Part | / Page 5
Reviewed November 2018



WEST LINDSEY DISTRICT A-Z OF COUNCIL SERVICES

Anti-Social Behaviour Reporting
Architectural/ Engineering Services
Assisted Collections

Benefit Fraud Investigations
Building Control

Building Control Enforcement
Bulky Waste Collections
Business, Employment and Skills Support & Development
Car Parks Operation

CCTV Monitoring

Cemeteries

Centre Management

Clinical Waste Collection

Code of Conduct / Investigations
Committee Administration
Community Engagement
Community Grants

Community Health

Community Safety

Conservation Areas

Corporate Health and Safety
Council Tax Administration
Cultural Services

Dangerous Structures

Developer Contributions/S106
Development Control

Dial A Ride Community Transport
Domestic Abuse Reporting
Election Organisation

Electoral Registration

Emergency Planning and Business Continuity
Empty Properties

Environmental Protection

Flood Risk Management and Drainage
Gainsborough Market

Grounds Maintenance

Historic Buildings/Grants

Housing and Council Tax Benefits

Housing Improvement Assistance

Housing Options

Housing Standards

Leisure Contract and Trinity Arts

Licensing Services i.e. alcohol, gambling, taxis etc.
Local and Development Plans

Local Land Charges

Pest and Dog Control

Pre-application Planning Advice

Public Conveniences

Recycling Service

Refuse collection

Regulatory Services i.e. health & safety, food safety, control of infectious diseases etc.
Rights of Way

Sports development support

Street Cleansing & Litter Control

Street Furniture

Street Naming/Numbering

Town Centre Management

Trade Waste Service

Tree Preservation Orders

Reviewed November 2018

Part 1/ Page 6



District Council

Constitution of West Lindsey District Council

Part Il

Articles of
the Constitution




Articles of the Constitution

Contents

Article 1
Article 2
Article 3
Article 4
Article 5
Article 6
Article 7
Article 8
Article 9
Article 10
Article 11
Article 12
Article 13
Article 14
Article 15

The Constitution ........coooeieiiiiiee e, 1
Members of the Council..........ccceeevieiiiiiee e 3
The Public and the Council...........ccoccoiieviiieciiiiee e, 6
The COUNCIl ... 8
Chairing the COUNCIl ........coiiiiiiie e 11
Leader of the CouNCIil..........coooiiviiii e 13
Overview and SCrutiny .........cccoeoieriie i 15
COMMITEES .. 18
The Standards Sub-Committee.........ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee 21
JOINt ArrangementsS.......ooeeveeiiiiiiiiiiiee e 23
OFfICRIS et 25
DeCiSion Making........ueeeeeeieiiieiiiieiee e 29
Finance Contracts and Legal Matters ............ccccveeeeiiinnnnn 31
Review and Revision of the Constitution............ccccceeieeeneee. 32

Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the
CoNStItULION ..o 33

Schedule 1 — Description of Alternative Arrangements..........cocccveeeeeenne 34

Reviewed May 2018



Article 1 - The Constitution

Article 1
The Constitution

Explanatory Note

This Article sets out the fundamental provisions of the Constitution. It
confirms that the Local Authority will act within the law and provisions of this
Constitution. It defines those documents which comprise the Constitution.

1.1 Powers of the Council

The Council will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with the law
and this Constitution.

1.2 The Constitution

This Constitution, and all its appendices, is the Constitution of West Lindsey
District Council.

1.3  Purpose of the Constitution
The purpose of the Constitution is to:

(@) enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the community in
partnership with members of the public, businesses and other
organisations;

(b) support and encourage the active involvement of members of the
public in the process of local authority decision-making;

(c) provide a framework within which Councillors can represent
their constituents effectively;

(d)  enable decisions to be taken efficiently, effectively and transparently;

(e) facilitate the effective delivery of services to the West Lindsey
community.

The Constitution recognises the Council’s role as a Community Leader and its
strategic responsibilities for community planning and value for money in the
services it delivers. Its overall objective is therefore to organise all of its
activities in such a way as to ensure that they demonstrably contribute to
agreed community outcomes. The Council recognises the importance of
facilitative leadership by working with partners in order to effectively discharge
its community/place shaping role.

Implicit in the working arrangements is the recognition of the right of the
community to be involved in the Council’s decision making processes.

Part Il / Page 1
Reviewed May 2018



Article 2 — Members of the Council

Members of the public and other stakeholders/community organisations can
exercise this right through the Council’s consultation mechanisms such as the
Citizens’ Panel. These arrangements are set out in more detail in the
Council’s Consultation Strategy.

1.4  Interpretation and Review of the Constitution
Where the Constitution permits the Council to choose between different
courses of action, the Council will always have regard to the purposes stated

above.

The Council will monitor and evaluate the operation of the Constitution as set
out in Article 14.

1.5  Documents which comprise the Constitution:

Part | - Summary and Explanation
Part Il - Articles of the Constitution
Part 11l - Codes and Protocols

Partlv. - Responsibility for Functions
Part V - Rules of Procedure

Part VI - Members’ Allowances Scheme
PartVII - Management Structure

Part Il / Page 2
Reviewed May 2018



Article 2 — Members of the Council

Article 2
Elected Members of the Council

Explanatory Note

This Article sets out the composition of the Council, eligibility to stand for
election as a Member of the Council and the form of election to be used.

The Article also contains a section on the roles and functions of members of
the Council.

The Atrticle also deals with the rights and duties of members, especially as
they affect access to land, buildings, documents and information and any
confidentiality requirements surrounding the latter.

2.1

(a)

(b)

2.2

2.3

Composition and Eligibility

Composition

The Council comprises 36 members, otherwise called Councillors. One or
more Members will be elected by the voters of a ward in accordance with the
scheme approved by the Secretary of State.

There is a distinction to be drawn between the ‘Council’, being 36 Councillors
formally meeting, and the ‘Authority’, that is the officer core led by the Head of
Paid Service.

Eligibility

Only registered voters of the district, or those living or working here, or those
who own or rent land in the area will be eligible to hold the office of Councillor.

Election and Terms of Councillors

The ordinary election of all Councillors is held on the first Thursday in May
beginning in 2011 and every four years after that. The term of office of
Councillors will be four years and will start on the fourth day after being
elected and following the signing of the Acceptance of Office, and will finish
on the fourth day after the date of the next regular election.

Roles and Functions of all Councillors

All Councillors will —

(a) collectively be the ultimate policy-makers;

Part Il / Page 3

Reviewed May 2018



Article 2 — Members of the Council

2.4

2.5

2.6

(b) represent the needs and interest of the whole of the district of West
Lindsey while representing their communities and bring their views into
the Council’s decision-making process i.e. become the advocate of, and
for, their communities;

(c) contribute to the good governance of the area and actively encourage
community participation and public involvement in decision making;

(d) effectively represent the interests of their ward and of individual
constituents and act as an advocate for constituents in
resolving particular concerns or grievances;

(e) balance different interests identified within wards and represent the district
as a whole;

(f) be involved in decision making;

(9) participate in the governance and management of the Council; and
(h) maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics;
(

i) Represent the Council through membership of Outside Bodies and provide
feedback each year to the Annual meeting of Council.

Engagement

The Council recognises the importance of its relationship with the
communities it represents and all those who receive its services in order to
meet its desired outcomes. It achieves these aims in the following ways

e By recognising the opportunity for the public and external bodies to be
involved in its business through its committee structure and consultation
strategy
By making appropriate Councillor appointments to other bodies
By ensuring that the Councillor representative role is meaningful and
recognises the needs of the electorate

Rights and duties

Councillors will have such rights of access to such documents and
information, land and buildings of the Council as required for the proper
discharge of their functions and in accordance with the law. Councillors will
not publicise information which is confidential or exempt without the consent
of the Council or divulge information given in confidence to anyone other than
a Councillor or officer entitled to know it. For these purposes, “confidential”
and “exempt” information are defined in the Access to Information Procedure
Rules in Part V of this Constitution.

Member development
Councillors will have training and development opportunities to support them

in carrying out their duties and will be expected to attend those that are
relevant to any role they carry out within the Council.

Part Il / Page 4

Reviewed May 2018



Article 2 — Members of the Council

2.7

2.8

2.9

Conduct

Councillors will at all times observe the Members’ Code of Conduct and the
Protocol on Operational Conventions set out in Part Il of the Constitution.

Allowances

Councillors will be entitled to receive allowances in accordance with the
Members’ Allowances Scheme set out in Part VI of this Constitution.

Cessation of membership

(@)

A Councillor will cease to be a member if they resign by giving notice in
writing to the Head of Paid Service, or if they fail to observe the
requirement to attend council meetings as prescribed by section 85 of
the Local Government Act 1972 or if they are disqualified from holding
office by virtue of section 80 of the Local Government Act 1972 or any
other statutory provision.

With regard to the requirement to attend meetings, a member must
attend at least one relevant meeting during a period of six months to
remain qualified to hold office. A relevant meeting includes the full
Council, any committee, sub-committee, joint committee or external
body to which the member has been formally appointed.

If a member believes that there is an exceptional and unavoidable
reason why s/he is unable to attend a relevant meeting during a period
of six months or to otherwise perform their proper duties as a Councillor
for part or all of the same period, the member concerned may seek a
dispensation from the Council by writing to the Head of Paid Service
explaining the reason for their unavoidable absence and the period to
which the absence will relate. This will be reported to the Council at its
next ordinary meeting. The Council will decide whether or not to grant
such an exemption to the attendance requirement and will only do so in
exceptional circumstances and with evidence that the absence is
unavoidable. An exemption cannot be granted if a particular member's
absence has already exceeded six months by the date of the Council
meeting.

Part Il / Page 5

Reviewed May 2018



Article 3 - The Public and the Council

Article 3
The Public and the Council

Explanatory Note

This Article sets out what citizens can expect from the council and what rights
they have. However, with rights come responsibilities and it is also the role of
the Constitution to show how the council expects to be treated in return.

3.1 Rights of the Public

The public have the following rights. Their rights to information and to
participate are explained in more detail in the Access to Information Procedure
Rules in Part V of this Constitution.

3.2  Voting and petitions

Electors on the electoral roll for the district have the right to vote for their local
Councillor(s) and sign a petition to request a referendum for an elected
mayor form of constitution. For a petition to be valid to require a referendum,
the number of signatories to it must equate to no less than five percent of the
local government electorate of the district. Electors will have a right to vote
for an elected mayor in the event of a referendum being held.

3.3 Information

The public have the right to:

(a)  attend meetings of the Council and its committees, except where
confidential or exempt information is likely to be disclosed, and the
meeting is therefore held in private;

(b)  see committee reports and background papers, except where
confidential or exempt information is likely to be disclosed, and any
records of decisions made by the Council and its committees;

(c) inspect the Council’s accounts and make their views known to the
external auditor; and

(d) information pursuant to a request made in accordance with the
provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and other relevant
legislation.

3.4  Participation

The public can participate in the following ways:

Part Il / Page 6
Reviewed May 2018



Article 3 - The Public and the Council

3.5

3.6

(@) The agenda for every ordinary meeting of the Council includes an item
for questions/statements from the public. The question/statement must
relate to matters which are within the powers and functions of the
Council or which affect the district. Questions/statements will be dealt
with on a first come first served basis and should be submitted in writing
at least three clear working days before the meeting.

(b) The Council has adopted a petition scheme under which petitions with
300 or more signatures will be debated at a council meeting.

() The Council also has arrangements in place for the public to participate
in meetings of Committees which consider Policy and Regulatory
functions.

(d) The Council is committed to working at a local level to support its
communities and has split the District into six overall areas. These
areas are:-

Caistor

Fossdyke

Gainsborough

Market Rasen

Trent

Witham

supported through the Authority’s structure.

(e) The West Lindsey Citizens Panel of about 1,000 residents provides
ideas, opinions and feedback to the council on its services.

Full details of these various forms of public participation (and others that may
be agreed by the Council) are available from the Council and on its website.

Complaints
The Public have the right to complain to:

(@) the Council itself under its complaints scheme;

(b) the Local Government Ombudsman, but should normally only do this
after using the Council’s own complaints scheme;

(c) the Monitoring Officer about a breach of the Members’ Code of
Conduct.

The Responsibilities of the Public

A healthy democracy depends upon active citizenship. The public are
encouraged to make conscientious use of their roles as both voters and
members of a wider community.

Members of the public must not be violent, abusive or threatening to
Councillors or officers and must not harm property owned by the Council,
Councillors or officers.

Part Il / Page 7

Reviewed May 2018



Article 4 - The Council

Article 4
The Council

Explanatory Note

The Local Government Act 2000 gives the Council responsibility for approving
the policy framework and budget. A list of the statutory and non statutory
plans which fall within the policy framework appear below. The Council as a
whole is responsible for delegating functions and has a role in holding
committees to account.

4.1  Council Meetings
There are three types of Council meeting:

(a) the annual meeting;
(b) ordinary meetings;
(c) extraordinary meetings,

and they will be conducted in accordance with the Council Procedure Rules in
Part V of this Constitution. These meetings may also be webcast.

4.2 Membership
All 36 members of the Council.
4.3 Role of the Full Council

To act as a forum where all Members can meet regularly, act as a focus for
the Authority, discuss and debate issues of importance to the district and
decide the Authority’s budgetary and policy framework.

4.4  Functions of the Council

(@)  To approve and adopt the following plans and strategies which
together make up the Council’s budgetary and policy framework:
. Budget' and Council Tax including Council tax base

Corporate Plan

Community Safety Plan (Crime and Disorder Reduction)

Local Plan

Housing Strategy Statement

Statements of Licensing Policy and Gambling Policy

Commercial Plan

Pay Policy Statement

! The budget includes the allocation of financial resources to different services and projects, proposed
contingency funds, the council tax base, setting the Council Tax, controlling the Council’s borrowing requirement
and capital expenditure in line with CIPFA’s “Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities”, and the
setting of virement limits.

Part Il / Page 8
Reviewed May 2018



Article 4 - The Council

In addition, the Full Council will consider at its annual meeting whether
any additional plans or strategies, both statutory and non-statutory,
should be adopted or approved.

To adopt and change the Constitution when necessary after
consideration by the Governance and Audit Committee, subject to
Article 14.

At the annual meeting to appoint the Leader and Deputy Leader of the
Council;

To consider a resolution to remove the Leader from office and appoint
a replacement Leader;

To appoint annually the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council;

To agree and/or amend the terms of reference for committees,
deciding on their composition and making appointments to them;

To appoint representatives to outside bodies;

To adopt a Members’ allowances scheme under Part VI of the
Constitution;

To determine any changes to the name of the district;

To confirm the appointment and the dismissal of the Head of the Paid
Service;

To make, amend, revoke, re-enact or adopt bye laws and to promote or
oppose the making of local legislation or personal bills;

To consider those matters referred to it from time to time by the policy
committees, Challenge and Improvement committee and by other
council committees;

To confer the title of Honorary Alderman or Freeman;

To exercise all local choice functions which the Council decides should
be undertaken by itself rather than the policy committees;

To receive and consider reports from the Council’s three statutory
officers;

To permit members of the public to ask questions of the Leader and
other office holders or make statements;

Reviewed May 2018

Part Il / Page 9



Article 4 - The Council

To consider and debate motions raised by Councillors, the process of
which is set out in the Council Procedure Rules;

To consider questions raised by Councillors, the process of which is
set out in the Council Procedure Rules;

To debate issues that are the subject of petitions signed by a specified
number of people (as set out in the Petitions Scheme in the appendix
to the Constitution)

To consider all other matters which, by law, must be reserved to
Council.

Reviewed May 2018

Part Il / Page 10



Article 5 - Chairing the Council

Article 5
Chairing the Council

5.1

5.2

5.3

Role and function of the Chairman

The Chairman of the Council and in his/her absence, the Vice-Chairman,
have the following roles and functions:

(@)  Ceremonial and civic role
(b)  Chairing the full Council meeting.
Ceremonial and civic role

The Chairman of the Council shall be regarded as the ‘First Citizen’ of the
district of West Lindsey. The Chairman is a symbol of the local authority, of
an open society, and a focus for civic pride. The Chairman and his/her
consort will promote the Council as a whole. The Chairman wears the Chain
of Office as a symbol of his/her status.

The Chairman presides at West Lindsey Council functions and at meetings of
the full Council, if present. It is customary for the entrance of the Chairman to
be announced on each occasion at the Council meeting and for all members
of the Council to stand when he/she enters as a mark of respect for the Office
of Chairman.

Chairing the Council Meeting

The Chairman is a member of the Council elected by majority vote of the
Council annually and presides at Council meetings. He/she will have the
following responsibilities:

(@)  to uphold and promote the purposes of the constitution, and to interpret
the constitution when necessary, having regard to appropriate advice
(see Article 15.2);

(b)  to preside over meetings of the Council in a manner which is even
handed between the political parties represented on the Council and
independent members so that its business can be carried out efficiently
and with regard to the rights of all Councillors and the interests of the
community;

(c)  toensure that the Council meeting is a forum for the debate of matters
of concern to the local community and the place at which Members
who do not sit on the policy committees or hold office as chairman of a
committee are able to hold the members and chairmen of the policy
committees to account;

Part Il / Page 11

Reviewed May 2018



Article 5 - Chairing the Council

(d)  to promote public involvement in the Council’s activities; and

(e)  to attend such civic and ceremonial functions as the Council and
he/she determines appropriate.

5.4  Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman
The Chairman and Vice-Chairman will be appointed each year at the annual
meeting of the Council in accordance with the Council Procedure Rules in
Part V of the Constitution.

5.5 Role of Chairman and Vice-Chairman

The roles of Chairman and Vice-Chairman will be carried out having due
regard to the role descriptions in the appendix to this Constitution.

Part Il / Page 12

Reviewed May 2018



Article 6 - Leader of the Council

Article 6
Leader of the Council

6.1

6.2

6.3

The Leader of the Council

The Leader is a Councillor elected by the Council to the position of Leader.
The term of office for the elected Leader is one year. The Leader is elected at
the annual meeting of the Council and holds office until the next following
annual meeting or:

(@)  s/he resigns from the office; or

(b s/he is suspended from being a Councillor under Part Il of the Local
Government Act 2000 (although s/he may resume office at the end of
the period of suspension); or

(c) s/he is no longer a Councillor; or

(d)  s/heis removed from office by resolution of the Council in which case a
new Leader shall be elected at the next appropriate meeting.

Election of the Leader

Nominations for the position of Leader will be made in writing to the Head of
Paid Service of the Council no later than seven working days before the day of
the annual meeting (or next appropriate meeting in respect of (a) to (d) in
paragraph 6.1). The proposer must first obtain the consent of the nominee.
Nominations must be proposed and seconded. In the event that more than
one eligible nomination is received a ballot of the members will be held at the
annual meeting. The Chairman of the Council will preside and, in the event of
an equality of votes will exercise a casting vote in accordance with Council
Procedure Rule 14.2.

Role of the elected Leader

The Leader of the Council will have the following roles, rights and
responsibilities, in addition to those set out in Article 2.3

(@)  to be the local authority’s principal public spokesman;
(b)  to give clear leadership to the Council and the community;
(c)  to be the lead member for matters regarding the priorities and aims of

the administration and its political manifesto;

( to report as necessary to the Council;

(e)  to be the Councillor of first choice to represent the Council at member
level meetings with other local authorities and with other organisations;

() to act as the principal contact for the Executive Directors in seeking
views and taking soundings at the political level across all groups;

(g) to be Chairman of the Policy and Resources Committee unless s/he
signifies that s/he does not wish to serve.

e

Part Il / Page 13

Reviewed May 2018



Article 6 - Leader of the Council

The Leader of the Council may not be the Chairman of the Council, a member
of the Challenge and Improvement Committee, the Governance and Audit
Committee or any sub-committee, working party, or panel set up by these
committees. The Leader may be a member of but may not hold office on the
Licensing and Regulatory and Planning Committees.

6.4 Deputy Leader of the Council
The Council will, at the Annual Meeting, elect a Deputy Leader to act in the
notified absence of the Leader, such notice to be given in writing by the
Leader to the Head of Paid Service.

6.5 Role and Function of the Leader of the Opposition

To be the key political contact for matters relating to the priorities and aims of
the opposition.

6.6 Leadership roles
The roles of Leader of the Council, Deputy Leader of the Council and Leader

of the Opposition will be carried out having due regard to the role descriptions
in the appendix to this Constitution.

Part Il / Page 14

Reviewed May 2018



Article 7 - Overview and Scrutiny

Article 7
Overview and Scrutiny

Explanatory Note

The overview and scrutiny function is a central element to this constitution.
The Challenge and Improvement Committee, which carries out the scrutiny
function will meet in public to discuss and make recommendations on the
development of policies and hold the policy committees to account for their
actions. It will also have a key role in considering other matters of local
concern and ensuring that reviews are conducted robustly.

The guiding principle for the work of scrutiny is that it should be consensual
and positive. The emphasis of the work should be on making an active and
positive contribution to the development of policy and the discharge of the
Council’s functions and roles. This is best achieved by an inclusive process
covering members, partners, service users and employees.

7.1 Terms of Reference

The Council will appoint a Challenge and Improvement Committee, the
purpose of which is to manage and co-ordinate the overview and scrutiny
process in accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules set
out in Part V of the constitution. The Challenge and Improvement Committee
has the power to appoint time limited working parties, panels and one-day
commissions as necessary.

7.2  General role
Within its terms of reference the Challenge and Improvement Committee will:

(@)  conduct reviews of policy, services or aspects of service that have
either been referred by a policy committee or the Council, relate to the
Forward Plan or have been chosen by the committee according to the
agreed criteria for selecting such reviews;

(b) approve and keep under review an annual overview and scrutiny work
programme, including the work programme of any scrutiny panels
established in accordance with the Challenge and Improvement
Committee work programme;

(c) approve the scope, timetable and method for each review by a scrutiny
panel, working party or one-day commission put in place and ensure
that such reviews are monitored and managed efficiently and in
accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules.

Part Il / Page 15

Reviewed May 2018



Article 7 - Overview and Scrutiny

7.3  Policy

make reports and recommendations to the Council, the Leader, a
policy committee or any other Council committee arising from the
exercise of these terms of reference;

consider the Forward Plan and comment as appropriate to the decision
maker on proposed decisions which relate to services within their remit
(before they are taken by the appropriate policy committee);

exercise the powers of call in and scrutiny in relation to policy
committee decisions made but not implemented, as set out in section
21(3) of the Local Government Act 2000 and challenge such decisions
in accordance with the procedure set out in the Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules in Part V of this Constitution;

comment on the proposed annual service and budget plans for all
council services before final approval by the Policy and Resources
Committee and Council;

take an overview of the policies, forward plans and related authorities
of all public bodies and agencies as they affect the Council’s area or its
inhabitants;

maintain under review the arrangements for the performance
monitoring of council services; and

discharge the statutory functions arising under section 19 of the Police
and Justice Act 2006 relating to issues of crime and disorder and to
develop and implement such procedures, protocols and criteria as
deemed by the Committee to be appropriate.

development and review

The Challenge and Improvement Committee may:

(@)

(b)

assist the Council in the development of its budget and policy
framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues;

conduct research, community and other consultation in the analysis of
policy issues and possible options;

consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance
community participation in the development of policy options;

question members of committees and officers about their advice on
issues and proposals affecting the area; and

Reviewed May 2018

Part Il / Page 16



Article 7 - Overview and Scrutiny

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

(e) liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether
national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people
are enhanced by collaborative working.

Scrutiny

The Challenge and Improvement Committee may:

(@)  review and scrutinise the decisions made by, and performance of,
committees and council officers both in relation to individual decisions
and the pattern of decisions;

(b)  review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its
policy objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas;

()  question members of committees and officers about their decisions,
whether generally in comparison with service delivery plans and
performance indicators over a period of time or in relation to particular
decisions, initiatives or projects;

(d)  make recommendations to the appropriate committee and/or Council
arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process;

(e)  review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the
area and invite reports from them by requesting them to address the
committee and local people about their activities and performance; and

(f) question and gather evidence from any person (with his/her consent).
Finance

The Challenge and Improvement Committee may exercise overall
responsibility for any finances made available to it.

Annual Report

The Challenge and Improvement Committee must report annually to the
Council on both its proposed work plan and its work in the preceding year, and
to include an update of any operating methodology put in place.

Officers

The Challenge and Improvement Committee may require officers to attend

and answer questions provided that the request is made through the Head of
Paid Service or in accordance with any agreed protocol.

The Challenge and Improvement Committee will be politically balanced.

Part Il / Page 17

Reviewed May 2018



Article 8 - Committees

Article 8
Committees

Explanatory Note

The Council will appoint committees and sub-committees to carry out the
various functions for which it is responsible. The detailed terms of reference
of these committees are set out in Part IV of this Constitution, Responsibility
for Functions.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Policy committees

The implementation of the Council’s budget and policy framework is
undertaken by the following policy committees:

. Policy and Resources
. Prosperous Communities

These committees will be responsible for all the Council’s functions except
those which by law must be dealt with by the Full Council, by a regulatory
committee or by an overview and scrutiny committee. They will consist of no
more than 15 members and be politically balanced.

Regulatory committees

Those functions specified by law as being regulatory functions will be
undertaken by the Governance and Audit Committee, Licensing and
Regulatory Committees and the Planning Committee. Hearings about
licensing matters will be considered by the Licensing Sub-Committee for
liquor licensing or gambling (Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005) and
by the Regulatory Sub-Committee for all other matters.

Overview and scrutiny committees

The overview and scrutiny function will be carried out by the Challenge and
Improvement Committee in accordance with the arrangements in Article 7 of
this Constitution.

Other committees

The Council will appoint other Committees and the other bodies set out on
the chart below.

Part Il / Page 18

Reviewed May 2018



Article 8 - Committees

8.5 Proceedings of the committees

Proceedings of the all committees shall take place in accordance with the
Council Procedure Rules set out in Part V of this Constitution insofar as they
apply to committees and any specific statutory requirements.

Part Il / Page 19

Reviewed May 2018



0z ebed /|| Led

..........  IOOOCOTIRTNO0E BaOGCDOTTTIIC

Scrutin Other
functions ! functions

1 1

AN BT GRS ' e

Challenge &
Improvement
Committee

Prosperous Planning
Communities Committee

Committee

Regulatory
Committee
Appeals Board

Corporate Policy &
Resources Committee
Licensing
Committee

Governance & Audit

Committee : ’ Chief Officer
Employment
Committee

Remuneration
Panel

Committee Other bodies

|
ic Planning |
I

Reviewed May 2018

Sed)IWWOY - 8 BPIUY




Article 9 - The Standards Sub-Committee

Article 9
The Standards Sub-Committee

Explanatory Note

The Localism Act 2011 made fundamental changes to the system of regulation of
standards of conduct for elected and co-opted Councillors and no longer requires a
Standards Committee, however the full Council meeting on 2 July 2012 resolved to
establish a sub-committee of the Governance and Audit Committee to deal with
matters of standards in public life and to hear complaints regarding breaches of the
Code of Conduct.

9.1 Standards Sub-Committee
The Council has established a Standards Sub-Committee.

9.2 Composition

Political Balance

Council on 3 September 2012 agreed to suspend political balance rules in
terms of the Standards Sub-Committee.

(@) Membership
The Standards Sub-Committee will comprise:-
¢ six Councillors where the membership involves cross-party working
e three members of parish councils in the Council’s area (parish
members)
(b) Parish members

Parish members are not entitled to vote at meetings.

At least one parish member must be present when matters relating to
town/parish councils/meetings or their members are being considered.

9.3 Role and Function
The Standards Sub-Committee will have the following roles and functions:

(a) promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by Councillors and
co-opted members;

(b) assisting the Councillors and co-opted members to observe the Members
Code of Conduct;

Part Il / Page 21

Reviewed May 2018



Article 9 - The Standards Sub-Committee

—_ o~
-

advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members’ Code of
Conduct;

monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct;

advising, training or arranging to train Councillors and co-opted members
on matters relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct;

granting dispensations to Councillors and co-opted members from
requirements relating to interests set out in the Members’ Code of
Conduct;

to hear complaints locally regarding alleged breaches of the Code;
exercising such other functions as the Council considers appropriate; and

the exercise of (a) to (g) above in relation to the town/parish councils/
meetings and their members in the Council’s area.

9.4 Quorum

A meeting of the Standards sub-committee shall not be quorate unless at least three
members of that sub-committee are present for its duration.

Note: At least one parish member must be present when matters relating to
town/parish councils/meetings or their members are being considered.

Part Il / Page 22

Reviewed May 2018



Article 10 - Joint Arrangements

Article 10
Joint Arrangements

Explanatory Note

The Local Government Act 2000 and Regulations enable authorities to make
use of joint arrangements with other authorities and delegate to other local
authorities.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

Joint Arrangements

(@) The Council may establish joint arrangements with one or more local
authorities and/or their Executives to exercise functions of any of the
participating authorities or advise the Council. Such arrangements
may involve the appointment of a joint committee with these other local
authorities or local strategic partnership(s).

(b) Details of any joint arrangements, including any delegations to joint
committees, will be found in the Council’s Responsibility for Functions
in Part IV of this Constitution.

Access to Information

The Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part V of this Constitution and
the Local Government Act 1972 apply.

Delegation to and from other Local Authorities

(@)  The Council may delegate functions to another local authority or, in
certain circumstances, the Executive of another local authority.

(o)  The decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from another
local authority shall be reserved to the Council meeting.

Contracting Out

The Council may contract out to another body or organisation functions which
may be exercised by an officer and which are subject to an Order under
section 70 of the Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 1994, or under
contracting arrangements where the contractor acts as the Council’s agent
under usual contracting principles, provided there is no delegation of the
Council’s discretionary decision making.

Part 11 / Page 23

Reviewed May 2018



Article 10 - Joint Arrangements

10.5 Arrangements to Promote Well Being

The Council, in order to promote the economic, social or environmental
wellbeing of its area, may:

(@)  enterinto arrangements or agreements with any person or body;

(b)  co-operate with, or facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of, any person
or body; and

(c) exercise on behalf of that person or body any function of that person or
body.

Part Il / Page 24

Reviewed May 2018



Article 11 - Officers

Article 11
Officers

This Article should be read in conjunction with the Appendices entitled Functions of
the Monitoring Officer, Head of Paid Service Protocol and Chief Finance Officer
Protocol.

Explanatory Note

This Article describes the structure of the senior management of the Authority
and the roles of the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance
Officer. The use of the word “officers” means all employees and staff engaged
by the Council to carry out its functions. This word has also been used

instead of “employees” to cover those engaged under short term, agency or
other non employed situation.

11.1 Management Structure

(a) General
The Council may engage such staff (referred to as officers) as it considers
necessary to carry out its functions.

(b) Chief Officers
The Council will engage persons for the following posts, who will be
designated Chief Officers -

Executive Director of Operations, Executive Director
of Resources, Executive Director of Economic &
Commercial Growth.

(c) Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer
(Section 151 officer)
The Council will designate the following posts as shown —
Head of Paid Service
Chief Finance Officer
Monitoring Officer

Such posts will have the functions described in Articles 11.2 — 11.4 below.

(d) Structure
The Head of Paid Service will determine and publicise a description of the
overall structure of the Council showing the management structure and
deployment of officers. This is set out at Part VIl of this Constitution.

Reviewed May 2018
Part Il / Page 25



Article 11 - Officers

11.2 Functions of the Head of Paid Service
(a) Discharge of Functions by the Council

The Head of Paid Service will report to Council on the manner in which the
discharge of the Council’s functions is co-ordinated, the number and grade
of officers required for the discharge of functions and the organisation of
officers.

(b) Restrictions on Functions

The Head of Paid Service may not be the Monitoring Officer but may hold
the post of Chief Finance Officer if a qualified accountant.

11.3 Functions of the Monitoring Officer
(a) Maintaining the Constitution

The Monitoring Officer will make arrangements to maintain an up to date
version of the Constitution and will ensure that it is widely available for
consultation by members, officers and the public.

(b) Ensuring Lawfulness and Fairness of Decision Making

After consulting the Head of Paid Service and Chief Finance Officer, the
Monitoring Officer will report to the Council if he/she considers that any
proposal, decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness or if any
decision or omission has given, or would give, rise to maladministration.
Such a report will have the effect of stopping the proposal or decision
being implemented until the report has been considered.

(c) Supporting the Standards Sub-Committee
The Monitoring Officer will contribute to the promotion and maintenance of
high standards of conduct through provision of support to the Standards
Sub-Committee.

(d) Receiving Reports
The Monitoring Officer will receive and act on reports made by Ethical
Standards Officers, the Standards Sub-Committee and decisions of the
case tribunals.

(e) Conducting Investigations
The Monitoring Officer will conduct investigations into matters referred by

the Standards Sub-Committee and make reports or recommendations in
respect of them

Reviewed May 2018
Part Il / Page 26



Article 11 - Officers

(f) Proper Officer for Access to Information
The Monitoring Officer will make arrangements to ensure that decisions,
together with the reasons for those decisions and relevant officer reports
and background papers, are made publicly available as soon as possible.

A full list of the Monitoring Officer’s statutory responsibilities is in the appendix
to this Constitution.

11.4 Functions of the Chief Finance Officer

(a) Ensuring Lawfulness and Financial Prudence of Decision Making
After consulting the Head of Paid Service and the Monitoring Officer, the
Chief Finance Officer will report to the Council and the Council’s external
auditor if he/she considers that any proposal, decision or course of action
will involve incurring unlawful expenditure, or is unlawful and is likely to
cause a loss or deficiency or if the Council is about to enter an item of
account unlawfully.

(b) Administration of Financial Affairs

The Chief Finance Officer will have responsibility for the administration of
the financial affairs of the Council.

(c) Contributing to Corporate Management

The Chief Finance Officer will contribute to the corporate management of
the Council, in particular through the provision of professional advice.

(d) Providing Advice
The Chief Finance Officer will provide advice on the scope of powers and
authority to take decisions, maladministration, financial impropriety and
probity to all Councillors, and will support and advise Councillors and
officers in their respective roles.

(e) Giving Financial Information

The Chief Finance Officer will provide financial information to the media,
members of the public and the community.

(f) Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO)
The Chief Finance Officer as the Money Laundering Reporting Officer will:
. ensure compliance with the appropriate money laundering regulations;

o take an overview of the system in place for detecting money
laundering and be responsible for reporting suspicious transactions to

Reviewed May 2018
Part Il / Page 27



Article 11 - Officers

the relevant authorities;

. ensure officers are trained to recognise transactions that may indicate
money laundering and ensure officers are aware of the Proceeds of
Crime Act 2002, Money Laundering Regulations 2007 and the
Terrorism Act 2002;

. the Deputy Money Laundering Reporting Officer, in the absence of
the MLRO is authorised to undertake the above role and
responsibilities.

11.5 Duty to Provide Sufficient Resources to the Monitoring Officer and Chief
Finance Officer

The Council will provide the Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer with
such officers, accommodation and other resources as are in the opinion of
those officers sufficient to allow their duties to be performed.

11.6 Conduct

Officers will comply with the Protocol on Operational Conventions set out in
Part 11l of this Constitution.

11.7 Employment

The recruitment, selection and dismissal of officers will comply with the Officer
Employment Procedure Rules set out in Part V of this Constitution.

Reviewed May 2018
Part Il / Page 28



Article 12 - Decision Making

Article 12
Decision Making

Explanatory Note

Some decisions are for the Council to make or to delegate to committees,
sub-committees and/or officers, or to joint committees, joint arrangements or
other authorities. Those delegations must be recorded in the Council’s
Constitution, which must be kept up to date.

12.1 Responsibility for decision making

The Council will issue and keep up to date a record of what part of the Council
or individual has responsibility for particular types of decisions or decisions
relating to particular areas or functions. This record is set out in Part IV of this
Constitution.

12.2 Principles of decision making

All decisions of the Council, its committees and those with delegated powers
will be made in accordance with the following principles:

(a) proportionality - the action proposed must be proportionate to the desired
outcome;

due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;
respect for Human Rights;

in accordance with the law;

a presumption in favour of openness;

contribute to the well-being of the area; and

) clarity of aims and desired outcomes.

b

AN TN TN TN N N
Q>0 Q0
N e S

12.3 Decision making by Council

Subject to Article 12.6, the Council meeting will follow the Council Procedure
Rules set out in Part V of this Constitution when considering any matter.

12.4 Decision making by the Challenge and Improvement Committee
The Challenge and Improvement Committee will follow the Overview and

Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out in Part V of this Constitution when
considering any matter.

Part 11 / Page 29

Reviewed May 2018



Article 12 - Decision Making

12.5 Decision making by other committees and sub-committees established by
the Council

Subject to Article 12.6, other council committees and sub-committees will follow
those parts of the Council Procedure Rules set out in Part V of this Constitution
as apply to them.

12.6 Decision making by council bodies acting as tribunals

The Council, a Councillor or an officer acting as a tribunal or in a quasi-judicial
manner or determining/considering (other than for the purposes of giving
advice) the civil rights and obligations or the criminal responsibility of any
person will follow a proper procedure which accords with the requirements of
natural justice and the right to a fair trial contained in Article 6 of the European
Convention on Human Rights.

Part Il / Page 30

Reviewed May 2018



Article 13 - Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters

Article 13
Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters

Explanatory Note

This Article refers to the Authority’s Financial and Contract Procedure Rules,
which are contained in Part V of this Constitution.

13.1 Financial Management

The management of the Council’s financial affairs will be conducted in
accordance with the Financial Procedure Rules set out in Part V of this
Constitution.

13.2 Contracts

Every contract made by the Council will comply with the Contract Procedure
Rules set out in Part V of this Constitution.

13.3 Legal Proceedings

The Head of Paid Service is authorised to institute, defend or participate in any
legal proceedings in any case where such action is necessary to give effect to
decisions of the Authority or in any case where he/she considers that such
action is necessary to protect the Council’s interests.

13.4 Authentication of Documents

Where any document is necessary to any legal procedure or proceedings on
behalf of the Council, it will be signed by the Head of Paid Service or other

person authorised by him/her unless any enactment otherwise authorises or
requires, or the Council has given requisite authority to, some other person.

13.5 Common Seal of the Council

The Common Seal of the Council will be kept in a safe place in the custody of
the Executive Directors. A decision of the Council, or any part of it, will be
sufficient authority for sealing any document necessary to give effect to the
decision.

The Common Seal will be affixed to those documents which, in the opinion of
the Executive Directors, should be sealed. The affixing of the Common Seal
will be attested by the Head of Paid Service, or an Executive Director following
consultation with the Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer, or in their
absence their appointed deputies.

Part Il / Page 31
Reviewed May 2018



Article 14 - Review and Revision of the Constitution

Article 14
Review and Revision of the Constitution

Explanatory Note

It will be important for the Council to monitor and review its Constitution and
to base revisions on the available evidence. Constitutional review is a local
choice activity.

141

14.2

14.3

14.4

Duty to monitor, review and if necessary implement changes to the
Constitution

The Council will monitor and review the operation of the Constitution annually
and if necessary implement any changes to ensure that the aims and
principles of the Constitution are given full effect.

Change from alternative arrangements to executive arrangements

The Council must take reasonable steps to consult local electors and other
interested persons in the area when drawing up proposals.

Protocol for monitoring and review of Constitution by Monitoring Officer

A key role for the Monitoring Officer is to be aware of the strengths and
weaknesses of the Constitution adopted by the Council, and to make
recommendations annually for ways in which it could be amended in order to
better achieve the purposes set out in Article 1. In undertaking this task, the
Monitoring Officer may:

e  observe meetings of different parts of the member and officer structure;
e undertake an audit trail of a sample of decisions;
e record and analyse issues raised with him/her by members, officers, the
public and other relevant stakeholders;
. compare practices in this authority with those in other comparable
authorities, or national examples of best practice: and
o undertake a review of each committee’s effectiveness annually,
the findings of which will be fed into and used to inform the
annual review of the Constitution

Changes to the Constitution

Changes to the Constitution may only be made by the Full Council after prior
consideration by the Governance and Audit Committee of a report by the
Monitoring Officer on any proposal, with the exception of changes to the
Financial and Contract Procedure Rules which are delegated to the
Governance and Audit Committee between Annual Councils.

Part Il / Page 32

Reviewed May 2018



Article 15 - Suspension, Interpretation & Publication

Article 15

Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the
Constitution

Explanatory Note

This Article ensures that the Articles of the Constitution may not be

suspended.

This provides certainty and stability to the fundamental aspects

of the Council’s governance. However, it does provide for Rules of Procedure
to be suspended in certain circumstances.

15.1 Suspension of the Constitution

(@)

Limit to Suspension

The Atrticles of this Constitution may not be suspended. The
Procedure Rules may be suspended by the Council to the extent
permitted within those Rules and the law.

Procedure to Suspend

A motion to suspend any Rules will not be moved without notice unless
at least one half of the whole number of Councillors is present. The
extent and duration of suspension will be proportionate to the results to
be achieved, taking into account the purposes of the Constitution set
out in Article I.

15.2 Interpretation

The ruling of the Chairman of the Council as to the construction or
application of this Constitution or as to any proceedings of the Council shall

not b
have

e challenged at any meeting of the Council. Such interpretation will
regard to the purposes of this Constitution contained in Article I.

15.3 Publication

(@)

(b)

(©)

The Monitoring Officer will provide a copy of this Constitution to each
member of the Council upon delivery to him/her of that individual's
declaration of acceptance of office on the member first being elected to
the Council.

The Monitoring Officer will ensure that copies are available, and can
be purchased by members of the local press and public on payment
of a reasonable fee.

The Monitoring Officer will ensure that the summary of the Constitution
is made widely available within the area and is updated as necessary.

Reviewed May 2018

Part Il / Page 33



Schedule 1 - Alternative Arrangements

Schedule 1
Description of Alternative Arrangements

The following parts of this Constitution constitute the alternative arrangements:

(a) Atrticle 7 (Overview and Scrutiny) and the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure
Rules; and

(b) Article 8 (Committees).

Part Il / Page 34

Reviewed May 2018



District Council

Constitution of West Lindsey District Council

Part |l

Codes and Protocols




Codes and Protocols

Contents

Members’ Code Of CONAUCT. .......u e e

Member/Officer Relations Protocol ....

Local Code of Corporate Governance



West Lindsey District Council

Members’ Code of
Conduct

Adopted by Council — 8 May 2017



Members’ Code of Conduct
Contents

Part 1 — The Principles

Part 2 — General Provisions
Appendix A

Appendix B

Glossary

12

13

15



Members’ Code of Conduct

WEST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL
MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

FOR ELECTED AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS OF WEST LINDSEY DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Part 1: The Principles

As a member or co-opted member of West Lindsey District Council, you have
a responsibility to represent the community and work constructively with your
fellow members, our staff and partner organisations to secure better social,
economic and environmental outcomes for all.

When acting in this capacity you must have regard to the following principles
in carrying out your duties, in accordance with the requirements of the
Localism Act 2011 (The Act) :-

Selflessness.
Integrity.
Objectivity.
Accountability.
Openness.
Honesty.
Leadership.

NoakswNpE

More specifically that means observing the following rules of behavior to
maintain public confidence in this Authority:-

Principle 1 — Selflessness

You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly confer an
advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other
material benefits for yourself, your family, a friend or close associate.

Principle 2 — Inteqgrity

You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to outside
individuals or organisations that might seek to influence you in the performance
of your official duties.

Principle 3 — Objectivity

When carrying out your public duties / business, including making public
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and
benefits, you must make all choices, on merit.

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 1



Members’ Code of Conduct

Principle 4 — Accountability

You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must co-operate
fully with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office.

Principles 5 and 6 — Openness and Honesty

You must be as open as possible in respect of all your decisions and
actions and the decisions and actions of your authority and should be prepared
to give reasons for those decisions and actions. You should only restrict
information when the wider public interest clearly demands it (see general
obligation 4 also).

You must declare any private interests, both pecuniary and non-pecuniary, that
relate to your public duties and must take steps to resolve any conflicts
arising in a way that protects the public interest, including registering and
declaring interests in a manner conforming with the procedures set out in Part
3 of this Code.

Principle 7 — Leadership

You must promote and support the above principles by leadership and
example.

In addition West Lindsey District Council’s Code also includes local provision
relating to

1. Respect Bullying and Harassment
2. Confidential Information
3. Use of Resources

The requirements relating to these aspects are set out in more detail in Part 2 of
this Code under General Obligations.

These principles articulate the fundamental values of public service that
underpin the conduct of members. The following provisions of the Code of
Conduct for members are derived from those principles and provide a set of
enforceable minimum standards for the conduct that is expected of members
and co-opted members of the authority when they are acting in that capacity.

Examples, but not an exhaustive list, of how Elected Members will display
behaviour in accordance with these principles is set out in Appendix A to the
Code.

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 2



Members’ Code of Conduct

Part 2: General Provisions

Introduction and Interpretation

1. (1) This Code applies to you as a member of an authority.
(2) You should read this Code together with the general principles set out above.
(3) Itis your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code.
(4) Inthis Code —
‘meeting” means any meeting of —

(&) your authority;

(b) Any of your authority’s or its committees, sub-committees, joint
committees, subcommittees, or area committees; “member” includes a
co-opted member.

Scope

2. (1) You must comply with this Code whenever you —

(@) conduct the business of your authority (which, in this Code,
includes the business of the office to which you are elected or
appointed);

(b) act, or claim to act or give the impression you are acting as a
representative of your authority, and references to your official
capacity are construed accordingly.

(2) Where you act as a representative of your authority:-

(@) on another relevant authority, you must, when acting for that
other authority, comply with that other authority’s code of
conduct; or

(b) on any other body, you must, when acting for that other body,
comply with your authority’s code of conduct, except and
insofar as it conflicts with any other lawful obligations to which
that other body may be subiject.

(3) Members should note that the Act creates specific criminal
offences in relation to disclosable pecuniary interests (disclosable
pecuniary interests are contained in Appendix B together with the
offences)

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 3



Members’ Code of Conduct

General Obligations

3 Respect, Bullying and Harassment
Disrespect, Bullying and Harassment can be emotive and subjective issues.

Employment Law is clear that it is the feelings of the recipient that define bullying
and disrespect so can vary from individual to individual.

Members need to be mindful that such behaviour can manifest itself in a number of
guises, including through the use of electronic communications, social media and
in the absence of a person ( for example if a person is spoken very badly about or
to / present or absent, this can effect third parties and legitimately give rise for
complaints .)

Councillors at all times must show respect to each other, staff and members of the
public and engage with them in an appropriate manner and one that underpins the
mutual respect that is essential for local government. Councillors may not always
agree with the political views of their member colleagues but they will respect the
right for those views to be held.

1) You must treat others with respect.
(2)  You must not —
€) do anything which may cause your authority to breach any of
the equality enactments (as defined in section 33 of the
Equality Act 2006);
(b) bully any person;

(c) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person, including those
who are or are likely to be —

(1) a complainant,
(i) a witness, or

(iii) involved in the administration of any investigation or
proceedings, in relation to an allegation that a member
(including yourself) has failed to comply with his or
her authority’s code of conduct; or

(d) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise
the impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, your

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 4



Members’ Code of Conduct

authority.

Note: Allegations made under this code relating to respect, bullying
and harassment will be assessed within a threshold. This
code is not designed to stifle proper robust political debate
nor will solely malicious allegations be accepted.

4. Confidential information

The disclosure of confidential information can seriously undermine the
position of your Authority. It can be detrimental to the Council’s reputation,
and could result in legal action being taken against your authority. This is
particularly important in relation to the procurement of contracts.

Examples (but not an exhaustive list) of confidential information include: -
e matters which have been discussed in closed /private session

reports which have been marked as exempt or restricted

staffing matters / salaries

code of conduct matters

matters relating to contracts under procurement

Therefore you must not, via any means, including through social media —
(a) disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or
information acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably
to be aware, is of a confidential nature, except where —
()  you have the consent of a person authorised to give it;
(i) you are required by law to do so;
(i) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of
obtaining professional advice provided that the third party

agrees not to disclose the information to any other person; or

(iv) the disclosure is: -
(aa) reasonable and in the public interest; and

(bb) made in good faith and in compliance with the
reasonable requirements of the authority; or

(b) prevent another person from gaining access to information to which
that person is entitled by law.

Guidance Note:  Members considering making a public disclosure are

advised to seek guidance from the Monitoring Officer /
Clerk in the first instance

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 5



Members’ Code of Conduct

5. Use of Resources
You —
(@) must not use or attempt to use your position as a member improperly
to confer on or secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage

or disadvantage; and

(b) must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources
of your authority —

(i) actin accordance with your authority’s reasonable requirements;

(i) ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political
purposes (including party political purposes); and

(c) must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity
made under the relevant legislation in existence at the time.

(d)  Actin accordance with your Authority’s Social Media Policy or
equivalent.

Part 3: Interests

Notification of Interests

6. (1) You must, within 28 days of the adoption of this Code or of taking
office as a member or co-opted member, notify the Monitoring
Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest as defined by
regulations made by the Secretary of State.

Those which are covered by these regulations are listed at Appendix
B of this code.

[Note: the regulations currently in force apply where the disclosable
pecuniary interest is yours, your spouse’s or civil partner’s or is the
pecuniary interest of somebody with whom you are living as a
husband or wife or as if you were civil partners.]

(2) If a disclosable pecuniary interest, as defined above, has not been
entered into the authority’s Register upon notification under paragraph
6 (1), you must disclose the interest to any meeting of the authority
at which you in any matter being considered and whether the matter
is not a ‘sensitive interest’. Following any such disclosure of an
interest, you must notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 6



Members’ Code of Conduct

beginning with the date of disclosure.

(3) In addition to the disclosable pecuniary interests which are the
subject of paragraph 6 (1) above, you must, within 28 days of:-

(a) this code being adopted by or applied to the authority; or
(b) your election or appointment to office (where that is later),

notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of the details of your other
personal interests, where they fall within the descriptions set out in
paragraph 8 below for inclusion in the Register of Interests.

(4) You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new interest or
change to any interest to be registered under the requirements of
paragraphs 6 (1) — (3), notify the Monitoring Officer of the details of
that new interest or change.

Definition of Personal Interest

7. (1) You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where
either:-

(@) itrelates to or is likely to affect —

() any body of which you are a member or in a position of
general control or management and to which you are
appointed or nominated by your authority;

(i) any body —

(aa) exercising functions of a public nature;

(bb) directed to charitable purposes; or

(cc) one of whose principle purposes including the
influence of public opinion or policy (including any
political party or trade union) of which you are a
member or in a position of general control or
management; or

(b) a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be
regarded as affecting your wellbeing or financial position or the
wellbeing or financial position of a relevant person to a greater
extent than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers,
or inhabitants of the electoral division or ward, as the case may
be, affected by the decision.

(2) For the purposes of paragraph 7 (1) (b), a relevant person is —
a member of your immediate family, namely your mother, father,
sister, brother; son daughter, any person habitually living under the
same roof, or

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 7



Members’ Code of Conduct

(@) any person or body who employs or has appointed such
persons, any firm in which they are a partner, or any company
of which they are directors; or

(b) any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial
interest and a class of securities exceeding the nominal value
of £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of
that body.

Definition of Prejudicial Interests

8. The Council has decided that in addition to disclosable pecuniary interests
referred to in paragraph 6 (1) above, you also have a prejudicial interest
if you have a personal interest in any business of the authority where the
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant
facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice
your judgement of the public interest and where that business:-

(a) affects your financial position or the financial position of a person
or body described in paragraph 7; and

(b) relates to the determination of any approval, consent, licence,
permission or registration in relation to you or any person or body
described in paragraph 7.

Disclosure of Interests

Guidance Note:  Members who are unsure whether they have an interest
and, if so, the nature of that interest should seek
guidance from the Monitoring Officer / Clerk (ideally in
advance of the meeting) Ultimately, however, it is for the
Member themselves to determine their position.

9. (1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2) where you have a personal interest in any
business of your authority and where you are aware or ought
reasonably to be aware of the existence of the personal interest and
you attend a meeting of the authority where the business is
considered, you must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of the meeting and prior
to any discussion of the relevant item, or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent to you. You can remain in the meeting, take part
in the debate and vote on the matter.

(2) Where you have a personal interest, but, by virtue of paragraph 14
sensitive information relating to it is not registered in your authority’s
Register of Members Interests, you must indicate to the meeting that
you have a personal interest, but need not disclose the sensitive
information to the meeting.

Reviewed November 2018 Part 1ll/Page 8



Members’ Code of Conduct

Non-Participation in Case of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (Detailed in

Appendix B)

10.

(1) If you are present at any meeting of the authority, and you have a
disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter to be considered or being
considered at the meeting:-

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

2)

you may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting.

you may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the
meeting.

if the interest is not registered, you must disclose the
interest to the meeting.

if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending
notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest
within 28 days.

In addition, you are required to leave the room where the
meeting is held while any discussion or voting takes place.
A Member who has left the meeting should not be visible to the
remaining committee members, or attempt to contact those taking
part in the meeting via electronic means, in order as to not
influence the decision in any way.

It is a criminal offence to participate in a decision in which
you have a DPI

Non participation in case of other (local provision) prejudicial interests

(those which arrive from a personal interest but effect vour or a relevant
persons financial position)

11.

(1) Subject to paragraphs (2) and (3), below where you have a
prejudicial interest in any business of your authority —

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

you may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting.

you may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the
meeting.

if the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest
to the meeting.

if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending
notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest
within 28 days.

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 9



Members’ Code of Conduct

(2) In addition you are required to leave the room where the
meeting is held while any discussion or voting takes place.

A Member who has left the meeting should not be visible to the
remaining committee members, or attempt to contact those taking
part in the meeting via electronic means, in order as to not
influence the decision in any way.

(2) Where you have a prejudicial interest in any business of your
authority, you may attend a meeting but only for the purpose of
making representations, answering questions or giving evidence
relating to the business, provided that the public are also allowed
to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a
statutory right or otherwise, and you leave the room where the
meeting is held immediately after making representations, answering
guestions or giving evidence.

(3) There are some decisions that affect every Member , you may attend a
meeting and vote on a matter where you have a prejudicial interest that
relates to the functions of your authority in respect
of:-

(&) housing, where you are a tenant of your authority provided that
those functions do not relate particularly to your tenancy or lease;

(b) school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, where
you are a parent or guardian of a child in full time education,
or are a parent governor of a school, unless it relates particularly
to the school which the child attends;

(c) statutory sick pay under Part Xl of the Social Security
Contributions and Benefits Act 1992, where you are in receipt
of, or are entitled to the receipt of, such pay;

(d) an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members;

(e) any ceremonial honour given to members; and

() setting council tax or precept under the Local Government
Finance Act 1992.

(9) an interest arising from your membership of another local
authority or parish council.

Dispensations

12. The Governance and Audit Committee may grant you a dispensation,
but only in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on
a matter in which you have a prejudicial interest, including a disclosable

Reviewed November 2018 Part 1ll/Page 10



Members’ Code of Conduct

pecuniary interest.

Reqister of Interests

13. Any interest notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the
Register of Interests. A copy of the Register will be available for public
inspection and will be published on the authority’s website.

Sensitive Interests

14. Where you consider that disclosure of the details of an interest could lead to
you, or a person connected with you, being the subject of violence or
intimidation, and the Monitoring Officer agrees, if the interest is entered
on the Register, copies of the Register that are made available for
inspection and any published version of the Register will exclude details
of the interest but may state that you have an interest, the details of which
are withheld.

Gifts and Hospitality

15. The Council has determined that as a matter of good practice you
must also declare to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days the interest
of any person from whom you have received, in connection with your official
duties as a member, a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least
£50.

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 11



Members’ Code of Conduct

APPENDIX A

As a Member of West Lindsey District Council, my conduct will in particular
address the statutory principles of the code of conduct by:

e Championing the needs of residents — the whole community and in a
special way my constituents, including those who did not vote for me — and
putting their interests first.

e Dealing with representations or enquiries from residents, members of our
communities and visitors fairly, appropriately and impartially.

e Not allowing other pressures, including the financial interests of myself or
others connected to me, to deter me from pursuing constituents’ casework,
the interests of West Lindsey or the good governance of the authority in a
proper manner.

e Exercising independent judgement and not compromising my position by
placing myself under obligations to outside individuals or organisations
who might seek to influence the way | perform my duties as a member/co-
opted member of this authority.

e Listening to the interests of all parties, including relevant advice from
statutory and other professional officers, taking all relevant information into
consideration, remaining objective and making decisions on merit.

e Being accountable for my decisions and co-operating when scrutinised
internally and externally, including by local residents.

e Contributing to making this authority’s decision-making processes as open
and transparent as possible to enable residents to understand the
reasoning behind those decisions and to be informed when holding me and
other members to account but restricting access to information when the
wider public interest or the law requires it.

e Behaving in accordance with all our legal obligations, alongside any
requirements contained within this authority’s policies, protocols and
procedures, including on the use of the Authority’s resources.

e Valuing my colleagues and staff and engaging with them in an appropriate
manner and one that underpins the mutual respect between us that is
essential to good local government.

e Always treating people with respect, including the organisations and public
| engage with and those | work alongside.

e Providing leadership through behaving in accordance with these principles
when championing the interests of the community with other organisations
as well as within this authority.

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 12



Members’ Code of Conduct

Appendix B

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests prescribed by The Relevant Authorities
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012

Disclosable pecuniary interests include not only your interests but also the interests of your
spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you are living as husband or wife or a person
with whom you are living as if they were a civil partner, so far as you are aware of the
interests of that person.

Subject Prescribed description

1. Employment, office, Any employment, office, trade, profession or
trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
vocation

2. Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial
benefit (other than from the relevant authority)
made or provided within the relevant period in
respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying
out duties as a member, or towards the election
expenses of M.

This includes any payment or financial benefit from
a trade union within the meaning of the Trade
Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act
1992(1).

3. Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant
person (or a body in which the relevant person has
a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority—

(a) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and

(b) which has not been fully discharged.

4. Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the
area of the relevant authority.

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 13


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/schedule/made%23f00003

5. Licenses

Members’ Code of Conduct

Any license (alone or jointly with others) to occupy
land in the area of the relevant authority for a month
or longer.

6. Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)—

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person
has a beneficial interest.

7. Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body

where—

(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has
a place of business or land in the area of the
relevant authority; and

(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds
£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or

(i) if the share capital of that body is of more than
one class, the total nominal value of the shares of
any one class in which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.

. It is a criminal offence:-

Vi.

to fail to register a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) you are aware of within
28 days of your election or re-election;

to take part in the debate or vote at any meeting where you have a registered or
unregistered DPI;

to fail to declare at a meeting and/or to take part in the debate or vote, if you are
aware you have a DPI which is not yet registered or notified to the Monitoring
Officer;

if you have declared an unregistered DPI at a meeting, to fail to register that
within 28 days of that declaration;

to provide false or misleading information in relation to any registration or

to be reckless as to its accuracy;

to take any steps or further action on a matter in which you have a DPI other
than referring it elsewhere;

in each case without reasonable excuse

Reviewed November 2018 Part Ill/Page 14



Members’ Code of Conduct

Glossary of Terms

Member:
Act

Meeting

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest

Prejudicial Interest

Personal Interest

Relevant Person

Reviewed November 2018

a person elected or co-opted to office
refers to the Localism Act 2011

a formally arranged gathering,
attended by you in Capacity

as defined in statute and set out in
appendix B to this Code. Only relate
to you or your spouse

Criminal sanctions applicable

local provision — see section 8,

most likely to occur in planning and
licensing matters (as the wording
relates to the granting of a license or
application)

See Section 7

your spouse, mother, father, sister
brother son daughter or anyone
habitually living under the same

Part lll/Page 15



West Lindsey District Council

West Lindsey
District Council

Member/Officer Relations
Protocol




Member /Officer Relations Protocol

Contents
1 Underlying PriNCIPIES ........oooiiiiiiieeeee e 18
2 Roles of Members and Training Requirements............ccccceevivieeeennee 18
3 ROIES Of OFfICEIS....eeiiiiiiiiii e 19
4 Relationship between Chairman of the Council and Leader of the

Council and OffiCerS. .......o.iui 19
5 Relationship between Group Leaders and Executive Directors ........ 20
6 Relationship between Committee Chairmen and Officers .............. 20
7 Relationship between Chairman and Members of the Challenge and

Improvement Committee and Officers.......cccccvveeiiiiiiiiiiieee e, 21
8 Relationship between Chairman and Members

of Other Committees and OffiCers ...........ccooeveiiiii 21
9 Relationship between Policy Committee Chairmen and Officers....... 22
10 Officers’ Relationships with Party Groups.............cccooovviiiiiinnnnne. 22
11 Members in their Ward Role and Officers. ..o, 23
12 Inter Member Relations. ... ... 23
13 Member Access to Documents and Information............................. 24
14 Independent/Lay MEmMDEIS. ... 25
15 Press ReICASES. ... . vt 25
16 (0] (=15 oT0] T (= o o - 25
17 Behaviour at MEetiNgS. ......cviie i 26



Member /Officer Relations Protocol

Member/Officer Relations Protocol

1.

11

1.2

1.3

14

15

2.1

2.2

Underlying Principles

Both Members and officers serve the public. They depend on one
another, but their responsibilities are distinct. Members are responsible to
the electorate and are responsible for setting policy. Officers are
responsible to the Council; their job is to give advice to Members and to
carry out the Council’s work.

Mutual respect between Members and officers is essential to good local
government. Close personal familiarity between individual Members and
officers can damage this relationship and prove embarrassing to other
Members and officers. It is clearly important that there should be a close
working relationship between Members, chief officers and other senior
officers. However, such relationships should never be allowed to become
so close, or appear to be so close, as to bring into question an officer’s
ability to deal impartially with the Member(s) concerned or other Members.

Members must respect the impartiality and integrity of all the Council’s
officers. Similarly, all officers must respect the role of Members as elected
representatives. It is important that any dealings between Members and
officers should observe proper standards of courtesy and that neither party
should seek to take unfair advantage of their position.

On occasions, Members may have reason to make a formal complaint
about the conduct or performance of an officer. All such complaints
should be made personally to the appropriate Executive Director. It is
important that complaints are made this way and the details noted.

If an officer is concerned about a Member’s conduct, it should be brought
to the attention of the Monitoring Officer, who may inform the Member. If
appropriate, matters of concern will be dealt with through the adopted
procedures.

Roles of Members and Training Requirements
Members have four main areas of responsibility -

determining the policy of the Council and giving it leadership;

monitoring and reviewing the performance of the Council in
implementing that policy and delivering services;

representing the Council externally in an informed and positive manner

acting as advocates on behalf of their constituents and the wider
community.

Members should undertake their role without placing undue pressure
on Officers, in particular the Council’s Statutory Officers have
responsibilities in law over and above their obligations to the Council.
Members must respect these obligations, must not obstruct these

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 18



2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

Member /Officer Relations Protocol

officers in their discharge of responsibilities and must not victimise

officers for discharging their responsibilities.

In undertaking their role, Members are asked to commit to the Training and
Development opportunities that are afforded to elected Members, including a
full Induction Programme at the commencement of each term of office.

There are also mandatory training requirements for a number of the
Regulatory Committees to which Members, appointed to serve on these
Committees, are required to commit to.

Roles of Officers

Officers give advice and information to Members, implement the policies
determined by the Council and manage the day to day business of the
Authority.

In giving such advice to Members and in preparing and presenting reports,
it is the responsibility of the officer to express his/her own professional
views and recommendations. Whilst an officer might report the views of
individual Members on an issue, a Member should not seek to pressure the
officer to make a recommendation contrary to the officer’s professional
view, Neither should the Member seek to have a report withdrawn from the
agenda for such reasons. Where a recommendation is contrary to current
Council policy, the officer shall draw attention to this in the report.

Certain officers, e.g. Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief
Finance Officer, have responsibilities in law over and above their
obligations to the Council and to individual Members. Members must
respect these obligations, must not obstruct these officers in the discharge
of their responsibilities and must not victimise officers for discharging these
responsibilities.

Officers below Executive Director level are accountable to their Executive
Director. Whilst they should always seek to assist Members, they must
not, in so doing, go beyond the bounds of whatever authority they have
been given.

The Authority which has been delegated to Officers, is that which is set
out in the Officer Scheme of Delegation (Part IV of the Constitution) and
subsequent internal sub-delegations which are in writing and held by
each service area.

Relationship between Chairman of the Council and Leader of Council
and Officers

The Chairman of the Council and Leader of the Council shall be bound by
the same provisions set out in section 2 above when acting as Chairman
or Leader as he/she would be when acting as an ordinary Council
Member.

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 19



5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Member /Officer Relations Protocol

Relationship between Group Leaders and Executive Directors

Group Leaders shall meet collectively and informally with the Executive
Directors from time to time to discuss matters of common interest or
concern either raised directly by a Group Leader or by an Executive
Director.

Such meetings will have no formal standing or powers. There is an
expectation, that proceedings in the main are something that Group
Leaders are expected to share with the Members of the Group. Any items
which are not to be shared will be clearly identified at the meeting.

An individual Group Leader can also request a meeting with the Executive
Directors

Again Such meetings will have no formal standing or powers and shall,
unless otherwise agreed, be confidential other than to that Group Leader.

Relationships between Committee Chairmen and Officers
Officers will regularly brief Chairmen on matters affecting their committee.

Any Chairman or spokesman may have a briefing from officers, at a
mutually agreed time, on matters to be discussed at a forthcoming
committee meeting.

Reports always contain a recommendation unless the issue is clearly
one where political judgement is required. They will also always
include the contact details of the report author. Members should
raise issues with that officer prior to the committee meeting where
practicable, in order that Officers can have the relevant information to
hand Members are also permitted and encouraged to raise queries
and comments in advance of a meeting with the relevant Committee
Chairman.

An Executive Director will always be fully responsible for the
contents of any report submitted in his/her name. Wherever
possible, Chairmen will be given the opportunity to view, and
discuss the draft agenda and reports for their committee. All
agendas should be agreed by the Chairman of a committee before
publication. Any issues arising between a Chairman of a committee
and an Executive Director regarding the content of an agenda will be
referred to the Monitoring Officer for resolution in consultation with
the Leader of the Council.

The Chairmen and members of the policy committees shall give
officers the opportunity to give any advice they wish to give.

In relation to action between meetings, it is important to remember
that the law (LGA ‘72/'00) only allows for decisions (in relation to
the discharge of any of the Council’s functions) to be taken by a

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 20



6.7

6.8

7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

Member /Officer Relations Protocol

committee or an officer (where delegated to do so). No Individual
Member, in any capacity, has individual decision making powers.

All Members shall seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer where
they consider there is doubt about the vires for a decision or the
Monitoring Officer and other appropriate officers where they
consider a policy committee decision might be contrary to the policy
framework.

Members and officers should be mutually supportive in order to
minimise any potential embarrassment to the Council. Criticism of
officers should be dealt with in private and, by the same token,
officers will never be publicly critical of the Council or its policies.

Relationships between Chairman and Members of the Challenge
and Improvement Committee and Officers

The Chairman and members of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny
Committee — the Challenge and Improvement Committee shall be
bound by the same provisions set out in section 2 above. In addition,
they shall -

o consider the seniority of the officers asked to appear before it to
ensure that more junior officers are not put under undue pressure;

e when asking officers to give evidence, confine questions, so far as
possible, to questions of fact and explanation relating to policies and
decisions;

e where they consider it appropriate, ask officers to explain and justify
advice given to members of the policy committees prior to decisions
being taken; and

. not question officers in such a way as to be in breach of the Council’s
policy on harassment nor deal with matters which are of a disciplinary
nature.

Officers are required at all times to guide/advise the whole Council. Given
the respective roles of elected members and officers, it is accepted that
officers, while remaining politically neutral, will inevitably give advice on a
wide range of issues. Members must continue to respect the political
neutrality of officers and accept that officers are obliged to respond
positively to any requests from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for
appropriate information and advice relevant to the issue being considered
by the Committee.

Relationships between Chairmen and Members of Other Committees
and Officers

The Chairmen of all Regulatory Committees and Sub-Committees shall
be bound by the same provisions as set out in section 2 above.

The Chairman and Members of the Planning Committee must also act in
accordance with the requirements set out in the document entitled the
“Local Code of Conduct for Councillors and Officers dealing with

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 21



9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Member /Officer Relations Protocol
Planning Matters”.
Relationship between Policy Committee Chairmen and Officers

Executive Directors will meet jointly with the Policy Committee Chairman
on a regular basis to discuss matters which cross cut both committees.

Members will be permitted to share the content of such meetings with wider
Members as they deem appropriate unless explicitly advised not to do so.

Officer Relationships with Party Groups

There is statutory recognition for political groups and it is common practice
for such groups to give preliminary consideration to matters of Council
business in advance of consideration by the relevant Council body.
Meetings between the Executive Directors the Leader and Deputy Leader
(if there is one), committee Chairmen and/or group leaders will be held
when appropriate albeit that they have no executive powers.

In order to ensure that Members are properly briefed on complex matters
any political group may request via the Head of Paid Service that senior
officers be asked to brief the group and offer appropriate professional
advice concerning Council business. Any such invitation will be deemed
to include an invitation to the Head of Paid Service or relevant Executive
Director.

Officers have the right to refuse such requests, and will not normally
attend a meeting of a party group where some of those attending are not
members of the Council.

Officer support will not extend beyond providing factual information or
professional advice in relation to matters of Council business. Officers
must not be involved in advising on matters of party business, and
therefore should not be expected to be present at meetings or parts of
meetings when such matters are to be discussed.

Party group meetings are not empowered to make decisions on behalf of
the Council, and conclusions reached at such meetings do not rank as
formal decisions. The presence of an officer confers no formal status on
such meetings in terms of Council business and must not be interpreted
as doing so. Where officers provide factual information and advice to a
party group in relation to a matter of Council business, this is not a
substitute for providing all the necessary information and advice when
the matter in question is formally considered by the relevant part of the
Council.

Officers will respect the confidentiality of any party group discussions at
which they are present and, unless requested to do so by that party group,
will not relay the content of such discussions to another party group or to
any other members. This shall not prevent an officer providing feedback to
other senior officers on a need-to-know basis.

In their dealings with party groups, officers must treat each group in a fair

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 22



10.8

10.9

10.10

11.

111

11.2

11.3

114

11.5

11.6

12.

12.1

Member /Officer Relations Protocol

and even-handed manner. The duration of an officer’s attendance at a
party group meeting will be at the discretion of the group, but an officer
may leave at any time if he/she feels it is no longer appropriate to be
there.

An officer accepting an invitation to the meeting of one party group shall
not decline an invitation to advise another group about the same matter.
He/she must give substantially the same advice to each.

No Member will refer in public or at meetings of the Council to advice
given by officers to a party group meeting.

Any patrticular cases of difficulty or uncertainty in relation to this part of the
protocol should be raised with the Monitoring Officer and the relevant party
group leader.

Members in their Ward Role and Officers

Whenever a public meeting is organised by the Council to consider a
local issue, all the Members representing the ward or wards affected
should, as a matter of course, be invited to attend the meeting. Similarly,
whenever the Council undertakes any form of consultative exercise on a
local issue, the ward Members should be notified at the outset of the
exercise.

Any requirement to consult with Members on delegated decisions are
effecting their Ward are set out in the “Responsibility for Functions” in Part
IV of this Constitution.

Further to paragraph 10.2 when a Member refers a planning application for
his/her Ward to the Planning Committee for determination, there is an
expectation that the Member will attend the Committee meeting to explain
their reasons for referral.

Officers will seek both to inform and to keep Members informed about
any initiative(s) which they are developing. However, Members must be
aware of the pressures on officers’ time and that officers may exercise
judgement as to how much information is provided.

Matters of a complex nature, or with significant implications, such as
financial or reputational, will be the subject of an all Member
Briefing/Workshop prior to them being considered by the relevant
Committee. Members are encouraged to attend such briefings and
workshops when requested to do so.

It is the duty of the Executive Directors to ensure that all relevant staff
are aware of the requirement to keep local Members informed and that
the timing of such information allows Members to contribute to the
decision making process.

Inter Member Relations

Notwithstanding the differences of political opinion which will inevitably

Reviewed November 2018 Part Ill/Page 23



13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

Member /Officer Relations Protocol

arise, it shall be unacceptable for Members to submit notices of motion or
questions which name another Member or Group. Motions which identify
political positions held within the Council will be deemed acceptable.

Member Access to Documents and Information

The Council believes in open government. Information will generally be
freely available to all Members, but any rules on confidentiality must be
observed.

The approach to information being freely available has to be qualified in
relation to certain appropriately confidential information. Any provision of
information will be compliant with Data Protection. Moreover, devoting a
significant amount of staff resources to identify and collate information
with marginal benefit cannot be justified.

Where, in an officer’s view, a request for information will require a
significant amount of staff resources to provide the information, which
he/she feels unable to commit, he/she should seek guidance from his/her
Director so that a satisfactory solution, in consultation with Members, can
be found. In the event of a dispute, a decision will be made by the Head
of Paid Service in consultation with the leader of the group whose Member
is requesting the information or the Leader of the Council.

Members have a statutory right to inspect any Council document which
contains material in relation to any business which is to be transacted at a
Council, committee or sub-committee meeting. This right applies
irrespective of whether the Member is a member of the committee or sub-
committee concerned and extends not only to reports which are submitted
to the meeting, but also to any relevant background papers.

In addition to the inspection of reports to Council, committees and sub-
committees, and papers on which the production of those reports relied,
which are available to the public under the access to information
legislation, the common-law right of Members is much broader. It is based
on the principle that any Member has a right to inspect Council documents
so far as his/her access to the documents is reasonably necessary to
enable the Member properly to perform his/her duties as a member of the
Council. There is, however, no right for a Member to conduct a roving
commission.

The proper exercise of this common-law right is on a need to know basis
and depends on whether it is reasonably necessary for the Member to
have the information in order properly to perform his/her duties. The
propriety of a request for information must initially be determined by the
particular Executive Director who holds the source in question. In the
event of a dispute, a decision on the point will be made by the
Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Chairman of the Standards
Sub-Committee.

Any Council information provided to a Member must only be used by the
Member for the purpose for which it was provided, i.e. in connection with

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 24



14.

14.1

14.2

15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

16.

16.1

Member /Officer Relations Protocol

the proper performance of the Member’s duties as a member of the
Council. A Member should never disclose or use non public information
for the personal advantage of him/herself or of anyone known to him/her,
or to the disadvantage or discredit of the Council or anyone else.

Independent / Lay Persons

This protocol applies equally to all those people who are not elected
members of the Council but who are members of any of the
Council’'s committees or any other bodies.

This Protocol applies equally to such non Council members on Council
bodies as it does to Council members.

Press Releases

Relations with the media need to be handled with care to ensure the
Council’s position on any issue is represented properly. Day to day
contact with the press and media will normally be handled by the
Communications Team, together with the appropriate Committee
Chairman, Leader and relevant officers, and where appropriate, the
relevant Ward Member.

On occasions, Members may be approached directly by the media
and asked to make a comment or to appear for interview. Members
are asked, where practicable, to ensure the Head of Paid Service
and/or the Communications Team is made aware of the approach.
Unless Members have been authorised to speak on behalf of the
Council, they should make it clear that any views they express are
not necessarily those of the Council. In all cases, Members and
Officers should uphold the good name and integrity of the Council.

Council press releases are drafted by officers and will often contain
quotations (within the limits of the Local Government Act 1986) from
Members. Such press releases are issued on behalf of the Council and it
would not, therefore, be appropriate when repeating quotations from
Members to indicate their party political affiliation or to attribute the
policies or initiatives to a particular group.

Council press releases will be sent to all Members in advance of them
being released to the Media. This is for information only.

The timing and content of the Councils Electronic News is controlled by
an editorial team advised by the cross party editorial board who must
ensure that the content reflects a corporate point of view.

Correspondence (including e-mails)

Correspondence between an individual Member and an officer should not
be copied by the officer or Member to any other Member or Officer without
the consent of both parties unless it constitutes a ‘background paper’
to a committee report. Where correspondence relates to Council policy, or
the interpretation of Council policy, a copy may be sent to the chairman of

Reviewed November 2018 Part Ill/Page 25



16.2

16.3

17.

17.1

17.2

17.3

17.4

17.5

Member /Officer Relations Protocol

the relevant committee, the Head of Paid Service and/or the relevant
Executive Director and this will be made clear to the original Member.
Under no circumstances should ‘silent/blind (BCC) copies’ be made
available to a third party, and copies should only be sent to third parties
with the express permission of the Member involved.

Similarly, Members should not copy for third parties, correspondence from
officers without the author’s consent unless it is apparent that the content
is to be shared.

Official letters on behalf of the Council should normally be sent out in the
name of the appropriate officer, rather than in the name of a Member. It
may be appropriate in certain circumstances (e.g. representations to a
Government minister) for a letter to appear in the name of a Member, but
this should be the exception rather than the rule. Moreover, it is not legal
for letters which, for example, create obligations or give instructions on
behalf of the Council to be sent out in the name of a Member as this would
constitute an act which cannot be delegated to an individual Member.

Behaviour at Meetings

Members involved in taking a decision must be fully aware of all of the
facts and it is suggested, therefore, that if a Member leaves the room
during a debate he/she should consider not taking part in the ensuing
decision making.

In respect of licensing and planning application decisions, a Member
who has left the meeting during consideration of the item or who
arrived late, will not be permitted to take part in that decision. The
Lead Officer in attendance will be responsible for reminding
Members of this fact and enforcing the requirement.

The use of communication devices is permitted within meetings in
accordance with the Provisions of the Openness of Local Government
Regulations 2014 provisions.

However as a matter of courtesy mobile ‘phones/ devices should not
affect the business of the meeting and should remain on silent for the
meetings duration.

The tweeting, blogging or recording of proceedings heard in closed
session is strictly prohibited.

Note:

o Members need to be aware that the Freedom of Information Act 2000
gives a general right of access to information recorded in any form,
which is ‘held’ by the Authority at the time a request is received. This
includes information which is held by another body, for example, a
contractor, on behalf of the Authority

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 26



Member /Officer Relations Protocol

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 27



West Lindsey District Council

West Lindsey
District Council

. ocal Code of Governance

“Ensuring we are doing theright things in
theright way, for the right people, in an
open, honest, inclusive and timely manner”

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountability.




Local Code of Governance

Contents

INEFOAUCTION. ..o 30

Principle 1 —
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical
values and respecting the rule of law ..........ccoooeeeiiiiiiiiiiii e, 31

Principle 2 —
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder
(T o F=To =T 0 1= o | PPN 32

Principle 3 —
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and
environmental DENEFILS ...........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 33

Principle 4 —
Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the achievement
of the intended OULCOMES..........oovviieeiiiiee e 34

Principle 5 —
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its
leadership and the individuals Within it.............cocoeiiiie 35

Principle 6-

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and
strong public financial management...........ccccccceeeev e 36
Principle 7-

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to
deliver effective accountability ............cccccoiiiiiiiiii e 38

Appendix

Corporate Governance FrameworK..........ccovvvvuuieiiieieeeeeeeeeine e 39



Local Code of Governance

Local Code of Governance

Introduction
What is Governance?

The Chartered Institute of Finance and Accountability (CIPFA) define governance as
follows:

“Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended
outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved.” (CIPFA 2016)
CIPFA also state that:

“To deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and
individuals working for public sector entities must try to achieve their entity’s
objectives while acting in the public interest at all times. Acting in the public interest
implies primary considerations of the benefits for society, which should result in
positive outcomes for service users and other stakeholders.” (ibid)

West Lindsey District Council’s’ local code of governance has been developed from

CIPFA’s seven principles of good governance in local government as set out in their

document, “Good Governance in the Public Sector” (CIPFA/IFAC, 2014). The seven

principles are:
1. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values

and respecting the rule of law.

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.

3. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits.

4. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the
intended outcomes.

5. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and
the individuals within it.

6. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong
public financial management.

7. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver
effective accountability.

no

How Important is This?

We know that all public service rely on standards of probity. Corrupt or improper
behaviour affects confidence in the services and in the democratic system.

The United Kingdom is widely respected for high standards in public life and people
have high expectations. It is important that we fulfil these expectations and improve
standards for the future.

How Does it Work?
West Lindsey District Council, like every other Council, works through a governance
framework of principles, processes and legislation.

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 30



Local Code of Governance

Our Local Code of Governance brings all these into one document to explain how we
will meet the governance principles and make sure that we follow best practice.

We will review this code annually, to support our Annual Governance Statement.

Our aim is to provide good quality service to the people of West Lindsey and this
relies on sound governance and the commitment of Members and staff to abide by
our standards.

We hope that by having clear principles and processes, this code will help us to
maintain high standards in the future.

Principle 1. Behaving with integrity. demonstrating strong commitment to

ethical values and respecting the rule of law.
Local government organisations are accountable not only for how much they spend,

but also for how they use the resources under their stewardship. This includes
accountability for outputs, both positive and negative, and for the outcomes they
have achieved. In addition, they have an overarching responsibility to serve the
public interest in adhering to the requirements of legislation and government policies.
It is essential that, as a whole, they can demonstrate the appropriateness of all their
actions across all activities and have mechanisms in place to encourage and enforce
adherence to ethical values and to respect the rule of law.

Behaving with Integrity:

e Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where
acting in the public interest is visibly and consistently demonstrated thereby
protecting the reputation of the organisation

e Ensuring members take the lead in establishing specific standard operating
principles or values for the organisation and its staff and that they are
communicated and understood. These should build on the Seven Principles of
Public Life (the Nolan Principles)

e Leading by example and using the above standard operating principles or
values as a framework for decision making and other actions

e Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard operating
principles or values through appropriate policies and processes which are
reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating effectively

Demonstrating Strong Commitment to Ethical Values:

e Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the organisation’s ethical
standards and performance

e Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and ensuring they
permeate all aspects of the organisation’s culture and operation

¢ Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures which place
emphasis on agreed ethical values

e Ensuring that external providers of services on behalf of the organisation are
required to act with integrity and in compliance with ethical standards
expected by the organisation

Respecting the Rule of Law:
e Ensuring members and staff demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule of
the law as well as adhering to relevant laws and regulations

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 31



Local Code of Governance

e Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other key post
holders, and members, are able to fulfil their responsibilities in accordance
with legislative and regulatory requirements

e Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit of
citizens, communities and other stakeholders

e Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively

e Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively

Principle 2. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.
Local government is run for the public good, organisations therefore should ensure

openness in their activities. Clear, trusted channels of communication and
consultation should be used to engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders,
such as individual citizens and service users, as well as institutional stakeholders.
Openness:
e Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and
communicating the organisation’s commitment to openness
e Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts,
outputs and outcomes. The presumption is for openness. If that is not the
case, a justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision confidential
should be provided
e Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records
and explanations to stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria,
rationale and considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the impact
and consequences of those decisions are clear
e Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the
most appropriate and effective interventions/ courses of action

Engaging Comprehensively with Institutional Stakeholders:

NB institutional stakeholders are the other organisations that local government needs
to work with to improve services and outcomes (such as commercial partners and
suppliers as well as other public or third sector organisations) or organisations to
which they are accountable.

e Effectively engaging with institutional stakeholders to ensure that the purpose,
objectives and intended outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear
so that outcomes are achieved successfully and sustainably

e Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be used
more efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively

e Ensuring that partnerships are based on:

- trust

- a shared commitment to change

- a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among partners
and that the added value of partnership working is explicit.

Engaging with Individual Citizens and Service Users Effectively:
e Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the organisation will
meaningfully consult with or involve communities, individual citizens, service

Reviewed November 2018 Part 1ll/Page 32



Local Code of Governance

users and other stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision is
contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes

e Ensuring that communication methods are effective and that members and
officers are clear about their roles with regard to community engagement

e Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and experiences of
communities, citizens, service users and organisations of different
backgrounds including reference to future needs

e Implementing effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how
views have been taken into account

e Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other
stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity

e Taking account of the impact of decisions on future generations of tax payers
and service users

Principle 3. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic. social and
environmental benefits.

The long-term nature and impact of many of local government’s responsibilities
mean that it should define and plan outcomes and that these should be sustainable.
Decisions should further the organisation’s purpose, contribute to intended benefits
and outcomes, and remain within the limits of authority and resources. Input from all
groups of stakeholders, including citizens, service users, and institutional
stakeholders, is vital to the success of this process and in balancing competing
demands when determining priorities for the finite resources available.

Defining Outcomes:

e Having a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of the
organisation’s purpose and intended outcomes containing appropriate
performance indicators, which provide the basis for the organisation’s overall
strategy, planning and other decisions

e Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including
citizens and service users. It could be immediately or over the course of a
year or longer

e Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources that
will be available

¢ |dentifying and managing risks to the achievement of outcomes

e Managing service users’ expectations effectively with regard to determining
priorities and making the best use of the resources available

Sustainable Economic, Social and Environmental Benefits:

e Considering and balancing the combined economic, social and environmental
impact of policies and plans when taking decisions about service provision

e Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision making, taking account of
risk and acting transparently where there are potential conflicts between the
organisation’s intended outcomes and short-term factors such as the political
cycle or financial constraints

e Determining the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting
interests between achieving the various economic, social and environmental

Reviewed November 2018 Part Ill/Page 33



Local Code of Governance

benefits, through consultation where possible, in order to ensure appropriate
trade-offs
e Ensuring fair access to services

Principle 4. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the
achievement of the intended outcomes.

Local government achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of legal,
regulatory, and practical interventions (courses of action). Determining the right mix
of these courses of action is a critically important strategic choice that local
government has to make to ensure intended outcomes are achieved. They need
robust decision-making mechanisms to ensure that their defined outcomes can be
achieved in a way that provides the best trade-off between the various types of
resource inputs while still enabling effective and efficient operations. Decisions made
need to be reviewed frequently to ensure that achievement of outcomes is optimised.
Determining Interventions:

e Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety
of options indicating how intended outcomes would be achieved and
associated risks. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however services
are provided

e Considering feedback from citizens and service users when making decisions
about service improvements or where services are no longer required in
order to prioritise competing demands within limited resources available
including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind future impacts

Planning Interventions:

e Establishing and implementing robust planning and control cycles that cover
strategic and operational plans, priorities and targets

e Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in determining how services
and other courses of action should be planned and delivered

e Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when working
collaboratively, including shared risks

e Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms for
delivering goods and services can be adapted to changing circumstances

e Establishing appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of the
planning process in order to identify how the performance of services and
projects is to be measured

e Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information required to review
service quality regularly

e Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies and the medium
term financial plan

¢ Informing medium and long term resource planning by drawing up realistic
estimates of revenue and capital expenditure aimed at developing a
sustainable funding strategy

Optimising Achievement of Intended Outcomes:
e Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances service
priorities, affordability and other resource constraints

Reviewed November 2018 Part lll/Page 34



Local Code of Governance

e Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the full
cost of operations over the medium and longer term

e Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing
decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to changes in the
external environment that may arise during the budgetary period in order for
outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage

e Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and
commissioning

Principle 5. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its

leadership and the individuals within it.
Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as people

with the right skills, appropriate qualifications and mindset, to operate efficiently and
effectively and achieve intended outcomes within the specified periods. A local
government organisation must ensure that it has both the capacity to fulfil its own
mandate and to make certain that there are policies in place to guarantee that its
management has the operational capacity for the organisation as a whole. Because
both individuals and the environment in which an organisation operates will change
over time, there will be a continuous need to develop its capacity as well as the skills
and experience of individual staff members. Leadership in local government is
strengthened by the participation of people with many different types of
backgrounds, reflecting the structure and diversity of communities.
Developing the Entity’s Capacity:
e Reviewing operations, performance and use of assets on a regular basis to
ensure their continuing effectiveness
e Improving resource use through appropriate application of techniques such as
benchmarking and other options in order to determine how resources are
allocated so that defined outcomes are achieved effectively and efficiently
e Recognising the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where
added value can be achieved
e Developing and maintaining an effective workforce plan to enhance the
strategic allocation of resources

Developing the Capability of the Entity’s Leadership and Other Individuals:

e Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders negotiate
with each other regarding their respective roles early on in the relationship
and that a shared understanding of roles and objectives is maintained

e Publishing a statement that specifies the types of decisions that are delegated
and those reserved for the collective decision making of the governing body

e Ensuring the leader and the Head of Paid Service have clearly defined and
distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby the Head of Paid
Service leads in implementing strategy and managing the delivery of
services and other outputs set by members and each provides a check and
a balance for each other’s authority

e Developing the capabilities of members and senior management to achieve
effective leadership and to enable the organisation to respond successfully to
changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, political and
environmental changes and risks by:

Reviewed November 2018 Part Ill/Page 35



Local Code of Governance

e ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate induction tailored to
their role and that ongoing training and development matching individual
and organisational requirements is available and encouraged

e ensuring members and officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge,
resources and support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and ensuring
that they are able to update their knowledge on a continuing basis

e ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through
shared learning, including lessons learnt from governance weaknesses both
internal and external.

e Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation

e Taking steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring
leaders are open to constructive feedback from peer review and inspections

e Holding staff to account through regular performance reviews which take
account of training or development needs

e Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of
the workforce and support individuals in maintaining their own physical and
mental wellbeing

Principle 6. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control

and strong public financial management.
Local government needs to ensure that the organisations and governance structures

that it oversees have implemented, and can sustain, an effective performance
management system that facilitates effective and efficient delivery of planned
services. Risk management and internal control are important and integral parts of a
performance management system and are crucial to the achievement of outcomes.
Risk should be considered and addressed as part of all decision making activities. A
strong system of financial management is essential for the implementation of policies
and the achievement of intended outcomes, as it will enforce financial discipline,
strategic allocation of resources, efficient service delivery and accountability. It is
also essential that a culture and structure for scrutiny are in place as a key part of
accountable decision making, policy making and review. A positive working culture
that accepts, promotes and encourages constructive challenge is critical to
successful scrutiny and successful service delivery. Importantly, this culture does not
happen automatically, it requires repeated public commitment from those in
authority.

Managing Risk:
e Recognising that risk management is an integral part of all activities and must
be considered in all aspects of decision making
e Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements and
ensuring that they are working effectively
e Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly
allocated

Managing Performance:
e Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, specification,
execution and independent post implementation review

Reviewed November 2018 Part 1ll/Page 36



Local Code of Governance

Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice
pointing out the implications and risks inherent in the organisation’s financial,
social and environmental position and outlook

Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which provides
constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives before, during
and after decisions are made thereby enhancing the organisation’s
performance and that of any organisation for which it is responsible. (Or, for a
committee system) encouraging effective and constructive challenge and
debate on policies and objectives to support balanced and effective decision
making

Providing members and senior management with regular reports on service
delivery plans and on progress towards outcome achievement

Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages (such as budgets)
and post implementation reporting (eg financial statements)

Robust Internal Control:

Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with
achieving objectives

Evaluating and monitoring risk management and internal control on a regular
basis

Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are in
place

Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of
the framework of governance, risk management and control is provided by the
internal auditor

Ensuring an audit committee or equivalent group/ function, which is
independent of the executive and accountable to the governing body:

provides a further source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for
managing risk and maintaining an effective control environment
that its recommendations are listened to and acted upon.

Managing Data:

Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage,
use and sharing of data, including processes to safeguard personal data
Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when
sharing data with other bodies

Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in
decision making and performance monitoring

Strong Public Financial Management:

Ensuring financial management supports both long term achievement of
outcomes and short-term financial and operational performance

Ensuring well-developed financial management is integrated at all levels of
planning and control, including management of financial risks and controls.

Reviewed November 2018 Part 1ll/Page 37



Local Code of Governance

Principle 7. Implementing good practices in transparency. reporting and audit

to deliver effective accountability.
Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering services

are answerable for them. Effective accountability is concerned not only with reporting
on actions completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are able to understand
and respond as the organisation plans and carries out its activities in a transparent
manner. Both external and internal audit contribute to effective accountability.
Implementing Good Practice in Transparency:

e Writing and communicating reports for the public and other stakeholders in a
fair, balanced and understandable style appropriate to the intended audience
and ensuring that they are easy to access and interrogate

e Striking a balance between providing the right amount of information to satisfy
transparency demands and enhance public scrutiny while not being too
onerous to provide and for users to understand

Implementing Good Practices in Reporting:

e Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money and stewardship
of resources to stakeholders in a timely and understandable way

e Ensuring members and senior management own the results reported

e Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles
contained in this Framework have been applied and publishing the results on
this assessment, including an action plan for improvement and evidence to
demonstrate good governance (the annual governance statement)

e Ensuring that this Framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service
organisations as appropriate

e Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial
statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the statements
allow for comparison with other, similar organisations

Assurance and Effective Accountability:

e Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by external audit
are acted upon

e Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access to members is in
place, providing assurance with regard to governance arrangements and that
recommendations are acted upon

e Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies
and implementing recommendations

e Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third
parties and that this is evidenced in the annual governance statement

e Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability
are clear and the need for wider public accountability has been recognised
and met

Reviewed November 2018 Part 1ll/Page 38



Annual Governance Statement
Internal Audit Annual Report
Statement of Accounts
Partnerships ACoP

Audit Reports

Tracking of audit actions
Challenge & Improvement Cttee

™

Risk Mgt
Strategy
Budget
Monitoring
Progress &
Delivery Reports
Project Mgt
Board Structure
G&A Cttee
Information
Governance
Strategy

Local Code of Governance

Values and Behaviours

Codes of Conduct

Principles of Public life
Standards Committee

Internal Control

Whistle Blowing Policy
Monitoring Officer

Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy

Performance Management Framework
Community and Stakeholder Engagement
events/Consultation/Citizen’s Panel

C&l Cttee Scrutiny Role

Complaints Procedure

Annual Report

Annual Governance Statement

Social Media Channels

Statement of Accounts

Reviewed November 2018

Part lll/Page 39

Corporate Plan

Customer Access Strategy
Key Strategies

Medium Term Financial Plan

rmining the

Horizon Scanning

State of District Report
Options contained within
Cttee reports

Project Mgt methodology
Benefits realisation reporting
Business Improvement and
Service Planning Cycle
Budget Setting

MTFP

Organisational Development Plan
Member's Personal Development
Plans and Training Plan
Communications Plan

Appraisals and Learning &
Development

Member Induction Process
Council Constitution

Staff consultation and JSCC




District Council

Constitution of West Lindsey District Council

Part |V

Responsibility for Functions




Responsibility for Functions

Contents

Policy

Council  ......

Corporate Policy and Resources Committee.............ccvvvveeeeee.

Prosperous Communities Committee ..............oeeeeveiiicinnnnnnns

Regulatory

Governance and Audit COMMILEE........coeueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeee

Licensing COMMIEE ........ccoiviiini e

Regulatory COmmIttee ........coiuiiiiiiiii e,

Planning Committee ............ oo,

Regulatory Sub-Committee ... .......ccccviiiiiiiiiiiee e,

Licensing Sub-Committee ..o

Other

Challenge and Improvement Committee ..........................

Standards Sub-

COMMILIEE oo i

Chief Officer Employment Committee...............................

Independent Disciplinary Panel .................cocoiiiiiii.

Joint Staff Consultative Committee ...,

Remuneration Panel ...

Housing Appeals Board ..........cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieeeeeeeee e

Officers

OFfiICEIS GENEIAl ...

EXECULIVE DIrBCIOIS ..vvnieeei e e e e e e

Head of Paid SEIVICE ....couvieeeee e

Executive Director of RESOUICES ......coeuveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee,

Monitoring OFfiCer ..o

Executive Director of Operations..........ccccevvveeeeeeiiieiiiiiiiiiiieenn,

Executive Director of Economic and Commercial Growth ......

Corporate Delegations............oovvvviiiiiiiiiiee e

Proper Officers

10
11
12
13
14

16
18

20
20
21
22
23

24
27
28
30
33
34
45
47
59



ResponsibilityforFunctions
Terms of Reference - Council

Council

The following functions will only be exercised by the full Council:

1. To approve and adopt the following plans and strategies which
together make up the Council’s budgetary and policy framework:

Budget! and Council Tax including council tax base
Corporate Plan

Community Safety Plan (Crime and Disorder Reduction)
Local Plan

Housing Strategy Statement

Statements of Licensing Policy and Gambling Policy
Commercial Plan

Pay Policy Statement

2. To consider and determine whether any additional plans or strategies,
both statutory and non-statutory, should be adopted or approved,;

3. To adopt and change the Constitution when necessary after
consideration by the Governance and Audit Committee;

4. At the annual meeting to appoint the Leader and Deputy Leader of the
Council;
5. To consider a resolution to remove the Leader and/or Deputy Leader

and appoint a replacement Leader and/or Deputy Leader;

6. At the annual meeting to appoint the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of
the Council;
7. To agree and/or amend the terms of reference for committees, deciding

on their composition and making appointments to them;
8. To appoint representatives to outside bodies;
0. To adopt an allowances scheme under Part VI of the Constitution;
10. To determine any changes to the name of the district;

11.  To confirm the appointment and the dismissal of the Head of the Paid
Service;

12. To consider advice, views and recommendations from the
Independent Panel (Section 27a of the Localism Act) and agree
action to be taken in relation to chief officer/statutory officer
disciplinary matters.

! The budget includes the allocation of financial resources, including the setting of fees and charges,

for different services and projects, proposed contingency funds, the council tax base, setting the

Council Tax, controlling the Council’s borrowing requirement and capital expenditure in line with
CIPFA’s “Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities’ and the setting of virement limits.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 1



ResponsibilityforFunctions
Terms of Reference - Council

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

To designate the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer, Chief
Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) and Electoral Registration Officer
/ Returning Officer.

To receive and consider reports from the Council’s three statutory
officers;

To make, amend, revoke, re-enact or adopt bye laws and to promote or
oppose the making of local legislation or personal bills;

To consider those matters referred to it from time to time by the policy
committees, the overview and scrutiny committee and by other
council committees;

To confer the title of Honorary Alderman and Freeman;

To adopt the Council’'s Codes of Conduct.

To exercise all local choice functions which the Council decides should
be undertaken by itself rather than the policy committees;

To consider and debate motions raised by Councillors;

To debate issues that are the subject of petitions signed by a specified
number of people (as set out in the Petitions Scheme in the appendix
to the Constitution);

To approve the appointment of external auditors for five financial
years commencing 1 April 2018 and the approval of the Terms of
Reference.

To consider all other matters which, by law, must be reserved to
Council.

To adopt neighbourhood plans following a successful
referendum.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 2



Responsibilityfor Functions
Terms of Reference — Corporate Policy and Resources

Corporate Policy and Resources Committee

As the principal committee of the Council to be responsible for:

1. The formulation (but not the adoption or approval) of:
(@ the Policy Framework,
(b) the budget; and
(c) the Council’s objectives and priorities.

2. The control and management of resources, including land, property,
finance and staff to further the Council’s objectives, including the
delegation of specific budgets to the Prosperous Communities
Committee for a specific purpose, for the services quoted in their Terms
of Reference.

3. Ensuring compliance with the Council’s budget including its revenue and
capital budgets and the management of the Council’s assets.

4. The performance framework of the council.
5. The approval of the Committee timetable for each municipal year.
6. The exercise of the Council’s functions relating to:
. Equality and Diversity
. Health and Safety (as an employer)
) Voluntary Sector
) Climate change
. Information Assurance
7. The adoption and approval of strategies and policies not forming part of

the Policy Framework apart from those policies for which delegated power
is given to the Head of Paid Service to approve under Part IV of this
Constitution.

8. The exercise of any function, duty or power of the council which is not
delegated to another Committee, Sub-Committee or an officer, or
reserved for decision by full Council under this Constitution or by law.

9. To recommend fees and charges for service areas within its remit or
following a recommendation from the Prosperous Communities
Committee, to full Council.

10. In addition to recommending fees and charges to Council on an
annual basis, CP&R has the delegation to change individual fees and

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 3



Responsibilityfor Functions
Terms of Reference — Corporate Policy and Resources

charges where the Authority needs to respond to market changes or
changes to the cost base.

11.  Approving the creation of any new legal entity and appointments of
directors or other statutory officers onto the Board of the legal entity.

12.  Approval of the business plans of any wholly owned,
companies, joint ventures or other legal entity in which the
Council has an interest.

13.  To make appointments to be Member Champions deemed to be
relevant to the remit of the Committee.

This Committee can meet concurrently with the Prosperous Communities Committee.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 4



Responsibilityfor Functions
Terms of Reference — Prosperous Communities Committee

Prosperous Communities Committee

To be responsible for the following areas:

1. The regeneration, housing and planning strategies which together form
the council’s approach to place shaping.

2. The Council’s role in the community around health and crime and disorder
including the wellbeing of the community and the development of
partnerships.

3. The Council’s approach to community interaction and engagement.

4, To manage any budget assigned to the Committee by the Corporate Policy
and Resources in relation to the service areas listed under paragraph 5.

5. All services under these strategic areas :

Strategic Housing

Home Options

Private Sector Housing

Enabling Affordable Homes

Supporting People

Economic Development

Markets and Car Park Policy

Tourism

Countryside Management and Open Space
Support to Business

Growth

Litter, Recycling, Waste and Street Cleansing
Anti-Social Behaviour

Family Intervention

Public Protection and Environmental Issues
Public Health

Transport

Leisure and Culture

Planning and Development

Land Charges

Cemeteries and Bereavement services

CHVWSNQTOSITATTSQ OO0 T

6. The Prosperous Communities Committee is responsible for overseeing an
effective partnership approach throughout the Council. The Prosperous
Communities Committee is responsible for approving protocols,
delegations, including frameworks to inform decisions around partnership
engagement. The Prosperous Communities Committee is the focus for
forming partnerships with other local public, private, voluntary and
community sector organisations to address local needs (where there is a
financial implication this will need to be considered by the Corporate Policy
and Resources Committee).

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 5



Responsibilityfor Functions
Terms of Reference — Prosperous Communities Committee

7. Exercising the Council’s statutory functions in these areas.

8. Authorising the institution, prosecution or defence of any
legal proceedings in connection with the functions of the
committee.

9. Adopting any relevant plans, strategies and policies other than

those identified for adoption by the Council or the Corporate
Policy and Resources Committee.

10. To recommend fees and charges for service areas within its
remit to Corporate Policy and Resources / full Council.

11. To make appointments to be Member Champions deemed to be
relevant to the remit of the Committee.

This Committee can meet concurrently with the Corporate Policy and Resources
Committee.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 6



Responsibilityfor Functions
Terms of Reference — Governance and Audit

Governance and Audit Committee

To be responsible for:
(@) Corporate Governance

1. Monitoring the operation of the Council’s Constitution and keeping its
terms under review, including all procedure rules.

2. Considering and making recommendations on any proposal to make
changes to the constitution prior to its consideration by the Council.

3. To inform the work of the Remuneration Panel in advance of them making
submissions to Council.

4, To keep under review the terms of reference of member level bodies and
delegations of Council functions to committees and formally appointed
bodies and officers.

5. Agreeing and updating regularly the Council’s Local Code of Governance.
6. Monitoring its operation and compliance with it, and using it as a
benchmark against performance for the Annual Governance
Statement.
7. Following a decision of Council to undertake a community governance

review to agree the terms of reference for and conduct such a review,
making recommendations to Council who will determine the outcome of
such reviews.

8. Exercising functions relating to elections and parishes set out in Part D of
Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities)
(England) Regulations 2000 (or any replacement or amendment of it).

0. Reviewing the adequacy of the Council’s corporate governance
arrangements (including matters such as internal control and risk
management) and approving the annual governance statement.

10.  To approve the financial and contract procedure rules between
Annual Councils.

(b)  Accounts and Audit
1. Considering the Council’s arrangement relating to accounts including;
0] the approval of the statement of accounts and any material

amendments of the accounts recommended by the auditors;
Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 7



Responsibilityfor Functions
Terms of Reference — Governance and Audit

(c)

(i)  to keep under review the Council’s financial and
management accounts and financial information as it sees
fit.

Considering the Council’s arrangements relating to the external audit
requirements including the receipt of the external audit reports so as to;

0] inform the operation of the Council’s current or future
audit arrangements;

(i) provide a basis for gaining the necessary assurance regarding
governance prior to the approval of the Council’s accounts.

Considering the external auditor’s report to those charged with
governance on issues arising from the audit of the accounts.

Considering the Council’s arrangements relating to internal
audit requirements including:

0] considering the Annual Internal Audit report, reviewing and making
recommendations on issues contained therein;

(i) monitoring the management and performance of internal audit;

(i)  agreeing and reviewing the nature and scope of the Annual Audit
Plan.

Considering summaries of specific internal audit reports of significance or
as requested.

Considering reports from internal audit on agreed recommendations not
implemented within a reasonable timescale.

Considering specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.

Recommending to the Council the appointment of the Council’s external
auditor.

Scrutinising the draft Treasury Management Strategy.

Regulatory Framework (Assurance Framework)

Reviewing any issues referred to it by the Head of Paid Service, an
Executive Director, the Chief Finance Officer or any Council body.

Monitoring the effective development and operation of risk management
and corporate governance in the Council.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 8



Responsibilityfor Functions
Terms of Reference — Governance and Audit

3. Monitoring Council policies on confidential reporting code, anti-fraud and
anti-corruption policy and Council’s complaint process.

4, Approving payments or providing other benefits in cases of
maladministration as required and making recommendations arising from
any review of a report of the Local Government Ombudsman.

(d)  Ethics and standards

1. Promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Councillors and
co-opted members.

Note:

Any Member wishing to serve or substitute on this Committee must have
undertaken such training as deemed appropriate by the Monitoring Officer, and
as a minimum, within the previous two years of the date of the meeting, and in
particular members must receive training prior to approval of the Annual
Statement of Accounts.

Nominations be sought to form a pool of trained substitutes in order to ensure
that decisions are made by fully trained members.

The Leader of the Council, other group leaders, the Chairman of the Challenge
and Improvement Committee and the Chairman of the Standards Sub-
Committee may be required to attend this committee but may not be appointed
to it.

The committee will include at least one independent member and the normal term
of office shall be four years.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 9



Responsibility for Functions
Terms of Reference — Licensing Committee

Licensing Committee

To be responsible for:

1. Exercising the Council’s functions as licensing authority so far as required
or permitted by the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, in accordance with
sections 6, 7, 9 and 10 of that Act, associated regulations and the
delegation set out in appendix 1 of the Statement of Licensing Policy.

2. Recommending the setting and adoption of the Statement of Licensing
Policy to the Council.

3. Exercising the Council’s functions as licensing authority under the
relevant sections of the Gambling Act 2005,
associated regulations and the delegations set out in appendix 1
of the Gambling Policy (Statement of Principles).

4. Recommending the setting and adoption of the Gambling Policy to the
Council.
5. Making arrangements for any hearing in relation to these responsibilities

to be considered and determined by the Licensing Sub-Committee for
matters relating to the Licensing Act 2003 or Gambling Act 2005.

Note: Any Member wishing to serve or substitute on this Committee must
have undertaken such training as deemed appropriate by the
Monitoring Officer, and as a minimum, within the previous two years of
the date of the meeting.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 10



Responsibility for Functions
Terms of Reference — Regulatory Committee

Regulatory Committee

To be responsible for:

1. Exercising the Council’s full remit of licensing functions (with the
exception of Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005) under the
relevant Acts and Regulations including the functions and responsibilities
regulations.

2. Exercising the Council’s full range of duties and responsibilities in respect
of food premises and approving the Food Law Enforcement Plan.

3. Exercising the Council’s full range of duties and responsibilities under the
Environmental Protection Act and associated regulations.

4. Recommending the setting and adoption of policies relating to Taxi and
Private Hire Licensing to the Prosperous Communities Committee.

5. Making arrangements for any hearing in relation to these responsibilities
to be considered and determined by the Regulatory Sub-Committee for
matters relating to all other matters, not covered by the legislation
applicable to the Licensing Committee

6. Discharging the Council’s functions under Part | of the Health and Safety
at Work etc. Act 1974 other than in its capacity as an employer.

7. Recommending the setting and adoption of other relevant policies to the
Prosperous Communities Committee as necessary.

8. The granting of Public Space Protection Orders (PSPO)
Note: Any Member wishing to serve or substitute on this Committee must have
undertaken such training as deemed appropriate by the Monitoring

Officer, and as a minimum, within the previous two years of the date of
the meeting.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 11



Responsibility for Functions
Terms of Reference — Planning Committee

Planning Committee

1. To be responsible for the following areas:

. To determine and advise upon planning applications and local
authority development proposals

. Street naming and numbering

. Building Regulations

. Public Path orders

. Certificates of lawfulness

. Agreements under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990

. Other agreements associated with specific applications

. Advertisement consents

. Conservation area consents

. Revocation/modification orders

. Enforcement proceedings

. Tree Preservation orders

. Consents to fell/lop trees

. Listed Buildings consents

. All other notices, demands, permissions and consents or otherwise

referred to in Town and Country Planning legislation

2. To make or issue observations and representations on development
proposals by the County Council and neighbouring authorities.

3. Conservation and heritage.

4, To administer the registration provisions contained in Town and Country
Planning legislation.

5. To exercise the Council’s statutory functions in accordance with building
regulations and associated legislation.

6. To authorise the institution, prosecution or defence of any legal
proceedings in connection with any functions of this committee.

Note: Any Member wishing to serve or substitute on this Committee must have
undertaken such training as deemed appropriate by the Monitoring
Officer, and as a minimum, within the previous two years of the date of
the meeting.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 12



Responsibility for Functions
Terms of Reference — Requlatory Sub-Committee

Regulatory Sub-Committee
(a sub-committee of the Regulatory Committee)

To discharge, in accordance with statutory requirements and Council policy, the
council’s registration, licensing and enforcement responsibilities in respect of all
licensing matters, including:

(a) hackney carriage and private hire

(b) street and house to house collections

(c) street trading

(d) pet shops

(e) animal boarding and breeding

)] riding establishments

(g)  skin piercing (personal and premises licences)
(h)  caravan sites

0] scrap metal licences

()] dangerous and wild animals

(K) Z00Ss

)] sex shops and sexual entertainment venues
(m) appeals against notices served by officers in relation to these functions
(n) performing animals

(0) hypnotism

Note:

Any Member wishing to serve or substitute on this Sub-Committee must have
undertaken such training as deemed appropriate by the Monitoring Officer, and
as a minimum, within the previous two years of the date of the meeting.

Any member of the Regulatory Committee may be called upon to sit on the
Regulatory Sub-Committee to hear applications for review pertaining to the
above matters (three Members plus one reserve).

The quorum shall be three Members.

Meetings of the Regulatory Sub-Committee be convened as and when
necessary.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 13



Responsibility for Functions
Terms of Reference — Licensing Sub-Committee

Licensing Sub-Committee
(A sub-committee of the Licensing Act 2003 Committee)

To discharge the responsibility for liquor licensing including -

a) Application for Personal Licence — if Police Objection
b)  Application for Personal Licence — if unspent convictions

c) Application for Premises Licence/Club Premises Certificate — if
relevant representation is made and not withdrawn

d) Application for Provisional Statement — if relevant representation is
made.

e) Application to vary Premises Licence/Club Premises Certificate — if
relevant representation is made.

f)  Application to vary designated premises supervisor — if a Police
objection

g) Application for transfer of Premises Licence — if a Police objection
h)  Application for Interim Authority — if a Police objection
i)  Application to review Premises Licence/Club Premises Certificate

)] Decision to object when local authority is a consultee and not the
relevant authority considering the application.

k)  Determination of an objection to a Temporary Event Notice by the
Police or Environmental Health Officer.

[)  Application for premises licences where representations have been
received and not withdrawn.

m)  Application for a variation to a licence where representations have
been received and not withdrawn

n)  Application for a provisional statement where representations have
been received and not withdrawn

0) Review of premises licence

p) Application for club gaming/club machine permits where objections
have been made and not withdrawn

g) Cancellation of club gaming/club machine permits
r)  Decision to give a counter notice to a temporary use notice

s) To make decisions relating to Personal Licences where the Authority
becomes aware that a person has been convicted of a relevant or foreign
offence, or been required to pay an immigration penalty after the licence
was granted.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 14



Responsibility for Functions
Terms of Reference — Licensing Sub-Committee

Notes:

Any member of the Licensing Committee may be called upon to sit on the
Licensing Sub-Committee to deal with applications under the Licensing Act
2003 (three Members plus one reserve).

Meetings of the Licensing Sub-Committee be convened as and when necessary.

The provisions of the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups)
Regulations 1990 do not apply.

The quorum shall be three Members.
Any Member wishing to serve or substitute on this Sub-Committee must have

undertaken such training as deemed appropriate by the Monitoring Officer, and as a
minimum, within the previous two years of the date of the meeting.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 15



Responsibility for Functions
Terms of Reference — Challenge and Improvement Committee

Challenge and Improvement Committee

1. To exercise the Council’s responsibilities for overview and scrutiny and
agree each year an operating methodology;

2. To conduct reviews of policy, services or aspects of service that have
either been referred by a policy committee or the council, relate to the
Forward Plan or have been chosen by the committee according to the
agreed criteria for selecting such reviews;

3. To approve and keep under review an annual overview and scrutiny work
programme, including the work programme of any scrutiny panels
established in accordance with the Challenge and Improvement
Committee work programme;

4. To approve the scope, timetable and method for each review by a scrutiny
panel to put in place and ensure that such reviews are monitored and
managed efficiently and in accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules;

5. To make reports and recommendations to the Council, a policy committee
or any other Council committee arising from the exercise of these terms
of reference;

6. To consider the Forward Plan and comment as appropriate to the relevant
Committee on proposed decisions which relate to services within their
remit (before they are taken by the appropriate policy committee);

7. To exercise the powers of call in and scrutiny in relation to policy
committee decisions made but not implemented, as set out in section
21(3) of the Local Government Act 2000 and challenge such decisions in
accordance with the procedure set out in the Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules in Part V of this Constitution;

8. To comment on the proposed annual service and budget plans for all
council services before final approval by the Corporate Policy and
Resources Committee and Council;

0. To take an overview of the policies, forward plans and related authorities
of all public bodies and agencies as they affect the council’s area or its
inhabitants;

10. To maintain under review the arrangements for the performance
monitoring of Council services;

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 16



Responsibilityfor Functions
Terms of Reference — Challenge and Improvement Committee

11. To discharge the statutory functions arising under section 19 of the Police
and Justice Act 2006 relating to issues of crime and disorder and to
develop and implement such procedures, protocols and criteria as
deemed by the Committee to be appropriate.

12. This Committee has an operating methodology which is agreed annually at
its first full meeting.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 17



Responsibilityfor Functions
Terms of Reference — Standards Sub-Committee

Standards Sub-Committee
(a sub-committee of the Governance and Audit Committee)

1. To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Councillors and
co-opted members.

2. To assist Councillors and co-opted members to observe the Members’
Code of Conduct.

3. To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members’ Code
of Conduct.

4.  To monitor the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct.

5. To advise, train or arrange to train Councillors and co-opted members
on matters relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct.

6. To grant dispensations to Councillors and co-opted members from
requirements relating to interests set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct.

7. To exercise such other functions as the Council considers appropriate.

8. To exercise of 1 to 7 above in relation to the town/parish councils and their
members in the council’s area.

9. To grant and supervise exemptions from political restriction of posts.

Notes:

e  The committee shall comprise six elected District Councillors
and up to three non-voting parish representatives.

e  The normal period of office of the parish members shall be four years
and all such members shall retire along with elected Members

e Non continued compliance with the criteria for selection as an
independent/parish member of the committee and the disqualifications
for appointment as summarised in Sections 80 and 81 of the Local
Government Act 1972 (with the exception of the requirement to attend
meetings in a six month period) shall apply to the parish members.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 18



Responsibilityfor Functions
Terms of Reference — Standards Sub-Committee

e  Quorum - A meeting of the Standards Sub-Committee shall not be
quorate unless at least three elected Members (and one parish
representative when the case in question concerns a Parish
Councillor) of that Sub-Committee are present for its duration.

e  This Sub-Committee, by formal resolution of full Council at its
annual meeting, is not politically restricted.

Note:
Any Member wishing to serve or substitute on this Sub-Committee must have

undertaken such training as deemed appropriate by the Monitoring Officer, and as a
minimum, within the previous two years of the date of the meeting.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 19



Responsibility for Functions
Terms of Reference —Chief Officer Employment Committee

Chief Officer Employment Committee

To be responsible for:

1. Considering all employment matters relating to the Council’s Statutory
Officers (Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial
Officer) (apart from disciplinary and dismissal) in accordance with the
Officer Employment Procedure Rules and statutory requirements and
make recommendations to the full Council.

2. Determining all employment matters relating to Chief Officers who are not
Statutory Officers in accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure
Rules and statutory requirements.

Independent Disciplinary Panel

1. The Independent Disciplinary Panel (IDP) is a group of independent persons
appointed under Section 28/7 of the Localism Act 2011 to form an
independent panel to discuss and consider disciplinary matters in relation to
the Council’s Statutory Officers:

Head of Paid Service
Monitoring Officer
Chief Financial Officer

2. The IDP shall comprise at least two independent persons appointed in

accordance with the following priority order:

a) A person who has been appointed by the Council and who is a local
government elector;

b) Any other relevant independent person who has been appointed by the
Council;

c) A relevant independent person who has been appointed by another
Authority or Authorities.

3. The role of the Panel is to:

a) Discuss and consider disciplinary matters in relation to the Council’s
Statutory Officers;

b) Meet at least 20 working days prior to a meeting of Council to which the
matter is referred.

c) To commission an impartial individual with the right skills and expertise to
carry out an investigation.

d) Make recommendations to Council on disciplinary action or dismissal
against the Council’s Statutory Officers;

e) Exercise these functions in accordance with the Local Authority (Standing
orders) (England) Regulations 2001 (as amended).

4. Remuneration to the IDP will be in accordance with the Localism Act 2011.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 20



Responsibility for Functions
Terms of Reference —Joint Staff Consultative Committee

Joint Staff Consultative Committee

1. To establish regular methods of communication and negotiation between
the Council and employees of the Council, in order to prevent differences
and to adjust them should they arise, always provided that no question of
individual discipline, promotion or efficiency shall be within the scope of
the Committee.

2. To consider and advise on any relevant matter referred to it by any
committee of the Council, or by any of the employee groups
represented on the Consultative Committee.

3. To make recommendations to the Corporate Policy and Resources
Committee as to the adoption of policies affecting employee interests
(except those relating to the terms and conditions on which they are
employed) or on any other matter referred to it.

4, The Consultative Committee may submit for consideration by, and the
advice of, the appropriate national or provincial negotiating body
established to deal with National Scheme of Conditions of Service
affecting employees.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 21



Responsibility for Functions
Terms of Reference — Remuneration Panel

Remuneration Panel

To develop, review and recommend to the Council a scheme for the payment of
members’ allowances.

Notes:

o The Panel shall comprise five or six independent members.
o The period of office of the members of the Panel shall be four years.
o The Chairman shall be elected by the Panel annually.

o Non continued compliance with the criteria for selection as a member
of the Panel and the disqualifications for appointment as summarised
in Sections 80 and 81 of the Local Government Act 1972 (with the
exception of the requirement to attend meetings in a six month period)
shall apply to all members of the Panel.

o The Remuneration Panel will report in the first instance to the
Governance and Audit Committee prior to referral to full Council.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 22



Responsibility for Functions
Housing Appeals Board

Housing Appeals Board

1. To hear appeals against decisions taken by the authority relating to
homelessness cases.

2. To hear appeals against decisions taken by the authority relating to
applications for housing.

3. To hear appeals against the initial decision made by the Revenues and
Benefits Department on claims for discretionary housing payments.

4. To hear appeals against the decision made by the Executive Director of
Resources on applications for national non-domestic rate discretionary
relief.

5. To hear appeals against decisions not to award Section 13A Council Tax
Discretionary Relief

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 23



Responsibility for Functions
Officers - General

Officers
Introduction

1. The following delegations to officers are made under Section 101 of the
Local Government Act 1972 and all other powers enabling such
delegations. The delegations are made with the intent that they shall
lead to a streamlining and simplification of the processes of the Council
and, accordingly, should be interpreted widely rather than narrowly.

2. The Executive Directors are authorised to discharge the powers and
duties necessary to carry out the Council’s functions within the broad
functional description set out in the following sections, together with the
specific delegations which are specified, and should be taken to include
powers and duties within those descriptions within all present and future
legislation, and all powers incidental to that legislation, including the
application of the incidental powers and duties under Section 111 of the
Local Government Act 1972.

3. The delegations shall operate in addition to any previous delegations.
Any reference to a specific section or statute shall be deemed to
incorporate reference to any enactment amending, re-enacting or
replacing that statute.

Overall Limitations

4. The following are not delegated to Officers:

(@) Any matter reserved by law to the Council, a committee or sub-
committee.

(b) Any matter which is specifically excluded from delegation by
resolution of the Council, a committee or sub-committee.

5. Officers may only exercise delegated powers in accordance with -

(&) Plans, schemes or strategies approved by, or on behalf of, the
Council.

(b) Procedure Rules of the Council.
(c) Any statutory restrictions, guidance or statutory code of practice.

(d) The revenue and capital funding for the relevant service as
approved by the Council, subject to any variations which are
permitted by virtue of the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and
Contract Procedure Rules.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 24



Responsibility for Functions
Officers - General

6.

7.

8.

(e) The Council's Generic Equalities and other policies, procedures,
standards and the Local and National Conditions of Service.

Where any matter contained within this Scheme of Delegation involves
professional or technical considerations within the sphere of competence
of another officer, the officer to whom authority has been delegated shall
consult that officer before authorising action.

Where a delegated power is exercisable following consultation with the
Chairman of a Committee, consultation shall take place with the Vice-
Chairman in the absence of the Chairman.

Where an action is delegated to an officer via the Council, then such
delegation shall be undertaken without undue delay.

Sub-Delegation

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Officers may further delegate any function which has been delegated to
them to another officer or officers providing that there is no statutory
restriction on doing so.

Every sub-delegation shall be in writing.

In exercising any delegated function, officers shall be responsible for
undertaking any appropriate consultation with the Council’s Head of Paid
Service, Monitoring Officer and/or the Chief Finance Officer before
taking any decision.

Instead of exercising his/her delegated power in any matter, an officer
may refer the matter to the appropriate committee/sub-committee/board
etc.

Any power delegated to an Executive Director may be exercised by
the Head of Paid Service in their absence.

Where urgency dictates during periods of leave or sudden
unexpected absence, delegations granted to the Executive
Director of Operations or the Executive Director of Resources can
be exercised by the other, except when the matter relates to a
function which by law must be undertaken by either the Head of
Paid Service or the s151 Officer.

Functions which by law must be undertaken by the Statutory Officers
cannot be sub-delegated and are set out elsewhere in this document.

Politically Sensitive Issues

16. Without derogating from the discharge of functions under these

arrangements -

(a) Maintain close liaison with the Committee Chairman in whose

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 25



Responsibility for Functions
Officers - General

scope the Executive Director’s functions exist particularly in
respect of controversial and sensitive issues.

(b) Each Executive Director shall also maintain close liaison with
members representing the political groups in relation to any
matter which in the opinion of the Executive Director may be
regarded as sensitive or contentious by any such group. The
Executive Director shall also notify the Committee Chairman
and/or Leader of such items and keep them informed of
progress.

(c) Where a member has made known to a Executive Director
his/her legitimate interest in a matter or where a matter
relates to or affects the member’s ward the Executive
Director shall consult with that member and shall keep the
member informed of significant developments relating to that
matter and similarly brief the relevant committee chairman.

17. The existence of a delegation to an Executive Director shall not require
that officer to take a decision on that issue. Executive Directors need
to be aware of particularly controversial issues of concern to the
Committees of the Council. In such circumstances he/she may refer
the matter for guidance or decision by the Committee or the Council if
he/she considers it is appropriate to do so at the earliest opportunity.
In so doing the Executive Director shall advise the Members
concerned of the extent of his/her delegated powers relating to the
matter.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 26



Responsibility for Functions
Executive Directors

Executive Directors

To manage the area for which he/she is responsible including:

1.

the day to day administration of personnel matters in accordance with Council
policy excluding decisions on discretionary pension issues;

the exercise of those powers specifically mentioned in the Local Conditions of
Service;

the procurement or provision of services required to discharge the Council’s
functions within his/her area of responsibility;

the management, furnishing and equipping of premises for which he/she is
responsible;

the incurring of any expenditure contained in approved estimates in his/her area of
responsibility;

the taking of all decisions within the purview of his/her service; and

the taking of any action required to implement a decision of the Council or any of
its Committees, Sub-Committees etc.

To arrange for the renewal, on appropriate terms, of leases and licences within the
purview of their service.

To respond to consultations from Government (including agencies) on proposals to
introduce new policies, procedures or legislation or to alter existing policies
procedures or legislation within the purview of their service.

10.To submit tenders/quotations up to the value of £75,000 for work for public

bodies as defined by the Local Authority (Goods and Services) Act 1970 and to
any other organisations permitted by legislation within the purview of their
service.

11.To make minor house-keeping amendments to any such policy as agreed by

the relevant Policy Committee on its adoption.

12.To ensure compliance with all adopted policies and procedures.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 27



Responsibility for Functions — Head of Paid Service

Head of Paid Service

1. To exercise overall responsibility for corporate management and operational
issues within existing budgets (including overall management responsibility
for all staff and the terms and conditions on which they are employed

2. To determine conclusively any question which may arise as to the interpretation
and application of the “Responsibility for Functions”.

3. In accordance with the provisions of the Local Government (Committees and
Political Groups) Regulations 1990, to agree the overall allocation of seats to
Groups resulting from the application of rounding.

(Limits on delegations: Following consultation with Group Leaders).

4. To determine any matter within the referred or delegated powers and duties of a
committee/sub-committee/board/ working group which is so urgent that a
decision must be made before the next meeting of that committee/sub-
committee/board/working group is due to be held.

(Limits on delegations: Before making any decision pursuant to this delegated
power, the Head of Paid Service shall consult with and take cognisance of the
views of the Chairman of the relevant committee/ sub-committee/ board/ working
group (or, in his/ her absence, the Vice-Chairman of that committee/ sub-
committee/ board/ working group). Any decision taken by the Head of Paid
Service under this delegated power shall be reported to Members within five
working days of the decision being taken.

5. To determine the closing time of Council offices and depots on the last working
day before Christmas Day.
(Limits on delegations: Following consultation with the Chairman of the
Corporate Policy and Resources Committee).

6. To appoint substitute members to serve on committees and sub-committees in
accordance with nominations put forward by the Political Groups on the Council.

7. For those organisations where representation is normally determined at Annual
Council, to make appointments where vacancies exist following the annual
meeting of Council.

(Limits on delegations: Following consultation with the Chairman of the
Council).

8. To take all such action and proceedings and to sign all such directions, notices
applications or other process in relation to Sections 77, 78 and 79 of the Criminal

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 28



Responsibility for Functions — Head of Paid Service

Justice and Public Order Act 1994 as deemed to be necessary and appropriate
on behalf of the Council.

(Limits on delegations: Following consultation with the Chairman of the
Prosperous Communities Committee).

9. In the event of extreme inclement weather; or insufficient business to warrant
calling a meeting or other unforeseen circumstance including periods of
national mourning/national emergencies to cancel or postpone a meeting of
the Council, a committee, sub-committee etc. or, where business dictates
that a meeting, not already set out in the timetable, be required to be held,
that meeting be called, in consultation with the relevant Chairman.

10. To establish and maintain an accountability framework to implement devolved
management arrangements.

11. To determine and publicise a description of the overall structure of the Council
showing the management structure and deployment of officers.

12. To add entries to the Capital Programme provided that they are fully externally
funded in consultation with the Leader of the Council and the Chief Finance
Officer.

13. Inthe absence of the Head of Paid Service the delegated powers in 1-12
above may be exercised by a designated deputy.

14.  To call concurrent meetings of the policy committees when it is considered
prudent and efficient to do so in accordance with the agreed protocol.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 29



Responsibility for Functions
Executive Director of Resources

Executive Director of Resources (Chief Finance Officer)

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

To exercise the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs under
section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and section 114 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1988.

To report on apparent unlawful expenditure, unlawful action causing loss or
deficiency, or unlawful items of account in accordance with section 114 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1988.

To negotiate with the Council’s external auditor on the level and type of audit
resources required to carry out the statutory and management audit requirements
of the Council.

To write off debt up to £2,500.

To operate the Council’s bank accounts including confirmation of alterations to
authorised signatory lists of agents.

To sign all necessary claim forms and certificates in respect of any grants or other
funds payable to the Council under any statutory or other powers.

To maintain adequate insurance cover on behalf of the Council and to negotiate
the settlement of any claims arising either with the Council’s insurers or their
appointed agents. /

To approve claims on the Council’s internal insurance fund.

To exercise the Council’s statutory borrowing powers to finance capital and
revenue expenditure pending the receipt of income and the lawful investment of
surplus cash and external funds

To make and account for appropriate deductions from pay and to make
appropriate employer contributions in respect of income tax, national insurance
and the superannuation fund.

To increase long service awards, retirement gifts and death in service awards in
line with the current retail price index from 1 April each year.

To approve new street names and numbering in respect of new development
submitted by:

« Parish Councils
* Private developers, following approval by the local parish council concerned
and Ward Councillors.

To write down sundry debts for cases subject to bankruptcy, liquidation or
administration order proceedings

14. To administer all matters relating to Council Tax and Benefits.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 30



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Responsibility for Functions
Executive Director of Resources

To act on behalf of the Council on matters relating to -

(@) making proposals for alterations to the Valuation List.

(b) objections to proposals in rateable value/banding.

(c) agreement to alterations to proposals in rateable value/banding.
(d) appeals to local Valuation Tribunals.

To agree apportionment of rateable values in accordance with section 44a of the
Local Government Finance Act 1988.

To write down Non-Domestic Rate and Council Tax outstanding in respect of each
arrears case which is subject to formal bankruptcy or liquidation claims.

To authorise applications for national non-domestic rate relief up to £5,000 on
hardship grounds in accordance with Section 49 of the LGFA 1988 and the Council’s
approved criteria.

To determine applications for national non-domestic rate discretionary relief in
accordance with Section 47 of the LGFA 1988 and where the application accords
with the Council’s approved policy framework.

To determine applications, in accordance with the Local Government Finance Act
1992 as amended by the Local Government Finance Act 2003 Section 76, for
Council Tax Section 13A Discretionary Relief.

To appear on behalf of the Council at a Valuation Tribunal or Benefits Appeal
Tribunal.

To determine applications for mandatory rate relief in accordance with Section 43
and Section 45 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (including the additional
granting of 20% discretionary relief) Responsibility for Functions

To deal with renewals of applications under 19 and 22 above unless there is a
change of circumstances.

To impose penalties in accordance with section 14(2) of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 on persons failing to supply information to or notify the billing
authority regarding Council Tax liability.

To make the assessment and decision on claims for discretionary housing
payments.

In accordance with the provisions of sections 101 and 223 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1972, to prosecute and defend on behalf of the Council,
or to appear on the Council’s behalf in proceedings before a Magistrates Court
relating to all and/or any of the matters referred to in the sub-paragraphs below -

(e) proceedings relating to the obtaining of Liability Orders in respect of unpaid
Council Taxes and National Non-Domestic rates;

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 31



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Responsibility for Functions
_ ) ) Executive Director of Resources
()  proceedings relating to the collection and recovery of penalties;

() committal proceeding relating to unpaid Council Taxes and National Non
Domestic rates;

(h) proceedings relating to the recovery of monies due to the Council either
directly or under agency arrangements.

To determine applications for national non-domestic rate relief on hardship
grounds or in accordance with Section 49 of the Local Government Finance
Act 1988 and the Council’s approved criteria.

To determine applications for national non-domestic rate discretionary relief in
accordance with Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 and
where the application accords with the Council’s approved policy framework.

To nominate the Council’s Data Protection Officer.
To postpone the discount charge for all organisations specified by Section 156 of
the Housing Act 1985
(Limits on delegation: Following consultation with the Chairman or Vice-
Chairman of the Prosperous Communities Committee).

To be the Council’s Shareholder representative for the Group Holding Company and
its individual subsidiaries.

To authorize short term cashflow loans to subsidiary companies to a maximum of
£25k per subsidiary company.

To authorise the forming of a partnership arrangement where the value of
works/services is no more than £25k.

With the Director of SureStaff, to agree the format and content of a Resourcing
Agreement for the supply of services by the Council.

To approve amendments to the Capital Programme up to £25k.

To authorise grants up to £50k.

To authorise spend of up to £50k from Earmarked Reserves.

To carry out the role of the Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) in accordance
with Local Public Services Data Handling Guidelines (Fourth Edition

(Revised)), sign Information Sharing Agreements, and determine and respond to
requests under the Data protection Act 1998.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 32



Responsibility for Functions
Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

1. To take all such actions and decisions in the proceedings of the Lincolnshire
Shared Legal Services Partnership.

2. To be the Electoral Registration Officer.

3. To be the Returning Officer for local Government elections.

4. To make, under Section 91 of the Local Government Act 1972, temporary
appointments of members to town and parish councils following consultation with the

Chairman of the Governance and Audit Committee.

Furthermore, use of this delegation will be reported to the Governance and Audit
Committee for information.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 33



Responsibilityfor Functions
Executive Director of Operations

Executive Director of Operations

1. To be the authorising officer for surveillance under the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 and as such can make requests for the
Magistrates’ Court to consider applications made under RIPA.

Public Protection

1. To decide, approve, determine, consider representations and applications,
grant, renew, vary, issue, relax, refuse, revoke, suspend, withdraw licences,
make and amend licence conditions, registrations, certificates, permits, awards
and authorisations in relation to the following legislation listed in section 4.

2. To be the Company Director of WLDC Trading Ltd and its Sure Staff
subsidiaries (Sure Staff Lincs Ltd and WLDC Staffing Services Ltd)

3. To appoint, authorise, nominate, named persons to

(@) Administer, exercise powers, give direction, exercise the powers of entry,
agree notices, act, take enforcement action including prosecutions,
serving notice, carrying out work in default, including cost recovery

(b)  Act as inspectors

(c)  Act as a competent person

(d)  Actin a statutory role

(e)  Administer the provisions

Q) Determine confidential matters

Under the provisions in the acts, regulations, and any associated orders and
regulations listed in paragraph 4 below.

4, The powers in paragraph 3 above apply to the following legislation:

Town Police Clauses Act 1847 & 1889 incorporated by the Public Health Act
1875.

Local Government Act 1972 s101 Lotteries,

Police, Factories, etc (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916

Performing Animals Act 1925 (Amendment) Regulations 2018

Public Health Act 1936

House to House Collections Act 1939

National Assistance Act 1948 as amended by the National Assistance
(Amendment) Act 1951.

Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 34



Responsibilityfor Functions
Executive Director of Operations

Pet Animals Act 1951 (Amendment) Regulations 2018

Hypnotism Act 1952

Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 (As
amended by the Mobile Homes Act 2013)

Public Health Act 1961

Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963 (Amendment) Regulations 2018
Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013

Riding Establishments Act 1964 and 1970 (Amendment) Regulations 2018
Slaughter of Poultry Act 1967

The Agriculture (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1968

European Communities Act 1972

Control of Pollution Act 1974

Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

Local Land Charges Act 1975

Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976 (Amendment) Regulations 2018
Land Drainage Act 1976

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and the Town Police
Clauses Act 1847

Land Charges Rules 1977

Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978

Zoo Licensing Act, 1981

Animal Health Act 1981

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

Control of Asbestos Work Regulations and the Asbestos (Licensing) Regulations
1983.

Building Act 1984

Public Health (Control of Diseases) Act 1984

Food and Environment Protection Act 1985

Natural Mineral Waters Regulations 1985

Control of Pesticides Regulations 1986

Public Health (Infectious Diseases) Regulations 1988

Health & Safety (Enforcing Authority) Regulations 1989

Food Safety Act 1990

Environmental Protection Act 1990.

Water Industry Act 1991

Dangerous Dogs Act 1991

Private Water Supplies Regulations 1991

Land Drainage Act 1991

Controlled Waste Regulations 1992

Clean Air Act 1993

Noise and Statutory Nuisance Act 1993

Sunday Trading Act 1994

Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994

Environment Act 1995

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 35



Responsibilityfor Functions
Executive Director of Operations

Noise Act 1996

Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Vehicle (Crime) Act 2001

Police Reform Act 2002

Licensing Act 2003

Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003

Food Safety Act 1990 (Amendment) Regulations 2004
General Food Regulations 2004

Christmas Day (Trading) Act 2004

Official Feed and Food Controls (England) (Regulations 2005)
Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005
Animal Welfare Act 2006

Health Act 2006

Gambling Act 2005

Sunbeds (Regulation) Act 2010

Food Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013

Food Information Regulations 2014

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014
The Microchipping of Dogs (England) Regulations 2015
Animal Welfare (licensing of activities involving animals)
(England) Regulations 2018

5. To enter into Agreements relating to the adoption of
sewers.
6. To deal with and adjudicate on complaints about high hedges under the Anti-

Social Behaviour Act 2003.

7. To deal with complaints made against “star ratings” in relation to Animal
establishments under the Animal Welfare (licensing of activities involving
animals) (England) Regulations 2018.

8. In relation to hackney carriage and private hire vehicles — to determine
applications for a short term exemption (3 months) on medical grounds for
drivers who cannot fulfil duties under the Equality Act (note - longer terms
exemptions will need to be considered by the Regulatory Sub-Committee).

0. Licensing Act 2003 — Delegated Authority be granted to Head of Paid Service
to dispense with the need for a hearing when relevant representations are
made in relation to the determination of a premises licence 18(3), variation of
a premises licence 35(3), determination of a club premises certificate 85(3)
and prior to the hearing the relevant representation(s) are subsequently
withdrawn, and the authority, the applicant , and each person who has made
such representation(s) agree that the hearing is unnecessary.

Sections 18(4)(a), 18(4)(b), 35(4)(a), 72(4)(a)(b) and 85(4)(a) apply as the
necessary steps to deal with the application; to promote the licensing
objectives and add/modify conditions.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 36



Responsibilityfor Functions
Executive Director of Operations

Operational Services
1. To appoint, authorise, nominate, named persons to

(a) Administer, exercise powers, give direction, exercise the powers of entry,
agree notices, act, take enforcement action including prosecutions,

serving notice, carrying out work in default, including cost recovery under
the following legislation:

. Clean Neighbourhood and Environment Act 2009 (Section 47A)
° Environment Protection act 1990 (Section 33 and 46)

2. To alter the approved fees and charges for Gainsborough Market stalls and
pitches for a limited period, in exceptional circumstances e.g. relocation of the
market or significant loss of traders, in consultation with the Chairman of the
Corporate Policy and Resources Committee.

3. To amend the Code of Practice for Traders, should the need arise, in
consultation with the Chairmen of the Corporate Policy and Resources
and Prosperous Communities Committees.

4. To approve the cancellation of markets in exceptional circumstances in
consultation with the Chairmen of the Corporate Policy and Resources
and Prosperous Communities Committees.

5. To approve the dates of any extra markets in Gainsborough Market
Place / Silver Street at any time of the year, in consultation with the
Chairmen of the Corporate Policy and Resources and Prosperous
Communities Committees.

6. To set charges for the collection and disposal of commercial waste

Development Management
1. To determine the following:

Applications for planning permission

Applications for Listed Building and Conservation Area Consent
Applications made under the Hazardous Substances regulations
Applications for consent to display advertisements

All prior approval applications

The above powers cannot be used if the following circumstances apply:

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 37



(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)
(e)
(f)
(9)

(h)

Responsibilityfor Functions
Executive Director of Operations

In the case of an application it is intended to determine in conflict with a
representation received from a parish or town council, a neighbour or other
person or organisation, that application will be referred to the Planning
Committee for determination where, in the professional opinion of the
Strategic Lead, appropriate Team Manager or senior officer within
Development and Neighbourhoods or Strategic Growth:

() The representation relates to a “planning matter”; and

(i)  The representation and the planning matters raised are directly
relevant to the application under consideration; and

(i) The planning matters under consideration in the determination of the
application are finely balanced.

The application has been subject to a request by a Councillor, made during
the formal 28 day consultation period and is supported by relevant planning
policies and other material planning considerations that are directly relevant
to the application being considered, to have it determined by the Planning
Committee for one of the following reasons;

(i) The application is of major importance or significance to the District as a
whole and therefore requires the input of Councillors in its determination

(i) There is, in the opinion of the Councillor making the request, a valid
planning reason why the application should be determined by the
Planning Committee and this is supported by relevant planning

policy.

It will be for the Executive Director of Operations or senior officer to decide
in consultation with the Chairman of the Planning Committee, on the basis
of the planning reasons given by the Councillor or planning policies referred
to, whether the application should be referred to the Planning Committee
for determination.

An application has been on deposit in the statutory register for a period of
less than 28 days or the period allowed for consultation replies to be received
has not expired, whichever is the later.

The applicant or agent is a Councillor.

The applicant or agent is from the immediate family of a Councillor.

The applicant or agent is an officer of the Council.

The applicant or agent is from the immediate family of an officer of the
Council.

The Executive Director of Operations or senior officer within considers it
appropriate that the application is determined by the Planning Committee.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 38



Responsibilityfor Functions
Executive Director of Operations

(i)  Any application where the recommendation is for approval which is in
conflict with a policy of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan or any
Neighbourhood Plan that has passed Regulation 14 stage, being those
plans at either an official draft stage or ‘made’ (adopted) Neighbourhood
Plan.

2. To determine all other matters which are part of the development management
process, including (but not exclusively):

(@) Approve details to discharge conditions attached to planning permissions

(b) To enter into negotiations and reach agreements concerning obligations,
agreements and undertakings — including those to do with s106 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Community Infrastructure Levy.

(c) To approve the details of agreements and obligations made under the
planning acts (including those made under s106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990).

(d) To approve non-material amendments to planning permissions.

(e) To determine those organisations and individuals who should be consulted
on planning and other applications.

() To deal with planning appeals.
(g) To decide the need for and content of environmental statements.

(h) To decline to determine applications where a previous application has been
dismissed at appeal and the new application is substantially the same.

3. To make Tree Preservation Orders and to confirm orders where no objection —
relevant under current legislation — has been made.

4. To determine all applications to lop, top or fell protected trees.

5. To determine notices to make safe dangerous trees in private ownership and to
take action to make the tree/s safe.

6. To determine all applications for the removal of hedgerows in accordance with the
Hedgerow Regulations 1997.

7. To confirm any unopposed footpath orders following the expiration of the statutory
consultation period.

8. To determine all applications relating to certificates of lawful use or development
and related applications [NB the provisions set out in paragraph 1 points d to g
with regard to officer and member applications and family relationships also apply

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 39




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Responsibilityfor Functions
Executive Director of Operations

to this category of application].

To make objections to the issuing of operators licences under the Transport Act
1968 and the Goods Vehicles (Operators Licences Qualifications and Fees)
Regulations 1984.

To respond to consultations from neighbouring Councils on planning applications
which might have an impact on the District, unless in the opinion of the
Executive Director of Operations or senior officer that impact is of wider
significance or of major importance to West Lindsey, under the duty to Co-
operate.

To respond to consultations on proposals for major infrastructure developments
within or having an impact upon the District, unless in the opinion of the
Executive Director of Operations or senior officer that impact is of wider
significance or of major importance to West Lindsey, under the duty to Co-
operate.

To respond to consultations on pipeline consents within the District, unless in the
opinion of the Executive Director of Operations or senior officer that impact is of
wider significance or of major importance to West Lindsey, under the duty to Co-
operate.

To respond to consultations on county matters or county developments, unless in
the opinion of the Executive Director of Operations or senior officer that impact is
of wider significance or of major importance to West Lindsey, under the duty to
Co- operate.

To draw up service level agreements (SLAs) with other organisations for the
effective delivery of services related to regeneration which includes, but is not
limited to, economic development, tourism and skills and employment.

To enter into partnerships that increase the benefit, services and influence
available to West Lindsey District Council with other organisations related to
regeneration, which includes, but is not limited to, economic development, tourism
and skills and employment.

To initiate planning enforcement action (including all action related to the listed
buildings and trees), including (but not exclusively):

(@) To serve enforcement notices

(b)  To serve breach of condition notices

(c) Toissue stop notices

(d)  To issue temporary stop notices

(e) To serve planning contravention notices
()  To serve s215 notices

() To authorise prosecution

Under all relevant statues or any subordinate rules, orders or regulations.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 40



17.

18.

19.

Responsibilityfor Functions
Executive Director of Operations

To determine it is not expedient to take enforcement action in accordance with
the Council’'s enforcement policy unless the Planning Committee has
authorised the enforcement action.

To arrange for the renewal, on appropriate terms, of leases and licences.
To appoint Consultants where necessary within the budget to ensure compliance

with the Council’'s Capital works Programme, or to provide technical advice on
work of a specialist nature.

20. To submit applications for planning permission, listed building consent and other

21.

necessary consents in respect of any works included in the approved capital or
revenue programme.

To accept the Examiner’s report and approve that a neighbourhood plan may
advance to Public Referendum following a successful independent examination in
accordance with the Localism Act 2011 and the Neighbourhood Plan Regulations
2012.

Community Projects

1.

To alter the approved fees and charges at the Trinity Arts Centre for a limited
period, taking into account the circumstances at any given time.

Planning and Housing Enforcement

1.

To determine housing applications within the term of the current
homelessness legislation.

To approve applications to be placed on the Council’'s Housing Register
which fall within the criteria for acceptance.

To make nominations to Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) and other
agencies in accordance with the Council’s approved housing allocation
policies.

To decide, approve, determine, consider representations and applications,
vary, issue, relax, refuse, revoke, suspend, withdraw licences, licence
conditions, registrations, certificates, permits, awards and authorisations
in relation to the following legislation listed in section 5 below.

To appoint, authorise, nominate, named persons to

a. Administer, exercise powers, give direction, exercise the powers of entry,
agree notices, act, take enforcement action including prosecutions,
serving notice, carrying out work in default, including cost recovery

b. Act as inspectors

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 41



Responsibilityfor Functions
Executive Director of Operations

Act as a competent person
Act in a statutory role
Administer the provisions
Determine confidential matters

~® Qo

Under the provisions in the acts, regulations, and any associated orders and regulations
listed below:

The Dogs Act 1906 as amended by the Local Government Act 1988
Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949

Building Act 1984

Environmental Protection Act 1990

Dangerous Dogs Act 1991

Dogs Fouling of Land Act 1996

Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005

Animal Welfare Act 2006

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014

Landlord and Tenant Act 1985

Public Health Act 1936

The Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) Regulations 2015
Redress Schemes for Lettings Agency Work and Property Management Work
(Requirement to Belong to a Scheme etc.) (England) Order 2014
Housing Act 1985

Housing Act 2004

Environmental Protection Act 1990

Landlord and Tenant Act 1972

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

Housing Act 1996

Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996

Local Government and Housing Act 1989

Building Act 1984

Defective Premises Act 1976

Public Health Act 1936

Public Health Act 1961

Protection from Eviction Act 1977

Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949

Law of Property Act 1925

Town and Country Planning Act 1990

Acquisition of Land Act 1981

The Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960

Mobile Homes Act 2013

The Energy Act 2013

The Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) (England and Wales) Regulations
2015

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 42



Responsibilityfor Functions
Executive Director of Operations

Protection from Eviction Act 1977

The Housing and Planning Act 2016

Local Government and Housing Act 1989

Housing, Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996

The Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) (England & Wales) Order 2002
Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994

Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 43



Responsibilityfor Functions
Executive Director of Operations

Building Control:

1. To carry out all the Council’s functions in respect of the necessary statutory
provisions related to applications for, and enforcement action under the building
regulations and issues relating to the building acts and any other associated
legislation, regulations and provisions, including provisions on dangerous buildings,
structures and means of escape in case of fire, including power to:

a. Inclusively, but not exclusively determine plans, issue completion certificates
under the Building Regulations and applications for the relaxation of the
Building Regulation requirement concerning means of escape and request
for dispensations;

b. Serve notices in relation to ruinous and dilapidated property and the
proposed demolition of buildings;

c. Carry out functions of the Council in relation to dangerous structures and
buildings;

d. Exercise powers of the Council in relation to accesses and egresses to
public and other buildings, and means of escape in case of fire;

e. Control the use of private approved inspectors and approved bodies in
relation to building regulation matters;

f. Discharge the functions of the Council in relation to safety certificates for
sports grounds;

g. Serve Notices relating to lapse in time for the deposit of plans, requirements
for works to be carried out in accordance with approved plans, chimneys,
dangerous structures and dilapidated buildings;

h. Serve Notices to open up works;

i. Authorise action to deal with dangerous excavations; and

j-  Appointment of Authorised Officers to exercise the powers of entry for the
purposes of the Building Acts;

k. Exercise powers of the council in respect of Material Sampling and Testing
for Conformity in pursuance of Building Regulations Compliance;
I.  To maintain the record of Building Regulations compliance certificate

issued by third parties, approved to do so, by the Secretary of State.

Enterprising Communities

1. To determine parish lighting reviews and new requests for parish lighting in
accordance with the approved policy.

Reviewed November 2018 Part IV / Page 44



Responsibility for Functions
Executive Director of Economic & Commercial Growth

Executive Director of Economic and Commercial Growth

1. Where appropriate, to appoint a competent person to be the CDM Coordinator
under the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2007.

2. To assign leases.
3. To agree and sign Licences and Wayleaves affecting Council land.
4, To terminate leases and licenses, including issuing Notices to Quit and Notices

under the provisions of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954, where possession is
required by the Council for an approved purpose.

5. To take all such action and proceedings and to sign all such directions, notices,
applications or other process in relation to obtaining possession of any part of the
Council’s land holding from unauthorised campers, travellers and other
trespassers as deemed to be necessary and appropriate on behalf of the Council.

6. To deal with all enquiries for the disposal of small areas of land or rights over
land, subject to the following conditions being satisfied -

(@) the affected land is deemed to be surplus to the Council’s requirements

(b)  and, for sales, can be disposed of in one transaction or one series of
transactions;

(c) there is the prospect of generating some income or some other tangible
benefit to the Council such as no further management or maintenance of
the land; and

(d)  there are no potential long-term management problems or legal
encumbrance associated with the sale or grant which would negate the
value of (b).

7. To approve miscellaneous short-term lettings.

8. To negotiate terms to take a lease or licence or to acquire the freehold of land or
premises where a service need has been identified and budgetary provision made.

9. Making funding bids to various public sector bodies.

10. Developing funding strategies for strategic growth projects utilising council funding
and assets.

11. Working up commercial relationships with the private sector to deliver social and
economic return.

Reviewed November 2018
Part IV Page 45



Responsibility for Functions
Executive Director of Economic & Commercial Growth

12. Seeking appropriate levels of commercial return to the council from the above.

13. Implementing WLDC capital programmes and delivering projects and programmes
with grant funds.

14. Acting as accountable body for the above.

Reviewed November 2018
Part IV Page 46



SCHEME OF MANAGEMENT: CORPORATE DELEGATIONS

Note: delegations can only be exercised within the relevant officer’s area of responsibility

Responsibility for Functions
Corporate Delegations

Decision Executive | Chief Strategic | Team Notes
Director Finance |Lead Manager
Officer
1. Establishment (Changes must be funded from within the Strategic Lead’s approved employee budget and not commit to
additional expenditure in future years. Managers to involve HR & Finance when exercising delegation)
1.1 | Making changes to the establishment. Creating
and deleting posts v v
1.2 | Making changes to job documentation (JDsand | v v v v
person specifications)
1.3 | Making changes to the structure and reporting v
lines
1.4 | Implement conditions of service as provided for v
in the national or local conditions of service
1.5 | Carry out appropriate consultation with the
workforce and trade union representatives about | v v
changes in work practices, payment schemes
and operational matters
1.6 | Deal with personal grading protection in cases of
redeployment or changed circumstances v v
2. Appointments
2.1 | Deciding to fill vacant posts v v v v Recruitment Procedure
2.2 | Taking decisions on the recruitment process for v
individual posts v v v

Reviewed November 2018

Part IV Page 47




Responsibility for Functions
Corporate Delegations

Decision Chief Strategic Team Notes
Executive Finance Lead Manager
Director Officer
2.3 Chairing appointments panels and making v v v v Posts at chief officer level,
appointments statutory officers and above are

member appointments. Panels for
service manager appointments
must be chaired by Exec directors

2.4 Deciding whether to proceed with v v v v
appointments

in the light of references, medicals and

criminal record checks

2.5 Determining whether the probation period fora v v v v
new recruit has been successfully completed
2.6 Approving acting up and cover arrangements v v v v
2.7 Authorising transfers and v v v
secondments
2.8 Procuring/engaging agency and temporary v v v v Within area of responsibility and
staff budgetary limits.
3. Remuneration (Managers to involve HR and Finance when exercising delegation)
3.1 Authorising a request for a post to be graded v v v v
or
3.2 Authorising essential car user status v v v v
3.3 Approving annual increments v v v v
3.4 Awarding honoraria and ex-gratia payments v v v v

Reviewed November 2018
Part IV Page 48



Responsibility for Functions

Corporate Delegations

Decision Executive | Chief Strategic | Team Notes
Director Finance |Lead Manager
Officer
3.5 Approving acting up allowances v v v v
3.6 Approving or authorising pay supplements that | v v v v
form part of a member of staff's terms of
employment e.g. overtime, bonus etc.
3.7 Authorising expenses and allowances v v v v
4. Disciplinary, capability, sickness management and grievances
4.1 Suspending a member of staff v v v 4
4.2 Instructing a member of staff to leave v v v v
the premises
4.3 Initiating disciplinary, performance, capability
and managing attendance v v v v
proceedings/confirming charges and taking
action that may lead to warnings or dismissal
4.4 Chairing a panel or a review meeting that v
may deal with any issues relating to v v v
disciplinary/capability/performance/managi
ng attendance procedures
4.5 Determining complaints under the v v v v
Grievance Procedure
4.6 Determining appeals under the grievance, v v v
disciplinary, capability, performance
management and managing attendance

Reviewed November 2018

Part IV Page 49




Responsibility for Functions
Corporate Delegations

Decis ion Chief Strategic | Team Notes
Executive | Finance |Lead Manager
Director | Officer
5. Attendance (Managers to involve HR and Finance when exercising delegation)
5.1 Agreeing changes to an individual’s v v v v
contractual hours
5.2 Agreeing hours of attendance v v v v
5.3 Agreeing the application of any flexible or shift | v v v v
working arrangements
5.4 Agreeing home working arrangements v v v v
5.5 Approving annual leave and flexi leave v v v v
5.6 Approving carry over leave v v v v
5.7 Approving special leave v v v v
5.8 Approving training (time off and costs) v v v v In line with budget resource
5.9 Approving time off with pay v v v v
5.10 | Approving leave without pay v v v v
6. Leavers
6.1 Confirming resignations v v v v
6.2 Providing references v v v v
6.3 Agreeing terms on which staff leave the Council| v v v v Legal Services Manager to

e.g. compromise agreement, outstanding leave,
notice to be worked etc.

agree the terms of any
compromise agreement

Part IV Page 50




Responsibility for Functions
Corporate Delegations

Decision Executive | Chief Strategic | Team Notes
Director Finance |Lead Manager
Officer
6.4 Designating a member of staff as a redeployee | v/ v v
6.5 Agreeing redundancy/early retirement v
Budgets and expenditure (any decision taken must be consistent with the Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules)

7.1 Incurring expenditure within approved v v v v
budget limits

7.2 Authorising virements within approved v v v v
service budget

7.3 Authorising virements between approved
service budgets v v

7.4 Incurring expenditure in a ‘state of Financial Procedure rules, where
emergency’ or in order to ensure business v v practicable. CMT and CFO in
continuity consultation with Chairman of

Corporate Policy and Resources
Committee.

7.5 Incurring expenditure in taking immediate Financial Procedure rules, where
urgent action in responding to civil v v practicable. CMT and CFO in
emergency and severe weather consultation with Chairman of

Corporate Policy and Resources
Committee.
7.6 Authorising compensation v v Subject to financial limits

Corporate Policy and Resources
Committee.

Resources Committee.

Part IV Page 51

— up to £25,000; Exec Director and CFO
Over £25,000 to £100,000; CMT and
CFO and consultation with Chairman of

Over £100,000; Corporate Policy and




Responsibility for Functions
Corporate Delegations

Decision Executive D  Chief Strategic  Team Notes
Finance Lead Manager
Officer
8. Payroll
8.1 Authorising payroll submissions v v v v Includes authority to include a
new employee on the payroll
8.2 Authorising payroll corrections v v v v
9. Income
9.1 Determining whether income is due v v v v
9.2 Agree changes to locally determined fees v Action taken to be reported to
and charges in exceptional circumstances Corporate Policy and
Resources Committee
9.3 Initiating debt recovery action v v v No decision required- ]
administrative task. Decision not
to pursue a debt needs to be a
delegated decision- see below
(writing off debts)
9.4 Cancelling and reversal of debts v v v Cancellation of debt raised in

Part IV Page 52

error; administrative task
providing there is documented




Responsibility for Functions
Corporate Delegations

Decision Chief Strategic Team Notes
Executive  Finance Lead Manager
Director Officer

9.5 Writing off debts v Up to £1,500; CFO

Over £1,500; Corporate Policy
and Resources Committee
decision

10. Purchasing and Procurement (any decision taken must be consistent with the Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules
10.1 | Seeking tenders and quotations within approved v v v v
limits
10.2 | Accept the most favourable tender/quotation in v/ v v (a) above whole life contract
terms of quality, timeliness and cost providing (@) (a) (b) value of £75,000
it is within the approved budget (b) up to whole life contract
value of £75,000
10.3 | Allowing exemptions to the Contract Procedure v In specific circumstances as
Rules detailed in the Contract
Procedure Rules
10.4 | Placing and authorising orders v v v v In accordance with
authorised purchasing limits
10.5 | Determining purchasing limits for officers v v v
10.6 | Authorising variations to contracts within v v v Per authorised limits
approved limits
10.7 | Terminating contracts v v v Subject to legal advice
10.8 | Maintaining an inventory of assets v v v v
10.9 | Disposal of Assets v v v Subject to guidance in

Financial Procedure Rules

Part IV Page 53




Responsibility for Functions
Corporate Delegations

Decision Chief Strategic Team Notes
Executive Finance Lead Manager
Director Officer

10.10 | Authorising invoices v v v v May be delegated further
within service areas to
designated budget
managers.

10.11 | Appointing consultants v v v v

11. Authorisations

11.1 | Signing off reports to committee v v In compliance with
committee report sign off
procedures

11.2 | Signing off Government and other returns v v v v

11.3 | Signing off bids and applications for funding v v v In Compliance with
Financial Procedure Rules
after consulting CFO

11.4 | Approving service and business plans v

11.5 | Approve response to consultative documents v v v v Within area of responsibility

after consultation with
appropriate chairman; if
politically contentious will be
report to Committee

Part IV Page 54




Responsibility for Functions
Corporate Delegations

Decision Chief Strategic Team Notes
Executive Director Finance Lead Manager
Officer
11.6 | Certified compliance v v
8. PCI-DSS
9. PSN
10. Plus any other other information
governance standards as may be
announced in due course
12. Complaints
12.1 | Determining complaints v v v v
13. Engaging Specialists
13.1 | Engaging legal advice v v v v Subject to consultation with
Legal Services Manager
13.2 |Engaging consultants where necessary to v v v Within budget provision and

provide technical advice or work of a
specialist

compliance with Contract
Procedure Rules

Part IV Page 55




Responsibility for Functions
Corporate Delegations

Decision Executive | Chief Strategic | Team Notes
Director Finance | Lead Manager
Officer
14. Land Transactions
14.1 Acquisitions and disposals of an item contained in the Subject to Resources Subject to reference to
Approved Capital Programme. The purchase or sale of approval of Directorate Corporate Policy and
land up to £75,000 in value (including leases or the Chief Only Resources Committee by the
easements where the annual rent multiplied by the length | Finance appropriate Exec Director re
officer areas of open space or land in

of the lease does not exceed that figure assuming that
the rent is not increased on review) and between £75,001
and £250,000 only to be undertaken following
consultation with the Leader of the Councillor or the
Deputy Leader when the Leader is unavailable.
In all cases of acquisition and disposals, the use of the
delegated power is subject to:
In the case of acquisitions, the capital funds to be used
form an agreed allocation in the current Capital
Programme adopted by Council;
Any proposed acquisition or disposal has been subject to
an independent valuation, preferably by the District Valuer
or some other Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors
independent Valuer;

Reporting the completed acquisition, lease, or disposal
to the next available Corporate Policy & Resources
Committee.

Where a sale is pursuant to Section 123 of the Local
Government Act 1972, Section 32 Housing Act 1985 or
Section 25 of the Local Government Act 1988, consent to
the Secretary of State may be sought as necessary.”

the nature of open space if
there is significant public
interest in the preservation of
the same.

Part IV Page 56




Responsibility for Functions
Corporate Delegations

Decision Executive | Chief Strategic | Team Notes
Director Finance |Lead Manager
Officer
14.2| Compulsory Disposals. Any sale or lease of land Resources
pursuant to the Right to Buy or the Right of v v Eg@cmrate
Enfranchisement under the Housing Act 1985,
the Leasehold Reform Act 1967 or The
Leasehold Reform Housing and Urban
Development Act 1993 subject to compliance
with the statutory procedures.
15. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
15.1| Authorise persons to conduct surveillance in
accordance with covert surveillance policy v
16. Constitutional & Legal
16.1| Affix the Common Seal of the Council to Following consultation
documents v with the Section 151 and
Monitoring Officer
16.2| Certify that a photocopy of a document, order,
report or minutes is a true copy v v v
16.3| Institute, conduct and/or settle legal proceedings | v v v

Within area of responsibility
after consultation with Legal
Services Manager

16.4| Determine and respond to requests under the
Data Protection Act 1998

Part IV Page 57




Responsibility for Functions
Corporate Delegations

Decision Chief Strategic Team Notes
Exec Finance Lead Manager
Director Officer
16.4| Issue, serve, receive and act upon notices and to
impose requirements under any legislation v v v
enforced by the Council inc s16 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976, s19 of the Environmental Protections Act
1990 & s24 of the Town & Country Planning Act
1990
16.5| Obtain particulars of persons interested in land
under s16 of the Local Government v v v
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
16.6| Determine and respond to requests under the v Corporate centre must be
Freedom of Information Act 200 and the v v v consulted before applying
Environmental Information Regulations 2004 an exemption. Where s36
is engaged Monitoring
Officer must make decision.
16.7| Publish statutory advertisements and notices v v v v

Part IV Page 58




Responsibility for Functions
Proper Officers

Proper Officers

The following officers have been designated “proper officers” for these functions:

Statute Function Proper Officer
Sections 84 and 85 Public Cleansing of filthy or verminous Executive
Health Act 1936 articles, persons or clothing Director of
persons or clothing Operations
Section 47 National Removal of persons to suitable Executive
Assistance Act 1948 as accommodation in specified Director of
amended by the National circumstances Operations
Assistance Act 1951
Section 37 Public Health Act | Disinfestation of verminous articles | Executive
1961 offered for sale Director of
Operations

Section 83 Local
Government Act 1972
(LGA 1972)

Witness and receipt of
declarations of acceptance of
office of Chairman, Vice-Chairman
and Councillors

Head of Paid Service

Section 84 LGA 1972

Receipt of written notice of
resignation of office of Chairman,
Vice-Chairman and Councillors

Head of Paid Service

Section 88 LGA 1972

Convene a Council meeting for the
election to the vacant office of
Chairman of the Council.

Head of Paid Service

Section 89 LGA 1972

Receipt of notice in writing of a
casual vacancy occurring in the
office of Councillor given by two
local government electors for the
electoral area.

Head of Paid Service

Section 100f (2) LGA 1972

Relates to the exclusion from
Council agendas any information
which is likely to be dealt with in
the absence of the press and
public

Executive Directors

Section 100b(2) LGA 1972

Relates to the circulation of
Committee Reports and Agendas

Executive Directors

Part IV Page 59




Responsibility for Functions
Proper Officers

Statute

Function

Proper Officer

Section 100B(7)c LGA 1972

Supply to any newspaper copies
of documents supplied to
Members of the Council in
connection with an item to be
considered at a meeting.

Executive Directors

Section 100C (2) LGA 1972

Preparation of a written
summary of proceedings of
committees and sub-committees
of the Council.

Head of Paid Service

Section 100D(1)a LGA 1972

Preparation of a list of
background documents for
reports considered by
committees and sub-
committees of the Council

Head of Paid Service

Section 115 LGA 1972

Receipt of monies from
accountable officers

Chief Finance
Officer

Section 146 LGA 1972

Certificates as to securities on
alteration of local authority area
or name

Head of Paid
Service Chief
Finance Officer

Section 151 LGA 1972 (and
Section 114 Local
Government and Finance Act
1988)

Responsibility for the proper
administration of the Council’s
financial affairs.

Chief Finance
Officer

Deputy Chief
Finance Officer

Section 225 LGA 1972

Deposit of any documents
pursuant to any enactment,
instrument or parliamentary
standing orders

Executive Directors

Section 229 LGA 1972

Certification of any photographic
copy of a document in the custody
of the council or of any document
destroyed while in which custody,
or any part of such document

Head of Paid Service

Part IV Page 60




Responsibility for Functions
Proper Officers

Statute

Function

Proper Officer

Section 231 LGA 1972

Receive documents required to
be served on the council

Head of Paid Service

Section 234 LGA 1972

Signature or authentication of any
notice or other document which

the local authority is authorised or
required to give or make or issue

Executive
Directors

Section 238 LGA 1972

Certification of printed copies of
by-laws

Head of Paid Service

Schedule 12 (para. 4(2)(b))
LGA 1972

Signature of summons to attend
council meetings and receipt of
notices regarding the address to
which a summons to a meeting is
to be sent.

Head of Paid Service

Schedule 14 (para. 25(7))
LGA 1972

Responsibility for true copies of
resolutions.

Head of Paid Service

Sections 3 and 19 Land
Charges Act 1975

Act as the Local Registrar.

Executive
Director of

ANnnratinnec

Section 41 Local
Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1976.

Certification of minutes,
resolution, orders & reports as
evidence of resolutions of
proceedings

Head of Paid Service

Section 28 Representation
of the People Act 1983
(RPA 1983)

Acting Returning Officer for a
parliamentary election.

Head of Paid Service

Section 35 RPA 1983

Returning Officer for local
government elections.

Head of Paid Service

Section 8 RPA 1983

Electoral Registration Officer.

Head of Paid Service

Reviewed November 2018

Part IV Page 61




Responsibility for Functions
Proper Officers

Statute

Function

Proper Officer

Sections 11, 18, 20, 21,
22,

24, 29, and 31 - Public
Health (Control of Disease)
Act 1984; Regulations 8
and

9 and Schedules 3 and 4 -
Public Health (Infectious
Diseases) Regulations
1988

Notification and control powers
for communicable diseases

Executive
Director of
Operations

S.2 Local Government and
Housing Act 1989 (LG&HA
1989)

Hold on deposit the list of
politically restricted posts.

Head of Paid Service

Section 3 LG&HA 1989 as
amended by Section 202
Local Government and Public
Involvement in Health Act
2007

Issue employer’s certificate for
exemption from politically
restricted posts.

Head of Paid Service

Section 4 LG&HA 1989

Head of the Paid Service.

Head of Paid Service

Section 5 LG&HA 1989

Monitoring Officer.

As designated

Section 15 LG&HA 1989 &
Local Government
(Committees & Political
Groups) Regulations 1990

Receipt of notices relating to the
membership of political groups.

Head of Paid Service

Regulation 23 Non-Domestic

Certification of the Local Non-

Chief Finance

(Referendums) (Petitions &
Directions) Regulations 2000

and publicity of petitions

(Collection & Enforcement) Domestic List Officer
(Local Lists) Regulations

1989

Local Authorities Functions relating to verification Electoral

Registration Officer

Section 36 Freedom of
Information Act 2000

Act as the ‘qualified person’

Monitoring Officer
Deputy Monitoring
Officer

Local Authorities (Standing
Orders) Regulations 2001

Notices regarding proposed
appointments of staff

Head of Paid Service

Reviewed November 2018

Part IV Page 62




Responsibility for Functions

Proper Officers

Statute

Function

Proper Officer

Local Authorities (Conduct of
Referendums) (England)
Regulations 2001

All references to the proper officer

Electoral
Registration Officer

Section 100 (f) (2) of the
Local Government Act 1972

Relates to the exclusion from
council agendas any information
which is likely to be dealt with in the

Executive
Directors

Section 100 (b) (2) of the
Local Government Act 1972

Relates to the circulation of
committee reports and agendas

Head of Paid Service

Section 13 (3) of Part Ill of
Schedule 12 of the Local
Government Act 1972

Relates to holding the Office of
Parish Trustee where there is a
parish meeting with no separate

Monitoring Officer

Reviewed November 2018

Part IV Page 63




District Council

Constitution of West Lindsey District Council

Part V

Rules of Procedure




Procedure Rules

Contents

Council Procedure RUIES...........ccoueeieeeiie e
Access to Information Procedure Rules .........ccccceeiiveiiinenneen.
Budgetary and Policy Framework Procedure Rules ...............
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules.........ccccccceeeeivieeenns
Financial Procedure RUIES .........c.ooviiiiieiieiiee e
Contract and Procurement Procedure Rules

Officer Employment Procedure RuUI€S .......ccccccvvvveeveeeciiieeenes

Reviewed March 2019

1-16
18 - 21
23-24
26 - 32
33 -116
117 — 138
139 - 142



Council Procedure Rules

Contents
Rule
1. Annual meeting of the CouNCil.........ccooiriiirii 1
2. Ordinary councCilMeetings .......cooceiuererieeiere et 2
3. Extraordinary Council meetings........ccoovveeeiiiiieeiiie e 3
4. Appointment of substitute members of committees and sub-committees 3
5. Time and place of MEEtINGS ......c.coviirieiieeee e 4
6.  Notice of and sSUMMONS 10 MEELINGS.......cooiiriiiiiieeie e 4
7. Chairof MeetiNg.......ccoviieriiie e 4
8. QUOTUM it e e 4
9. QUESHONS e e 4
10. MotiONSON NOLICE. ....coiviieiie e 6
11.  Motions WithOUL NOLICE ......ceeeeee e 7
12. Rulesofdebate.........cooeiiiiiieieee e 7
13. Previous decisions and MOLIONS ..........eviiieiiieiiiiiieee e e 11
T4, VOUNG e e e e e e e e e e e as 11
L TR 1Y/ T 0 =S 12
16. Record of attendanCe ..........cueeveiiiiiii e 12
17, EXCIUSION Of PUDBIIC. .....eeiieeeeiee s 12
18. Members’ CONAUCT ......coiiiiiiiiie et e e e e e e e e e eenes 12
19. Disturbance by PUbDIIC...........oooii i 13
20. Suspension and amendment of Council Procedure Rules........................... 13
21. Application to committees and sub-committees ..........cccceveeiireeicneeieneene, 14
22. Powers of COMMITEES .......uuiiiieeeeiie e 14
23. Chairmen Of COMMITEES ......eovieieieieeee e e 14
24. Special meetings of committees and sub-committees...........ccoceiiiiiinenen. 14
25. Attendance at committees and sub-committees .........cccccereeiireeicnecicieene, 14
26. Quorum of committees and SUb-COMMILLEES........cceevreeveiieeiieeeee e, 15
27. New committees and sub-committees to take up business of

former committees and SUb-COMMILIEES.........ccoruiiiirieer e, 15
28. POltICAI DAIANCE ...oooieeieeeeee e 15
29. Constitution to be given to Members ... 16

Reviewed March 2019



Council Procedure Rules

These Procedure Rules regulate the proceedings of the Council meetings and
the range of committees.

If a Member requires any advice on the operation of these Rules or the statutory
provisions which affect Council or committee meetings, or on the declaration of
interests at meetings, they should contact the Monitoring Officer or Deputy
Monitoring Officer, or any of the Executive Directors, before the meeting and
they will be pleased to assist. This does not preclude Members seeking advice
during any Council or committee meeting.

1.  Annual Meeting of the Council

Timing and business

1.1 In a year when there is an ordinary election of Councillors, the annual
meeting will take place within 21 days of the retirement of the outgoing
Councillors. In any other year, the annual meeting will take place in March,
April or May.

1.2 The annual meeting will -

® O O T o

)
)
)
)
)

—

)

elect a person to preside if the Chairman of Council is not present;
elect the Chairman of Council;

appoint the Vice-Chairman of Council;

approve the minutes of the last meeting;

consider the Monitoring Officer’s report on the constitution — if any;
receive any declarations of interest from members;

appoint the Leader of the Council;

appoint the Deputy Leader(s) of the Council;

appoint such Committees as the Constitution requires;

consider any business set out in the notice convening the meeting.

Selection of Councillors on Committees and Outside Bodies

1.3 At the annual meeting, the Council will -

a)
b)

decide which committees to establish for the municipal year;
decide the size and terms of reference for those committees;

decide the allocation of seats to political groups in accordance with
the political balance rules;

receive nominations of Councillors to serve on each committee and
outside body (where vacancies exist); and

appoint to those committees and outside bodies except where
appointment to those bodies has been delegated by the Council.

Appoint Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen to serve on each
Committee and determine the normal commencement time for
each Committee.

Part V / Page 1

Reviewed March 2019



Council Procedure Rules

2. Ordinary Council Meetings

2.1 Ordinary meetings of the Council will take place in accordance with the
agreed programme. Ordinary meetings will -

a) elect a person to preside if the Chairman and Vice-Chairman are not
present;

b) approve the minutes of the last meeting;
c) receive any declarations of interest from members;

d) receive any announcements from the Chairman, Leader of the
Council or Head of Paid Service;

e) receive questions from, and provide answers to, the public in relation
to matters which, in the opinion of the person presiding at the
meeting, are relevant to the business of the Authority provided it is
not an agenda item for that meeting;

f)  deal with any business from the last Council meeting;

g) receive recommendations from the Council’s committees and
receive questions and answers on any of those reports;

h)  receive reports about and receive questions and answers on the
business of joint arrangements and external organisations;

i)  consider motions;

j)  consider petitions submitted in accordance with the Council’s
petitions scheme;

k) consider any other business specified in the summons to the meeting
and reports of the Challenge and Improvement Committee for
debate; and

2.2 Subject to the following provisions of this Rule, business shall be taken in
the order in which it stands upon the summons to attend the meeting. The
Council may, by resolution, vary the order of business but no such
resolution shall be passed if its effect would be -

a) tointerfere with the performance in due order of any business
required to be done by statute; or

b) to give precedence to motions submitted under Rule 10.
2.3 A motion to vary the order of business under this Rule may be moved by

any Member without notice at the conclusion of any item of business and,
if the motion is seconded, it shall be put to the vote without debate.

Part V / Page 2

Reviewed March 2019



Council Procedure Rules

3. Extraordinary Council Meetings
3.1 Calling extraordinary meetings.

Those listed below may require the Head of Paid Service to call a Council
meeting in addition to ordinary meetings -

Q

the Council by resolution;

O T

)

) the Chairman of the Council
) the Monitoring Officer; or

)

o

any five members of the Council if they have signed a requisition
stating the subject, presented to the Chairman of the Council and
he/she has refused to call a meeting or has failed to call a meeting
within seven days of the presentation of the requisition.

3.2 Business to be conducted at extraordinary meetings will be restricted to
the item on the agenda and exclude consideration of previous minutes etc.
This is in order to preserve the use of extraordinary meetings for debates
concerning one-off major matters.

4. Appointment of Substitute Members of Committees and
Sub-Committees

Allocation

* 41  The Council will permit the allocation of seats on committees and
sub-committees to substitute members, subject to appropriate
training having been undertaken. Challenge and Improvement
Committee members are permitted to substitute on the policy committee(s)
subject to compliance with paragraph vi on page 5 of Part 3 of the
Members’ code of conduct.

Powers and duties

* 42 Substitute members will have all the powers and duties of any ordinary
member of the committee but will not be able to exercise any special
powers or duties exercisable by the person they are substituting.

Substitution
* 43 Substitute members may attend meetings in that capacity only -

a) to take the place of the ordinary member for whom they are the
designated substitute;

b)  where the ordinary member is expected to be absent for the whole of
the meeting; and

c) aftertheir Group Leader/Spokesperson, Deputy
Leader/Spokesperson or a majority of members of the relevant
Group has notified the Head of Paid Service in writing of the
intended substitution before the commencement of the meeting.

Part V/ Page 3

Reviewed March 2019



Council Procedure Rules

*4.4 In the event of the ordinary member who has been substituted arriving at
the meeting, he/she will be treated as a non-member of the
committee/sub-committee for that meeting only.

5. Time and Place of Meetings

*5.1  The time and place of meetings will be determined by the Head of Paid
Service and notified in the summons.

At the Annual Meeting of Council, each committee will determine its
normal commencement time.

6. Notice of and Summons to Meetings

*6.1 The Head of Paid Service will give notice to the public of the time and
place of any meeting in accordance with the Access to Information
Procedure Rules. At least five clear working days before a meeting, the
Head of Paid Service will send a summons, signed by him or her, by post
or electronic mail to every Member of the Council or leave it at their usual
place of residence. The summons will give the date, time and place of
each meeting and specify the business to be transacted, and will be
accompanied by the reports.

7. Chair of Meeting
*7.1 The person presiding at the meeting may exercise any power or duty of
the Chairman. Where these Rules apply to committee and sub-committee
meetings, references to the Chairman also include the chairmen of
committees and sub-committees.

8. Quorum

8.1 The quorum of a Council meeting will be one quarter of the total elected
seats available.

*8.2 During any meeting if the Chairman counts the number of Members
present and declares there is not a quorum present, then the meeting will
adjourn immediately. Remaining business will be considered at a time
and date fixed by the Chairman. If he/she does not fix a date, the
remaining business will be considered at the next ordinary meeting.

9. Questions
9.1 Procedure for Questions

Members of the Council and members of the public may ask

a) the Chairman or in his/her absence the Vice-Chairman of the Council
or

Part V / Page 4

Reviewed March 2019



Council Procedure Rules

b) the Chairman or in his/her absence the Vice-Chairman of any
committee or sub-committee or

c) the Leader of Council or in his/her absence the Deputy Leader of the
Council

a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or
duties or which affects the District at ordinary meetings of the Council.

9.2 Notice of questions

a) Questions may be asked under Rule 9.1 if at least three clear
working days before the day of the meeting (excluding the day of the
meeting) a question has been submitted in writing or e-mail to the
Head of Paid Service i.e. normally by the end of Tuesday for a
meeting the following Monday.

b) A Member of the Council may ask the Chair of the Committee any
question without notice upon a recommendation.

9.3 Number of questions/ statements
No members of the public may submit more than six questions per year.

9.4 Rejection of questions

The Head of Paid Service may reject a question if it breaches any
Procedure Rules and if -

a) itis not about a matter for which the local authority has a
responsibility or which affects the district;

b) it is defamatory, frivolous or offensive;

c) itis substantially the same as a question which has previously been
put at a meeting of the Council or Committee;

d) it requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information;
e) itrelates to an item on the agenda for that Council meeting;

f)  the member of the public has already asked six questions or
statements in the civic year.

g) itis to be put to Council during the formal Purdah period and
is, in the view of the Head of Paid Service, politically
motivated and therefore an unjust use of Council resources
and time.

9.5 Response
a) An answer may take the form of -

i)  adirect oral answer;

i) where the desired information is in a publication of the council
or other published work, a reference to that publication; or

i)  where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written
answer circulated later to the questioner.

b)  Every question shall be put and answered, but the person to whom

Part V / Page 5

Reviewed March 2019



Council Procedure Rules

the question has been put may decline to answer.

c) Questions or statements which are defamatory, frivolous or offensive
will not be allowed and not withstanding the differences of political
opinion which will inevitably arise, it shall be unacceptable for

Members of the Council to submit questions or provide answers
which name another Member or group.

9.6 Supplemental Question

A questioner will be allowed to ask one brief, relevant supplementary
question after the reply to the original question at the Chairman’s
discretion.

10. Motions on Notice

10.1 Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Rule 11,
written notice of every motion, signed by at least one member, motions to
Council must be received by the Head of Paid Service by close of play
seven clear working days prior to the meeting (excluding the day of the
meeting); i.e. for a meeting on Monday 15th of the month this would be
by 5pm on the Wednesday 3rd of the month. These will be entered in a
book open to public inspection.

Motion set out in agenda

10.2 Motions for which notice has been given will be listed on the agenda in the
order in which notice was received, unless the Member giving notice
states, in writing, that he/she proposes to move it to a later meeting or
withdraw it.

Motion not moved

10.3 If a motion set out in the summons is not moved either by the Member
who gave notice of it or some other Member on his/her behalf, it shall,
unless postponed with Council’s consent, be treated as withdrawn and
shall not be moved without fresh notice.

Automatic reference to committee

10.4 If the subject matter of any motion of which notice has been duly given
comes within the remit of any committee(s), it shall, upon being moved
and seconded, stand referred without discussion to such committee(s) for
consideration and determination. However, the Chairman may, if he/she
considers it convenient and conducive to the despatch of business, allow
the motion to be dealt with at the meeting at which it is brought forward.
Scope

10.5 Motions must be about matters for which the Council has a responsibility
or which affect the district.

Motion not accepted

10.6 If notice is given of any motion which, in the opinion of the Head of Paid

Part V / Page 6

Reviewed March 2019



Council Procedure Rules

Service is out of order, illegal, irregular or improper, the Head of Paid
Service shall not accept it and immediately inform the Member who
submitted the motion why. The rejected motion shall still be recorded in
the book kept for that purpose and a note made to the effect that the
motion was not accepted and why.

11 Motions without Notice

*11.1The following motions may be moved without notice -

QO

to appoint a chairman of the meeting at which the motion is moved;

O

in relation to the accuracy of the minutes;

o O

)

)

) to change the order of business in the agenda;

)  to refer something to an appropriate body or individual;
)

D

to appoint a committee or member arising from an item on the
summons for the meeting;

f)  to receive reports or adoption of recommendations of committees or
officers and any resolutions following from them;

g) to withdraw a motion;

h) to amend a motion;

i)  to proceed to the next business;

j)  thatthe question be now put;

K) to adjourn a debate;

[)  to adjourn a meeting;

m) to suspend a particular Council Procedure Rule;

n) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to
Information Procedure Rules;

o) not to hear further a member named under Rule 18.3 or to exclude
him/her from the meeting under Rule 18.4; or

p) to give the consent of the Council where its consent is required by
this Constitution.

12 Rules of Debate
No speeches until motion seconded

*12.1 No speeches may be made after the mover has moved a proposal and
explained the purpose of it until the motion has been seconded.

Right to require motion in writing
*12.2 Unless notice of the motion has already been given, the Chairman may
require it to be written down and handed to him/her before it is
discussed.

Seconder’s speech

*12.3 When seconding a motion or amendment, a Member may reserve

PartV/Page 7

Reviewed March 2019



Council Procedure Rules

his/her speech until later in the debate.
Content and length of speeches

*12.4 Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or to a
personal explanation or point of order. No speech may exceed five
minutes in the case of a mover of a motion and three minutes in all other
cases without the consent of the Chairman.

When a Member may speak again

*12.5 A Member who has spoken on a motion may speak again for up to three
minutes whilst it is the subject of debate, either to add something new or
to respond to a new point made during the course of the debate. Where
a follow-up speech does not deal with new material, the Chairman may
rule the member out of order and ask him/her to stop speaking. The
ruling of the Chairman on the matter will be final.

Amendments to motions

*12.6 An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and will either
be -

a) to refer the matter to an appropriate body or individual for
consideration or reconsideration;

O

to leave out words;

(¢]

to leave out words and insert or add others; or

o

)

)

) toinsert or add words.

as long as the effect of (b) to (d) is not to negate the motion.

*12.7 Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one time. No
further amendment may be moved until the amendment under discussion
has been disposed of. The Chairman, however, may permit
two or more amendments to be discussed (but not voted on) together if
circumstances suggest that this course would facilitate the proper
conduct of the Council’s business.

*12.8 If an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the original motion
may be moved.

*12.9 If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place of
the original motion. This becomes the substantive motion to which any
further amendments are moved.

*12.10 After an amendment has been carried, the Chairman will read out the
amended motion before accepting any further amendments or, if there
are none, put it to the vote.

Part V / Page 8

Reviewed March 2019



Council Procedure Rules

Alteration of motion

*12.11 A Member may alter a motion of which he/she has given notice with the

consent of the meeting. The meeting’s consent will be signified without
discussion.

*12.12 A Member may alter a motion which he/she has moved without notice

*12.13

*12.14

*12.15

*12.16

*12.17

*12.18

with the consent of both the meeting and the seconder. The meeting’s
consent will be signified without discussion.

Only alterations which could be made as an amendment may be made.
Withdrawal of motion

A Member may withdraw a motion which he/she has moved with the
consent of both the meeting and the seconder. The meeting’s consent will
be signified without discussion. No Member may speak on the motion
after the mover has asked permission to withdraw it unless permission is
refused.

Right of reply

The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the end of the debate on the
motion, immediately before it is put to the vote.

If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion has the right
of reply at the close of the debate on the amendment, but may not
otherwise speak on it.

The mover of the amendment has a right of reply to the debate on his or
her amendment immediately before the mover of the original motion.

Motions which may be moved during debate

When a motion is under debate, no other motion may be moved except
the following procedural motions -

a) to withdraw the motion;

b) to amend the motion;

c) to proceed to the next business;
d) that the question be now put;

e) to adjourn a debate;

f)  to adjourn a meeting;

g) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to
Information Rules; or

h)  not to hear further a Member named under Rule 18.3 or to exclude
him/her from the meeting under Rule 18.4.

Part V / Page 9

Reviewed March 2019



Council Procedure Rules

Closure motions

*12.19 A Member may move, without comment, the following motions at the end
of a speech of another member -

a) to proceed to the next business;

b) that the question be now put;

¢

)
) to adjourn a debate; or
)

o

to adjourn a meeting.

*12.20 If a motion to proceed to next business is seconded and the Chairman
thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed, he/she will give the mover
of the original motion a right of reply and then put the procedural motion to
the vote.

*12.21 If a motion that the question be now put is seconded and the Chairman
thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed, he/she will put the
procedural motion to the vote. If itis passed, he/she will give the mover
of the original motion a right of reply before putting his/her motion to the
vote.

*12.22 If a motion to adjourn the debate or to adjourn the meeting is seconded
and the Chairman thinks the item has not been sufficiently discussed and
cannot reasonably be so discussed on that occasion, he/she will put the
procedural motion to the vote without giving the mover of the original
motion the right of reply.

Point of order

*12.23 A Member may raise a point of order at any time. The Chairman will hear
him/her immediately. A point of order may only relate to an alleged
breach of these Council Procedure Rules or the law. The Member must
indicate the Rule or law and the way in which he/she considers it has
been broken. The ruling of the Chairman on the matter will be final.

Personal explanation

*12.24 A Member may make a personal explanation at any time. A personal
explanation may only relate to some material part of an earlier speech by
the Member which may appear to have been misunderstood in the present
debate. The ruling of the Chairman on the admissibility of a personal
explanation will be final.

Point of Information

*12.25 When a Member is speaking and obviously proceeding on the basis of
information which is wrong or of which the Member is ignorant, another
Member may properly seek to intervene to provide the correct or missing
information, thereby saving the Council from being misled, and saving
time.

Part V / Page 10

Reviewed March 2019



Council Procedure Rules

13 Previous Decisions and Motions

Motion to rescind or vary a previous decision

13.1 A motion or amendment to rescind or vary a decision made at a meeting
of Council within the past six months cannot be moved unless the notice of
motion is signed by at least 10 Members or upon the recommendation of a
committee. Every such notice or recommendation shall refer to the
resolution to be rescinded or varied.

14 Voting
Majority

*14.1 Unless this Constitution or the law provides otherwise, any matter will be
decided by a simple majority of those Members voting and present in
the room at the time the question was put.

Chairman’s casting vote

*14.2 If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chairman will
have a second or casting vote. There will be no restriction on how
the Chairman chooses to exercise a casting vote.

Show of hands

*14.3 Unless a recorded vote is demanded under Rule 14.4, the Chairman will
take the vote by show of hands or, if there is no dissent, by the
affirmation of the meeting. It shall not be necessary to count the votes on
a show of hands unless the issue requires a special majority or the
Chairman considers it necessary or appropriate.

Recorded vote

*14.4  If any two Members present at the meeting demand it, the names for
and against the motion or amendment or abstaining from voting will be
taken down in writing and entered into the minutes.

Immediately after any vote is taken at the budget decision meeting of
full Council there must be recorded in the minutes of the proceedings
of that meeting the names of the persons who cast a vote for the
decision or against the decision or who abstained from voting.

In the event that Full Council and/or a Committee chooses to make
use of the electronic voting system, the names and way in which
those Elected Members present voted will automatically be recorded
within the minutes.

Right to require individual vote to be recorded
*145 Where any Member requests it immediately after a vote is taken,

his/her vote will be so recorded in the minutes to show whether he/she
voted for or against the motion or abstained from voting.

Reviewed March 2019 Part V/Page 11



Council Procedure Rules

*14.6

*14.7

15

Voting on appointments

If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be

filled and there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one
person, then the name of the person with the least number of
votes will be taken off the list and a new vote taken. The process
will continue until there is a majority of votes for one person.

The number of votes each Member has is restricted to the number
of vacancies to be filled.

Minutes

Signing the minutes

*15.1 The Chairman will sign the minutes of the proceedings at the next

*15.2

*15.3

*15.4

16
16.1

17
*17.1

18

*18.1

suitable meeting. The Chairman will move that the minutes of the
previous meeting be signed as a correct record. The only part of the
minutes that can be discussed is their accuracy.

No requirement to sign minutes of previous meeting at
extraordinary meeting

Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of
signing the minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of schedule
12 to the Local Government Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting), then
the next following meeting (being a meeting called otherwise than under
that paragraph) will be treated as a suitable meeting for the purposes of
paragraph 41(1) and (2) of schedule 12 relating to signing of minutes.

Form of minutes

Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact form
and order the Chairman put them.

Presentation of committee recommendations

Recommendations shall be submitted by the Chairman or another
member of the Committee who shall move “that the recommendation(s)
be adopted.” Upon this motion being seconded, the Chairman of Council
will present each recommendation in turn (page by page if appropriate).

Record of Attendance

All Members present during the whole or part of a meeting must sign
their names in the attendance book or on any sheet provided before the
conclusion of every meeting to assist with the record of attendance.

Exclusion of Public

Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in
accordance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part IV
of this Constitution or Rule 19 (Disturbance by Public).

Members’ Conduct Speaking at meetings

When a Member speaks at Council, he/she must address the meeting
through the Chairman. If more than one Member wishes to speak, the

Reviewed March 2019

Part V / Page 12



Council Procedure Rules

Chairman will ask one to speak and the others must refrain. Other
Members must remain silent whilst a Member is speaking unless they
wish to make a point of order or a point of personal explanation.

Chairman standing

*18.2 When the Chairman stands during a debate, any Member speaking at
the time must stop. The meeting must be silent.

Member not to be heard further

*18.3 If a Member persistently disregards the ruling of the Chairman by
behaving improperly or offensively or deliberately obstructs business,
the Chairman may move that the Member be not heard further. If
seconded, the motion will be voted on without discussion.

Member to leave the meeting

*18.4 If the Member continues to behave improperly after such a motion
is carried, the Chairman may move that either the member leaves
the meeting or that the meeting is adjourned for a specific period. If
seconded, the motion will be voted on without discussion.

General Disturbance

*18.5 If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible,
the Chairman may adjourn the meeting for as long as he/she thinks
necessary.

19 Disturbance by Public
Removal of member of the public

*19.1  If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chairman will warn
the person concerned. If he/she continues to interrupt, the Chairman
will order his/her removal from the meeting room.

Clearance of part of meeting room

*19.2 If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open
to the public, the Chairman may call for that part to be cleared.

20 Suspension and Amendment of Council Procedure Rules

Suspension

*20.1 All of these Council Rules of Procedure except Rule 14.5 and 15.2 may
be suspended by motion on notice or without notice if at least one half of
the whole number of Members of the Council are present. Suspension
can only be for the duration of the meeting.

Amendment

*20.2 Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Council Rules of Procedure
will, when proposed and seconded, stand adjourned without discussion.to

Reviewed March 2019 Part V/Page 13



Council Procedure Rules

the next ordinary meeting of the councll.

21 Application to Committees and Sub-Committees

21.1  All the Council Procedure Rules apply to meetings of council with the
exception of the Rules 22 — 27 below which relate solely to committees
and sub-committees. Rules 4-8 (except Rule 8.1) and Rules 11, 12 and
14-19 above apply to meetings of committees and sub-committees
(marked with an *).

Notes:

e  With the exception of the Licensing and Regulatory Sub-
Committees, all other sub-committees will be time limited.

e  Public participation is permitted at meetings of Council and all
Policy and Regulatory committees. Full details of the schemes
are set out in leaflets available from the Council.

22 Powers of Committees

22.1 Except as otherwise provided by statute or a resolution of the Council,
committees shall have delegated powers to act as set out in Part IV of this
Constitution.

23 Chairmen of Committees

Election

23.1 In the absence from a meeting of the Chairman (and Vice-Chairman if
elected), a Chairman shall be appointed for that meeting.

All Committee Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen will commit to undertake any
training deemed necessary to undertake this role, over and above those
requirements set out for regulatory committees in Section 4 of this
Constitution subsequent to being elected to the role.

24  Special Meetings of Committees and Sub-Committees

24.1 The Chairman of a committee or sub-committee or the Chairman of
Council may call a special meeting of the committee or sub-committee at
any time by way of a request to the Head of Paid Service. A special
meeting shall also be called on the requisition of a quarter of the whole
number of the committee or sub-committee, delivered in writing to the
Head of Paid Service, but in no case shall less than three members
requisition a special meeting.

25 Attendance at Committees and Sub-Committees

25.1 A Member who has moved a motion which has been referred to a
committee or sub-committee shall have notice of the meeting at which it

Reviewed March 2019 Part V/Page 14



Council Procedure Rules
IS pI’OpOSGd fo consider the motion. He/she shail have the rlgfit (6]

attend and the opportunity of explaining the motion if he/she does
attend.

25.2 Members shall be entitled to attend any committee of which they are not
members and, with prior notice to the Chairman, may be invited to take
part in the discussion but may not move, second or vote on any motion.

25.3 Meetings of Task and Finish Groups shall be open to other members to
observe only.

26 Quorum of Committees and Sub-Committees
Committees

26.1 The quorum of a committee meeting will be one quarter of the whole
number of Members, provided that in no case shall the quorum of the
committee be less than four voting Members, with the exception of the
Standards Sub-Committee which is subject to paras (1) & (2) as follows-

(1) Subject to paragraph (2) below, a meeting of the Standards Sub-
Committee shall not be quorate unless at least three Members (and
at least one independent member if the hearing relates to a parish
councillor) of that committee are present for its duration.

(2) Where at least one independent member would have been present
for the duration of the meeting but for the fact that he was prevented
or restricted from participating in any business of the authority by
virtue of its code of conduct, the requirement in paragraph (2) for the
quorum to include at least one independent member shall not apply.

Sub-Committees

26.2 The quorum of a sub-committee meeting will be one quarter of the
whole number of Members, provided that in no case shall the quorum of
the sub- committee be less than two voting Members with the exception
of the Licensing Sub-Committee where the quorum will be three.

27  New Committees and Sub-Committees to take up business of former
Committees and Sub-Committees

27.1 Every committee and sub-committee shall take up all relevant matters
referred to any committee or sub-committee previously appointed which
may not have been fully dealt with.

28 Political Balance

28.1 Inthe event of no overall political control and in addition to applying the
political balance rules as provided for in statute, the Council will allocate
to each Group the chairmanships and vice-chairmanships of all
committees and sub-committees and the total number of places on the
following outside bodies in accordance with their share of the total
number of seats on the Council -

Reviewed March 2019 Part V/Page 15



Council Procedure Rules

« East Midlands Council
e Local Government Association General Assembly

28.2 The above Rule will not apply to the Standards Sub-Committee or the
Licensing Sub-Committee and will apply to all other committees/sub-
committees appointed at the start of the municipal year.

29  Constitution to be given to Members

29.1 A copy of this Constitution shall be provided to each member of the
Council, in an appropriate format, by the Head of Paid Service upon
delivery of the member’s Declaration of Acceptance of Office on the
member being first elected to the council or re-elected following a
break in service.

Reviewed March 2019 Part V/Page 16



Access to Information Procedure Rules

Contents

Rule

LS ToTo] o1 PSRRI
2. Additional rights to information............ccecceeiiiniiinie e
3. Rightsto attend meetings ........cccueeeriiieiiii e
4. Notices 0Of MEELING .....eeiveiiiiiee e
5. Access to agenda and reports before the meeting..........cccceeennee.
6.  SUPPIY Of COPIES. ..ot
7. Access to minutes etc after the meeting ...,
8. Background Papers.........ooceeieiiiiiie i e
9. Summary of public’s MGNtS .......coeiiiiiiee e
10. Exclusion of access by the public to meetings ........ccccoeviveieeinen.
11.  Exclusion of access by the public to reports .........cccoceveeiiiiinennen.

Reviewed May 2018

18

18

18

18

18

18

19

19

19

19

21



Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Accesstolnformation ProcedureRules

1.

1.1

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

Scope

These Rules apply to all meetings of the Council, the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, policy and other committees and the Standards Sub-Committee
(together called meetings).

Additional Rights to Information

These Rules do not affect any more specific rights to information contained
elsewhere in this Constitution or in the law.

Rights to Attend Meetings

Members of the public may attend all meetings subject only to the exceptions in
these Rules.

Notices of Meeting

The Council will give at least five clear working days’ notice of any meeting by
posting details of the meeting. Working days means days when the offices are
open so weekends and public holidays do not count.

Access to Agenda and Reports before the Meeting

The council will make copies of the agenda and reports open to the public
available for inspection at least five clear working days before the meeting. Clear
days means not counting the day the agenda was made available nor the day of
the meeting. If an item is added to the agenda later, the revised agenda (where
reports are prepared after the summons has been sent out, the designated officer
shall make each such report available to the public as soon as the report is
completed and sent to Councillors) will be open to inspection from the time the
item was added to the agenda.

Supply of Copies
The Council will supply copies of -
a) any agenda and reports which are open to public inspection;

b) any further statements or particulars necessary to indicate the nature of the
items in the agenda; and

c) if the Head of Paid Service thinks fit, copies of any other documents supplied
to Councillors in connection with an item to any person on payment of a
charge for postage and other costs.

Reviewed May 2018 Part V/ Page 18



Accessto Information Procedure Rules

7. Access to Minutes etc. after the Meeting

7.1 The council will make available copies of the following for six years after a
meeting -

a) the minutes of the meeting excluding any part of the minutes of proceedings
when the meeting was not open to the public or which disclose exempt or
confidential information;

b) asummary of any proceedings not open to the public where the minutes
open to inspection would not provide a reasonably fair and coherent record;

c) the agenda for the meeting; and
d) reports relating to items where the meeting was open to the public.

8. Background Papers
List of Background Papers

8.1 The Proper Officer will set out in every report a list of those documents (called
background papers) relating to the subject matter of the report which in his/her
opinion -

a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

b)  which have been relied upon to a material extent in preparing the report but
does not include published works or those which disclose exempt or
confidential information (as defined by Rule 10).

Public Inspection of Background Papers

8.2 The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the date
of the meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of background
papers.

9. Summary of Public’s Rights

9.1 A written summary of the public’s rights to attend meetings and to inspect and
copy documents must be kept available to the public at The Guildhall,
Gainsborough.

10. Exclusion of Access by the Public to Meetings
Confidential Information — Requirement to Exclude Public

10.1 The public must be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that
confidential information would be disclosed.

Reviewed May 2018 Part V / Page 19



Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Exempt Information — Discretion to Exclude Public

10.2 The public may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that
exempt information would be disclosed.

Where the meeting will determine any person’s civil rights or obligations, or
adversely affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998
establishes a presumption that the meeting will be held in public unless a private
hearing is necessary for one of the reasons specified in Article 6.

Meaning of Confidential Information

10.3 Confidential information means information given to the council by a Government
Department on terms which forbid its public disclosure or information which cannot

be publicly disclosed by Court Order.

Meaning of Exempt Information

10.4 Exempt information means information falling within the following 10 categories

(subject to any condition):

Category Condition
1. Information relating to any Exempt information if and so long, as in all
individual. the circumstances of the case, the public

interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information.

2. Information which is likely to reveal
the identity of an individual

Exempt information if and so long, as in all
the circumstances, of the case the public
interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information.

3. Information relating to the
financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information)

Exempt information if and so long, as in all
the circumstances of the case, the public
interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information.

4. Information relating to any
consultations or negotiations, or
contemplated consultations or
negotiations, in connection with any
labour relations matter arising
between the authority or a Minister
of the Crown and employees of, or
office holders under, the authority.

Exempt information if and so long, as in all
the circumstances of the case, the public
interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information.

5. Information in respect of which a
claim to legal professional

Exempt information if and so long, as in all
the circumstances of the case, the

Reviewed May 2018 Part V / Page 20




Accessto Information Procedure Rules

privilege could be maintained in
legal proceedings

public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information.

6. Information which reveals that
the authority proposes -

a) to give under any enactment a
notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a
person; or

b) to make an order or direction
under any enactment

Exempt information if and so long, as in all
the circumstances of the case, the public
interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information.

7. Information relating to any action
taken or to be taken in connection
with the prevention, investigation
or prosecution of crime.

Exempt information if and so long, as in all
circumstances of the case, the public
interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information.

Exempt Information Relating to Standards Committee Only

8. Information which is subject to
any obligation of confidentiality

Exempt information if and so long, as in all
circumstances of the case, the public
interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information

9. Information which relates in any
way to matters concerning
national security

Exempt information if and so long, as in all
circumstances of the case, the public
interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information.

10 The deliberations of a Standards
Committee or of a sub-committee of
a Standards Committee established
under the provisions of Part 3 of the
Local Government Act 2000 in
reaching any finding on a matter
referred under the provisions of
section 60 (2) or (3) 64 (2) 70 (4)
or (5) or 71 (2) of that Act.

Exempt information if and so long, as in all
circumstances of the case, the public
interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information.

10.5 Information falling within any of the paragraphs 1 to 10 is not exempt by virtue of
that paragraph if it relates to proposed development for which the local planning
authority can grant itself planning permission under Regulation 3 of the Town and
Country Planning General Regulations 1992.

11. Exclusion of Access by the Public to Reports

11.1 If the Monitoring Officer thinks fit, the Council may exclude access by the
public to reports which in his or her opinion relate to items during which, in
accordance with Rule 10, the meeting is likely not to be open to the public. Such
reports will be marked “not for publication” together with the category of

information likely to be disclosed.

Reviewed May 2018

Part V / Page 21




Budgetary and Policy Framework Procedure Rules

Contents

Rule

1. The framework for decision making .........cccccveverieiiienie e

2. Process for developing the framework ...

3. Virement .................

4. Inyear adjustments

Reviewed May 2018

23

23

23

23



Budgetary and Policy Framework

Budgetaryand Policy Framework Procedure Rules

1.

1.1

2.1

3.1

4.1

The Framework for Decision Making

The Council will be responsible for the adoption of its budget and policy
framework as set out in Article 4. Once a budget or policy framework is in
place, it will be the responsibility of the policy committees to implement it.

Process for Developing the Framework
The process for developing the budget and policy framework is —

a) Insummer each year, following the approval of the Corporate Plan
priorities by Council, the Corporate Policy and Resources Committee will
agree a programme for establishing revising the Medium Term Financial
Plan and determining a budget for the following year. Within this
programme, the Committee may identify strategic policy or resource
issues on which it wishes to request studies by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

b) Policy studies undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
should engage as widely as possible with citizens and stakeholders in
the community and use a variety of methods to gauge public views. The
results should be presented to the relevant policy Committee, which will
then draw on them in developing proposals for Council.

c) In Autumn each year the draft Medium Term Financial Plan will be
prepared to clearly link the Council’s resources with priorities.

d) In March the Council will approve the Medium Term Financial Plan and
set the Council Tax for the coming year.

e) Between March and the summer the Corporate Plan priorities will be
reviewed and revised where required.

Virement

Steps taken by a Committee or Officers, or joint arrangements implementing
Council Policy, shall not exceed the approved budgets allocated to each cost
centre. However, virement between cost centres is permitted under the
Council’s Financial Procedure Rules as set out in this Constitution, subject to
the requirements and limits there specified.

In-Year Adjustments

The responsibility for agreeing the financial framework lies with the Council,
and decisions by policy committees or officers with delegated authority must
be inline with it. Changes in year to any policy or strategy that form the policy
framework must be agreed by the relevant policy committee or by the Council
except —

a) where necessary to ensure compliance with the law, ministerial
direction or government guidance; or

PartV / Page 23



Budgetary and Policy Framework

in relation to the policy framework in respect of policy which would
normally be agreed annually by the Council following consultation, but
where the existing policy document is silent on the matter under

consideration.

PartV / Page 24



OverviewandScrutiny ProcedureRules

Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules

Contents
Rule
1. Number and arrangements for Challenge and Improvement Committee..
2. Seats on Challenge and Improvement Committee...........cccceeerievnnenne.
3. (@70 R0 0] (=TSSR
4. Meetings of the Challenge and Improvement Committee....................
5. L 10T U o
6. WOrK Programme.........oooeeeieeiieeeie et
7. AGENAA IEEMS.....e ettt e e e e
8. Policy review and development...........ccccooeiiiiiin e
9. Reports from the Challenge and Improvement Committee..................
10. Consideration of Challenge and Improvement Committee reports

by POlICY COMMILIEES. ..o
11. Rights of Challenge and Improvement Committee members to

JOCUMIEBNES....ceieeee ettt e
12. Members and officers giving aCCoUNt............ccooeceererienierenee e
13. Attendance DY Others. ...
14. (@7 | o S
15. Procedure at Challenge and Improvement Committee Meeting...........
16. Oversight COMMISSIONS ......uueiiieiiei e

Reviewed May 2018

26
26
26
26
27
27
27
27
28

28

28

28
29
29
31
32



OverviewandScrutiny ProcedureRules

Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

4.1

Number and Arrangements for Challenge and Improvement Committee
The Council will have one Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

‘Challenge and Improvement Committee’

It will perform all overview and scrutiny functions on behalf of the Council and
will be politically balanced.

The terms of reference of the Challenge and Improvement Committee will be as
detailed in Article 7 and Part IV of the Constitution.

Seats on Overview and Scrutiny Committee

All Councillors with the exception of the Chairman, Leader of the Council,
Deputy Leader of the Council, Leader of the Opposition and a policy committee
Chairman or Vice-Chairman may be members of the Challenge and
Improvement Committee. However, no member may be involved in scrutinising
a decision in which he/she has been directly involved.

A member must if he/she is involved in the consideration of a matter at a
meeting of the Challenge and Improvement Committee of the Authority or a
sub-committee of that Committee, regard himself/herself as having a personal
and a prejudicial interest if that consideration relates to a decision made, or
action taken, by another of the Council’'s —

. committees or sub-committees; or
. joint committees or joint sub-committees.

of which he/she may also be a member and took part in that decision making.
Sub-paragraph (2.2) above shall not apply if that member attends that
meeting for the purpose of answering questions or otherwise giving evidence
relating to that decision or action.

Co-optees

The Challenge and Improvement Committee shall be entitled to appoint a
number of people as non-voting co-optees.

Meetings of the Challenge and Improvement Committee
There shall be eight ordinary meetings of the Challenge and Improvement

Committee in each year. In addition, special meetings may be called from time
to time as and when appropriate.

Part V / Page 26



OverviewandScrutiny ProcedureRules

4.2

5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

A Challenge and Improvement Committee meeting may be called by the
Chairman of the Committee, by a simple majority of members of the Committee
or by the Proper Officer if he/she considers it necessary or appropriate.

Quorum

The quorum for the Challenge and Improvement Committee shall be one
quarter of the whole numbers of members provided that in no case shall the
quorum of the committee be less than four voting members.

Work Programme

The Challenge and Improvement Committee will be responsible for reporting
annually to the Council on both its proposed work plan and its work in the
preceding year and, in doing so, shall take into account wishes of members on
the Committee who are not members of the largest political group on the
Council.

Agenda ltems

Any member of the Challenge and Improvement Committee shall be entitled to
give notice to the Proper Officer that he/she wishes an item relevant to the
functions of the Committee to be included on the agenda for the next available
meeting of the Committee. On receipt of such a request, the Proper Officer will
ensure that it is included on the next available agenda.

The Challenge and Improvement Committee shall also respond, as soon as its
work programme permits, to requests from the Council and policy committees to
review particular areas of council activity. Where it does so, the Challenge and
Improvement Committee shall report their findings and any recommendations
back to the relevant policy committee and/or Council. The Council and/or the
relevant policy committee shall consider the report of the Challenge and
Improvement Committee at the next available meeting.

There will be a standing item on the agenda of all ordinary meetings of the
Challenge and Improvement Committee which will allow for consideration to be
given to the work programme.

Policy Review and Development

The role of the Challenge and Improvement Committee in relation to the
development of the Council’s budget and policy framework is set out in detail in
the Budgetary and Policy Framework Procedure Rules in Part V of this
Constitution.

In relation to the development of the Council’s approach to other matters not
forming part of its policy and budgetary framework, the Challenge and
Improvement Committee may make proposals to policy committees for
developments in so far as they relate to matters within its terms of reference.

Part V / Page 27



OverviewandScrutiny ProcedureRules

8.3

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

11.

12.

12.1

The Challenge and Improvement Committee may hold inquiries and investigate
the available options for future direction in policy development and may appoint
advisers and assessors to assist in this process. It may go on site visits,
conduct public surveys, hold public meetings, commission research and do all
other things that it reasonably considers necessary to inform its deliberations. It
may ask witnesses to attend to address it on any matter under consideration
and may pay to any advisers, assessors and witnesses a reasonable fee and
expenses for doing so.

Reports from the Challenge and Improvement Committee

Once it has formed recommendations on proposals for development, the
Challenge and Improvement Committee will prepare formal reports and submit
them to the Proper Officer for consideration by the relevant policy committee (if
the proposals are consistent with the existing budgetary and policy framework),
or to the Council as appropriate (e.g. if the recommendation would require a
departure from, or a change to, the agreed budgetary and policy framework).

If the Challenge and Improvement Committee cannot agree on one single final
report to the Council or the relevant policy committee as appropriate, then up to
one minority report may be prepared and submitted for consideration by the
Council or policy committee with the majority report.

The Council or policy committee shall consider any report of the Challenge and
Improvement Committee at the next available meeting after being submitted to
the Proper Officer.

Consideration of Challenge and Improvement Committee’s Reports by
Policy Committees

Once a Challenge and Improvement report on any matter which is the
responsibility of a policy committee has been completed, it shall be included on
the agenda of the next available meeting of the relevant policy committee.

Rights of Challenge and Improvement Committee Members to Documents

In addition to their rights as Councillors, members of the Challenge and
Improvement Committee have the additional right to documents and to notice of
meetings as set out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part V of
this Constitution.

Nothing in this paragraph prevents more detailed liaison between the relevant
policy committee and the Challenge and Improvement Committee as
appropriate depending on the particular matter under consideration.

Members and Officers Giving Account

The Challenge and Improvement Committee may scrutinise and review
decisions made or actions taken in connection with the discharge of any council
functions within its remit. As well as reviewing documentation, in fulfilling the

Part V / Page 28



OverviewandScrutiny ProcedureRules

12.2

12.3

13.

13.1

14.

14.1

14.2

scrutiny role, it may require any member of a policy committee, the Head of
Paid Service or an Executive Director to attend before it to explain in relation
to matters within its remit —

(a) any particular decision or series of decisions; and
(b) the extent to which the actions taken implement Council policy

and it is the duty of those persons to attend if so required.

More junior officers may be invited to assist the Committee.

Where any member or officer is required to attend the Challenge and
Improvement Committee under this provision, the Chairman of the Committee
will inform the Proper Officer. The Proper Officer shall inform the member or
officer in writing giving at least five working days’ notice of the meeting at which
he/she is required to attend. The notice will state the nature of the item on
which he/she is required to attend to give account and whether any papers are
required to be produced for the Committee. Where the account to be given to
the Committee will require the production of a report, then the member or officer
concerned will be given sufficient notice to allow for presentation of that
documentation.

Where, in exceptional circumstances, the member or officer is unable to attend
on the required date, and then the Challenge and Improvement Committee
shall, in consultation with the member or officer, arrange an alternative date for
attendance.

Attendance by Others

The Challenge and Improvement Committee may invite people other than those
people referred to in paragraph 12 above to address it, discuss issues of local
concern and/or answer questions on issues within the remit of the committee.
The committee may, for example, wish to hear from residents, stakeholders and
members and officers in other parts of the public sector and shall invite such
people to attend.

Call-In

Call-in should occur where members of the Challenge and Improvement
Committee have evidence which suggests that the policy committee(s) for
which it is responsible did not take the decision in accordance with the
principles set out in Article 12.

Five working days are to be allowed for the call-in of decisions. The procedure
is as follows —

(@) If four members on the Challenge and Improvement Committee wish to
call in a decision with a view to requesting that the relevant policy
committee reconsiders the decision, this must be done within five

Part V / Page 29



OverviewandScrutiny ProcedureRules

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

working days of publication of the decision, provided the issue in
question has not been recorded as urgent.

(b)  Anyrequest to call in a decision must be in writing, be signed by the four
members and set out the resolution to be considered. The call-in notice
should also set out the reason(s) why the decision should be
reconsidered. The notice should be sent to the Head of Paid Service no
later than 5pm on the fifth working day following publication of the
decision.

(c) Decisions can only be called in once and must be considered at the next
meeting of the Challenge and Improvement Committee unless the
agenda for that meeting has already been published. If the agenda has
been published, the issue will be considered at the subsequent
Challenge and Improvement Committee meeting unless the matter is
considered urgent by the Chairman of the Challenge and Improvement
Committee, taking into account any views of the Chairman of the
Committee whose decision has been called in.

(d)  The date of publication of the decision will be deemed to be the day on
which the minutes were published on the Council’s website.

(e) If having considered the decision the Challenge and Improvement
Committee may:

(i) refer back to the relevant policy committee for further
consideration, setting out in writing its recommendations; or

(i) not refer back to the relevant policy committee and the decision
shall take effect on the date of the overview and scrutiny meeting.

Where a matter is to be referred to another committee, call-in only applies after
the matter has been considered by that other committee.

Call-in does not apply to recommendations to Council nor to Council decisions
themselves.

The Chairman of the committee whose decision has been called in shall be
invited to the Challenge and Improvement Committee meeting when the item is
considered. The Chairman of the Challenge and Improvement Committee (or
his/her representative) shall attend the policy committee meeting when the
called-in item goes back for consideration.

Where a policy committee does not wish to accept the recommendation(s) of the
Challenge and Improvement Committee on a called-in decision, the decision
shall be referred to Council.

The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply where the decision being
taken by the policy committee is urgent. A decision will be urgent if any delay
likely to be caused by the call-in process would seriously prejudice the Council’s

Part V / Page 30



OverviewandScrutiny ProcedureRules

14.8

14.9

15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

or the public interest. The record of the decision shall state whether, in the
opinion of the decision-making committee, the decision is an urgent one
and, therefore, not subject to call-in. The committee taking the decision
must agree both that the decision proposed is reasonable in all the
circumstances and to it being treated as a matter of urgency. The
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall be consulted
before any matter is dealt with under this urgency procedure.

Urgency in this context goes further than the urgency provisions
contained in the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
relating to late reports. A report may well have been submitted to the
relevant committee in good time but the implementation of the decision is
nevertheless considered urgent.

The operation of the provisions relating to call-in and urgency
shall be monitored annually.

Procedure at Challenge and Improvement Committee Meetings

The Challenge and Improvement Committee shall consider the
following business —

(@)  minutes of the last meeting;

(b)  declarations of interest;

()  consideration of any matter referred to the Committee for a
decision in relation to call-in of a decision;

(d) (responses of the policy committee(s) to reports of the
Challenge and Improvement Committee;

(e) the business otherwise set out in the agenda for the meeting; and

(f) the work programme.

Where the Challenge and Improvement Committee conducts
investigations (e.g. with a view to policy development), the Committee
may also ask people to attend to give evidence at committee meetings
which are to be conducted in accordance with the following principles:

(a) thatthe investigation be conducted fairly and all members of
the Committee given the opportunity to ask questions of
attendees, to contribute and speak;

(b)  that those assisting the Committee by giving evidence be
treated with respect and courtesy; and

(c) that the investigation be conducted so as to maximise the
efficiency of the investigation or analysis.

Following any investigation or review, the Committee shall prepare a
report for submission to the appropriate policy committee and/or Council
as appropriate and shall make its report and findings public.

Part V / Page 31



OverviewandScrutiny ProcedureRules

16.

16.1

Oversight Commissions

Part of the role of the Challenge and Improvement Committee is to provide
support to the two policy committees by holding commissions on specific areas
as requested by those committees.

To commence a commission: -

e The Prosperous Communities Committee and/or the Corporate Policy
and Resources Committee will agree the purpose, scope and terms of
reference of a commission and make a formal request via the Chair of
Challenge and Improvement (by formal report) that a commission is
established to investigate in detail a particular issue from a national,
regional, sub-regional and local perspective.

e The proposed report and terms of reference for a commission should be
agreed with the Chair of Challenge and Improvement Committee prior to
being submitted to the commissioning policy committee for agreement.’

¢ |n undertaking such a commission, the Challenge and Improvement
Committee may hold inquiries and investigate options for future direction
in policy development. They may appoint advisers and assessors to
assist in this process. They may go on site visits, conduct public
surveys, hold public meetings, commission research and do all other
things that they reasonably consider necessary to inform their
deliberations. They may ask witnesses to attend to address it on any
matter under consideration and may pay to any advisers, assessors and
witnesses a reasonable fee and expenses for doing so, as specified in
the Constitutional operating procedures.

e If a budget is required this will need to be agreed by the commissioning
Committee.

e The Challenge and Improvement Committee will report back their
findings to the Commissioning Policy Committee.

Part V / Page 32



WEST LINDSEY
DISTRICT COUNCIL

FINANCIAL
PROCEDURE
RULES



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

Financial Procedure Rules

INTRODUCTION

FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES

Strong financial controls are vital within any public sector organisation. The
use of public funds must be transparent and both Members and officers must
be held accountable for how public funds are used. These Financial
Procedure Rules have been formulated having particular regard to the
following —

e The financial framework operating within the Council.

e Promoting the accountability of officers for the financial resources required
to deliver their services.

e Compliance with all current legislative financial standards and Codes of
Practice.

e A culture of openness and scrutiny.

e The promotion of a culture of managerial flexibility within the statutory and
organisational constraints of a public sector body.

The Financial Procedure Rules establish the system of control for financial
decisions. They are an integral part of the Council’s Constitution. The rules
reflect the responsibilities arising from being entrusted with public money.

The Financial Procedure Rules consist of 2 parts:

e The f